
 
 

 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

Please silence all electronic devices as a courtesy to those in attendance.  Thank you. 
 
 

 
5:30 pm STUDY SESSION

 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 

This time is reserved for members of the audience to address the City Council/Agency Board on items of interest that are not on 
the Agenda and are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Council/Agency Board.  It is recommended that speakers limit their 
comments to between 3 to 5 minutes each and it is requested that no comments be made during this period on items on the 
Agenda.  Members of the public wishing to address the Council/Agency Board on items on the Agenda should notify the 
Mayor/Chairman when that Agenda item is called.  The Council/Agency Board is prohibited by law from taking any action on 
matters discussed that are not on the Agenda, and no adverse conclusions should be drawn if the Council/Agency Board does not 
respond to public comment at this time.   Speakers are asked to please use the microphone, and provide their name and address.  
Prior to addressing the Council/Agency Board, any handouts to be provided to City Clerk/Board Clerk who will distribute to 
Council/Agency Board and appropriate staff. 

 

SS-1 Water Service to County Club Estates Neighborhood (Brandt) 
SS-2 Reconsideration of Opterra Energy Services Change Order – Solar Project 
 (Hoggard) 
 

 
CLOSED SESSION

This time has been set aside for the City Council to meet in a closed session to discuss matters pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54956.9(d) (4).  Based on the advice of the City Attorney, discussion in open session 
concerning these matters would prejudice the position of the City in this litigation.  The Mayor will give an additional 
oral report regarding the Closed Session at the beginning of the next regular City Council meeting. 

 

1. Public Employee Appointment, Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 
Title:  City Manager 

2. Conference with Labor Negotiator, Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 
Agency Negotiator:  Ron Hoggard and/or Jenell Van Bindsbergen 
Employee Organization:  Unrepresented Employees, City Manager and Acting City 
Manager 

3. Conference with Real Property Negotiators, Government Code Section 54956.8 
Property:  Vacant Land in the Lemoore Industrial Park; Lot 15 (3.04± Acres) - APN 
024051-019 and Lot 16 (3.04± Acres) - APN 024-051-018 
City Negotiators: City Manager and City Attorney Van Bindsbergen 
Negotiating Party:  Tom Vorhees 
Under Negotiation:  Price and Terms of Payment 

      4.   Conference with Real Property Negotiators, Government Code Section 54956.8 

LEMOORE
CALIFORNIA 

JOINT LEMOORE CITY COUNCIL 
LEMOORE REDEVELOPMENT 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY MEETING 
COUNCIL CHAMBER 

429 “C” STREET 
June 16, 2015 



 Property: APN: 023-020-064 (SE corner of Smith Ave. and “D”  St.) and 023-020-065 
 (NE corner of Smith Ave. and Oleander Ave.) 
 City Negotiators: City Manager and City Attorney Van Bindsbergen 
 Negotiating Party: Kings Community Development Corporation 
  

In the event that not all the items on the closed session agenda have been deliberated in the time provided, the City 
Council may continue the closed session at the end of the regularly scheduled Council Meeting. 

 
 

Please silence all electronic devices as a courtesy to those in attendance.  Thank you. 

 
7:30 pm REGULAR SESSION 

 
a. CALL TO ORDER 
b. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
c. INVOCATION 
d. CLOSED SESSION REPORT(S) 
 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT

This time is reserved for members of the audience to address the City Council/Agency Board on items of interest that are not on 
the Agenda and are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Council/Agency Board.  It is recommended that speakers limit their 
comments to between 3 to 5 minutes each and it is requested that no comments be made during this period on items on the 
Agenda.  Members of the public wishing to address the Council/Agency Board on items on the Agenda should notify the 
Mayor/Chairman when that Agenda item is called.  The Council/Agency Board is prohibited by law from taking any action on 
matters discussed that are not on the Agenda, and no adverse conclusions should be drawn if the Council/Agency Board does not 
respond to public comment at this time.   Speakers are asked to please use the microphone, and provide their name.  Prior to 
addressing the Council/Agency Board, any handouts to be provided to City Clerk/Board Clerk who will distribute to Council/Agency 
Board and appropriate staff. 
 

 
 

CEREMONIAL / PRESENTATIONS – Section 1 
No Ceremonial / Presentations 
 

Items denoted with a     are Redevelopment Successor Agency items and will be acted upon by the Redevelopment 
Successor Agency Board.  Agendas for all City Council/Redevelopment Successor Agency meetings are posted at least 
72 hours prior to the meeting at the City Hall, 119 Fox St., Written communications from the public for the agenda must 
be received by Administrative Services no less than seven (7) days prior to the meeting date.  The City of Lemoore 
complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA of 1990).  The Council Chamber is accessible to the physically 
disabled.   If you need special assistance, please call (559) 924-6705, at least 4 days prior to the meeting. 
 
All items listed under Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one motion.  For discussion 
of any Consent Item, it will be made a part of the Regular Agenda at the request of any member of the City Council or any 
person in the audience. 

 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR – Section 2 
 
2-1 Approval – Minutes – Regular Meeting – June 2, 2015 
2-2 Approval – Warrant Register 14-15 – June 12, 2015 
2-3 Approval – Notice of Rejection – Claim for Ross Cox 
2-4 Approval – Management Agreement – Tom Ringer Golf (Agreement to be provided at 
 Council meeting) 
2-5 Approval – Lemoore Golf Course Fiscal Year 2014-2015 Operating Budget  
2-6 Approval – Bid Award – Construction of Street Improvements and Irrigation 

Pipeline Improvements at Cinnamon Municipal Complex 
 
 



 
PUBLIC HEARINGS – Section 3 

 
3-1 Adoption of 2015-2016 City Operations and Maintenance Budget – Resolution 2015-

10 (Hoggard) 
 
 

 
NEW BUSINESS – Section 4 

 
4-1 Approval – Appointment and Approval of Employment Agreement for New City 

Manager. (Agreement to be provided at Council meeting) 
4-2 Approval – Recommendation and Approval for Acting City Manager (Hoggard) 
4-3 Report and Recommendation – Paid Sick Leave Policy Pursuant to the Healthy 

Workplace Healthy Family Act of 2014 for Unrepresented Part-Time Employees 
(Austin) 

4-4 Report and Recommendation – City Planner – Quad Knopf Contract Planning 
Services for 2015-2016 (Holwell) 

4-5 Report and Recommendation – Agreement for City Engineering Services – Quad 
Knopf (Rivera) 

4-6 Report and Recommendation – First Reading – Amendments to 7-7C-2 of the 
Lemoore Municipal Code Relating to allowing water connection from outside the 
City limits 

4-7 Report and Recommendation – Reconsideration of Opterra Energy Services 
Change Order – Solar Project (Hoggard) 

4-8 Approval – Resolution 2015-09 A Resolution Of The Lemoore City Council 
Approving Changes In Wages And Benefits For The Non-Represented Employees 
Of The City 

 
 

DEPARTMENT AND CITY MANAGER REPORTS – Section 5 
 
5-1 Department Reports 
5-2 City Manager Reports 
 

 
CITY COUNCIL REPORTS AND REQUESTS – Section 6 

 
6-1 City Council Reports / Requests 

 
 

ADJOURNMENT
NOTICE: Pursuant to Government Code §54954.3(a), public comments may be directed to the legislative body concerning any 
item contained on the agenda for this meeting before or during consideration of the item.  Those wishing to address Council on an 
item shall be limited to between 3-5 minutes and if a large group, the Mayor may request that individuals provide only new 
information not presented by another person. 
 
Any writing or documents provided to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for 
public inspection at the City Clerk’s Counter at City Hall located at 119 Fox Street, Lemoore, CA during normal business hours.  In 
addition, most documents will be posted on the City’s website at www.lemoore.com.  

 
Tentative Future Agenda Items 

July 7th 
SS – Governor’s Exec. Order & Water Bond: Strategies for the Drought (Joyner) 
SS - Annexation of Property West of 17th Avenue (Rivera) 
LLMD/PFMD Intent to Levy Resolution (Joyner) 
15/16 Salary Schedule Resolution (Austin) 



Amend #3 to GASE MOU (Austin) 
LLMD/PFMD Intent to Levy Resolutions (Joyner/Rivera) 
 
July 21st 
PH – LLMD/PFMD Levy Resolutions (Joyner/Rivera) 

 
PUBLIC NOTIFICATION 

 
I, Marisa Lourenco, Deputy City Clerk for the City of Lemoore, declare under penalty of perjury that I posted 
the above City Council/ Redevelopment Successor Agency Agenda for the meeting of June 16, 2015 at 
City Hall, 119 Fox Street, Lemoore, CA on June 12, 2015. 
 
 
          //s//     
Marisa Lourenco 
Deputy City Clerk 



‘In God We Trust’ 

Mayor 
Lois Wynne 

Mayor Pro Tem 

  Public Works 
Planning Services 

 
711 W. Cinnamon Drive  

Lemoore, CA  93245 
Phone (559) 924-6740 
Fax  (559) 924-6708 

Jeff Chedester 
Council Members 

Ray Madrigal 
Eddie Neal 

William Siegel 
 

                         City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM SS-1
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Steve Brandt, City Planner  

Date: June 16, 2015  

Subject: Water Service to County Club Estates Neighborhood 
 

 

 
Discussion 
 
On June 2, 2015, the City Council heard from Mr. Riley Jones, a homeowner in the 
Country Club Estates neighborhood who is in need of emergency hookup to the City 
water system because of a failing private well.  This neighborhood was built in County 
jurisdiction east of 18th Street and north of Iona Avenue, and has both private wells and 
septic tank / leach lines systems on each parcel.  At the Council meeting, the Council 
directed staff to take the steps to allow Mr. Jones an emergency hookup to the City 
water system, and to bring back additional information to Council about providing water 
service to the entire neighborhood.  This staff report discusses the latter direction. 
 
Emergency water hookup of properties outside the City Limits requires approval of both 
the City Council and of the Kings County Local Agency Formation Commission 
(LAFCo.)  Staff’s understanding after speaking to Mr. Greg Gatzka, the LAFCo 
Executive Officer, is that an emergency water hookup would be approved, with the 
condition that the City move forward on formally requesting annexation of the property 
in the near future. 
 
If the City were to move forward with an annexation, from the City’s point of view as an 
urban services provider, it would make the most sense to include the entire 
neighborhood in the annexation.  Water lines could be built in the Country Club Estates 
streets and then homeowners could connect when they choose and were ready to pay 
the hookup costs and start paying monthly water bills.  However, besides the hookup 
costs and monthly water bills, there would also be the initial cost to install water lines in 
the street and to process the annexation. 
 
The appropriate method to pay for the water lines and annexation costs would be to 
establish an assessment district that would charge the property owners for the costs 
over time.  The assessment would be placed on the property tax bill.  It should be noted 



‘In God We Trust’ 

that this can only be done after a vote of the property owners with over 50% of the 
ballots that are returned in favor of the assessment.  So it is important to know the 
preference of the neighborhood before starting the process. 
 
Last month, City staff sent a survey to the 32 property owners in the neighborhood.  Of 
the 13 that were returned, there were 12 that indicated an interest in hooking up to the 
City water system.  Staff is planning a neighborhood meeting in the near future to 
explain the options available, to answer questions, and to get more information on the 
property owners’ preferences. 
 
The cost to install water lines in the Country Club Estates neighborhood is estimated at 
$500,000.  The cost to prepare applications and process an annexation and an 
assessment district is estimated at $50,000, including City staff time and expense and 
LAFCo fees.  $550,000 divided by the 32 properties in the neighborhood results in an 
estimated cost of $17,188 per property.  If the process continues forward to a formal 
vote, a more detailed estimate will be made, and the exact amount will be clearly 
defined on the ballot.  Until that time, Staff recommends that this amount be used in any 
contracts for emergency water hookups, such as the one likely to be made with Mr. 
Jones. 
 
Since the water lines that would need to be built for Country Club Estates would be 
placed in Iona Avenue, there is a question of whether the properties on the south side of 
Iona Avenue should also be included in the proposed annexation and assessment 
district.  If they were not included, it could later be argued that they now have access to 
water lines without having to pay their fair share.  Staff is looking for direction from the 
Council about whether to start including them in the discussions with the neighborhood.  
Including them in the discussions does not mean that they definitely would be included 
in an annexation; it only means we would invite them to the neighborhood meeting and 
ask their opinions.  They were not included in the survey that was sent out.  There are 
10 affected properties, 7 with homes on them.  Including them would not increase the 
costs, but would increase the number of properties sharing in the cost from 32 to 42, so 
the cost per property would be decreased to an estimated $13,096. 
 
Another question that has been asked since the last Council meeting is whether to also 
install sewer lines at the same time that water lines are installed. While sewer disposal 
is not a critical issue like water right now, if the neighborhood is to be annexed it would 
make sense for the City to require that the neighborhood be upgraded to City standards.  
The cost of installing sewer lines has not been estimated.  Staff is looking for direction 
from Council about whether to start investigating potential sewer line construction at the 
same time as water line construction.  It should be noted that although it is the City’s 
policy that new homes in the City hook up to City sewer, the Sippel Estates 
neighborhood to the north of County Club Estates is inside the City Limits and has water 
service, but not sewer service.  So there is not a clear precedent to follow. 
 
 
 



‘In God We Trust’ 

 
 
 
Budget Impact 
 
If the neighborhood were to vote for the assessment then the water lines could be 
extended and the annexation could be processed at no cost to the City because the 
property owners would reimburse the City through payments to the assessment district.   
 
If the neighborhood votes against the assessment then the water lines would not be 
built, and City would not recoup the administrative costs expended (estimated at up to 
$50,000) prior to the time the assessment was voted down. 
 
Recommendation 
 
It is recommended that the City Council: 

 Direct staff to continue with plans to hold a neighborhood meeting, and 

 Report back to Council on the outcome of the neighborhood meeting, and  

 Direct that, in the event of an emergency water hookup situation, the contract 
with the property owner include a fee of $17,188 to cover future water line, 
annexation and assessment costs, with an agreement that either an additional 
amount would be either paid or refunded based on the actual assessment 
amount that is determined prior to the vote on the assessment, and 

 Direct staff whether to include or exclude sewer service lines in the discussions 
of the planned improvements that would be subject to an assessment and 
annexation, and 

 Direct staff whether to include or exclude the 10 properties on the south side of 
Iona Avenue in the discussions of planned improvements that would be subject 
to an assessment and annexation. 

 
 
 
 



“In God We Trust” 

 
Mayor 

Lois Wynne  Office of the 
City Manager 

 
119 Fox Street 

Lemoore, CA  93245 
Phone (559) 924-6700 

Fax (559) 924-9003 
 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Jeff Chedester 

Council Members 
Ray Madrigal 
Eddie Neal 

William Siegel 

                            City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM SS-2
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Ron Hoggard, Interim City Manager  

Date: June 4, 2015 Meeting Date: June 16, 2015 

Subject: 
Reconsideration of Opterra Energy Services Change Order – Solar 
Project 

 
Discussion:  
The Opterra Energy Services Change Order – Solar Project was on the April 7, 2015 
agenda as a Study Session item and then brought back to the Regular Session as a 
Consent Calendar item.  The item was approved on the Consent Calendar as 
presented. 
 
On April 21, 2015, Council Member Siegel requested the item be brought back before 
Council in order to amend the motion.  Council approved the motion to amend the 
previously made motion on the Opterra Energy Services Change Order. 
 
On May 19, 2015, Council Member Siegel requested additional information and asked 
that the item be brought back. The packet information from the 19th can be viewed from 
the packet of that date.  
 
The item is now back before you for discussion at the study session and for 
consideration at the regular meeting.  Daniel Waldo and Jonathan Brown from Opterra 
will be in attendance to answers any questions that you may have. 
 
The City Attorney will lead the discussion from staff at the meeting and may provide 
additional information as needed. 
 
Budget Impact 
The cost of the change order is $135,000.  The cost will be split with $68,512.50 being 
paid by building impact fees (additional cost for the CMC parking lot) and $66,487.50 
being split among the Well #4 benefitting accounts ($40,557.10 Water, $19,946.10 
Sewer and $5,983.83 General Fund). 
 
Recommendation: 
Study Session - At the study session this item is provided for discussion only, with no 
action to be taken. 
 



“In God We Trust” 

Regular Session - That the City Council review, discuss, provide direction to Staff and/ 
or by motion approve or amend the change order. 



1 
 

Item 2-1 
 
 
 

June 2, 2015 Minutes 
Study Session Joint City Council / 

Redevelopment Successor Agency Meeting 
 

CALL TO ORDER: 
At 4:30 p.m. the meeting was called to order. 

 
ROLL CALL: Mayor/Chairman: WYNNE 
 Mayor Pro Tem/Vice Chair: CHEDESTER 

 Council/Board Members: MADRIGAL, NEAL, SIEGEL 
 
City Staff and contract employees present: Interim City Manager Hoggard; City Attorney Van 
Bindsbergen; Parks and Recreation Director Simonson; Finance Director Silva; Interim Public 
Works/Planning Director Rivera; Fire Chief Gibson; Superintendent Giron; Superintendent 
Greenlee; Superintendent Jimenez; City Clerk Venegas. 
 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT

There was no public comment. 
 

 
STUDY SESSION – Section SS

 
SS-1 2015-2016 Operations and Maintenance Budget - Proposed 
 
Interim City Manager Hoggard and Finance Director Silva reviewed with the Council and 
department heads the proposed 2015-2016 City Operations and Maintenance Budget department 
by department. 
 
Spoke: 
Connie Wlaschin, Tom Reed, Tom Ringer and Michael Montalbano 
 
The Council was informed the budget will be placed on the June 16, 2015 agenda for adoption. 
 

 
ADJOURNMENT

Mayor Wynne stated Council would go into Closed Session after the Regular Meeting. 
At 7:12 p.m. Council adjourned. 
 
 
 
 

June 2, 2015 Minutes 
Regular Joint City Council / 

Redevelopment Successor Agency Meeting 
 



2 
 

CALL TO ORDER: 
At 7:30 p.m. the meeting was called to order. 
 

ROLL CALL: Mayor/Chairman: WYNNE 
 Mayor Pro Tem/Vice Chair: CHEDESTER 

 Council/Board Members: MADRIGAL, NEAL, SIEGEL 
 
City Staff and contract employees present:  Interim City Manager Hoggard; City Attorney Van 
Bindsbergen; Parks and Recreation Director Simonson; Finance Director Silva; Interim Public 
Works/Planning Director Rivera; Police Chief Smith; Quad Knopf Engineer Joyner; City Clerk 
Venegas. 
 
Due to time constraints with Study Session, Closed Session has not been held and it will be 
moved to the end of the Regular Session. 
 

 
ANNOUNCEMENT from Closed Session 

There was no announcement. 
 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
Tom Reed said some months ago he asked about the potential liability to the city because of 
direct access to the Golf Course from residents in holes 10-16.  From his recollection, the City 
was supposed to work with the HOA to remedy the situation.  There are approximately 18 
residents that he is aware of that have unauthorized access to the Golf Course through their 
backyard gate. 
 
Holly Blair stated she would appreciate if the flag salute could be done properly by saying, “Ready 
Salute.” 
 

Items denoted with a     are Redevelopment Successor Agency items and will be acted upon by the Redevelopment 
Successor Agency Board.  Agendas for all City Council/Redevelopment Successor Agency meetings are posted at least 
72 hours prior to the meeting at the City Hall, 119 Fox St., Written communications from the public for the agenda must 
be received by Administrative Services no less than seven (7) days prior to the meeting date.  The City of Lemoore 
complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA of 1990).  The Council Chambers is accessible to the physically 
disabled.   If you need special assistance, please call (559) 924-6705, at least 4 days prior to the meeting. 
 
All items listed under Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one motion.  For discussion 
of any Consent Item, it will be made a part of the Regular Agenda at the request of any member of the City Council or any 
person in the audience. 

 
 

CEREMONIAL / PRESENTATIONS – Section 1 
There were no Ceremonial / Presentations. 
 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR – Section 2 

 
Per the City Attorney, Mayor Wynne pulled Item 2-6 from the Consent Calendar. 
 
2-6 Approval – Adoption of Resolution 2015-09 Changing the Wages and Benefits for 

the Non-Represented Employees of the City 

 



3 
 

Motion by Council Member Chedester, seconded by Council Member Neal, to table Consent 
Calendar Item 2-6 to the next meeting. 
 
Ayes: Chedester, Neal, Madrigal, Siegel, Wynne 
 
2-1 Approval – Minutes – Regular Meeting – May 19, 2015 
2-2 Approval – Warrant Register 14-15 – May 29, 2015 
2-3 Approval – Second Reading – Amendments to 5-1-24, 5-1-25  and 5-1-28 of the 
 Lemoore Municipal Code Relating to Dog License Requirements to Include 
 Spay/Neuter – Ordinance 2015-03 
2-4 Approval – Budget Adjustment – Heritage Park Basketball Resurfacing Project 
2-5 Approval – Warrant Register 14-15 – Successor Agency Pursuant to Enforceable 
 Obligation Payment Schedule – May 29, 2015 
2-6 Approval – Adoption of Resolution 2015-09 Changing the Wages and Benefits for 

the Non-Represented Employees of the City (Resolution to be provided at Council meeting) 

 
Council Member Siegel requested Item 2-3 be pulled from the Consent Calendar for separate 
consideration. 
 
Motion by Council Member Chedester, seconded by Council Member Madrigal, to approve the 
Consent Calendar as presented, excluding Items 2-3 and 2-6. 
 
Ayes: Chedester, Madrigal, Neal, Siegel, Wynne 
 
2-3 Approval – Second Reading – Amendments to 5-1-24, 5-1-25  and 5-1-28 of the 
 Lemoore Municipal Code Relating to Dog License Requirements to Include 
 Spay/Neuter – Ordinance 2015-03 
 
Spoke: 
Tom Reed, Mariela O’Leary, Karen Ormsby, Kings County Resident, Christy Sharp, Jamie Barela, 
Carrie Martin Higgins (President of Kings Co. SPCA) and Connie Wlaschin 
 
Motion by Council Member Madrigal, seconded by Council Member Chedester, to approve 
Consent Calendar Item 2-3. 
 
Ayes: Madrigal, Chedester, Neal, Wynne 
Noes: Siegel 
 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS – Section 3 

 
3-1 Declaring Public Nuisance and Ordering Weed Abatement – Resolution 2015-08 

(Gibson/Perez) 
 
Public hearing opened at 8:13 p.m.  No comments.  Public hearing closed at 8:13 p.m. 
 
Consensus by Council to direct staff to proceed with the abatement process. 
 

 
NEW BUSINESS – Section 4 

 



4 
 

4-1 Report and Recommendation – Appointment – Downton Merchants Advisory 
Committee 

 
Mayor Wynne, with the consensus of Council Members Siegel and Madrigal, appointed John 
Pereira to the Downtown Merchants Advisory Committee for a one year term expiring December 
31, 2015. 
 
4-2 Report and Recommendation – Request by Mr. Riley Jones for Emergency Hookup 

to City Water – 285 Hotchkiss Drive, Lemoore a Residence in Country Club Estates 
 
Mr. Riley Jones spoke.  He also provided to Council a jar of his well water for visual inspection. 
 
Motion by Council Member Chedester, seconded by Council Member Madrigal, to change the 
Ordinance for connection to city water and bring back to Council as quickly as possible. 
 
Ayes: Chedester, Madrigal, Neal, Siegel, Wynne 
 

 
DEPARTMENT AND CITY MANAGER REPORTS – Section 5 

 
5-1 Department Reports 
 
Quad Knopf Engineer Joyner informed Council bid openings for the Cinnamon undergrounding 
came in high.  The project will be awarded at the June 16th meeting with the intent to negotiate 
with the contractor.  Interim Public Works/Planning Director Rivera said the very basics could be 
done with this project. 
 
City Attorney Van Bindsbergen stated the zoning for Elite Acid was correct.  The DMX3 zone is 
appropriate for the business.   
 
Interim Public Works/Planning Director Rivera reminded everyone the Gas Company is starting 
their project on Hanford-Armona Road.  It will take approximately 14 weeks.  Rivera incorrectly 
reported at the last meeting 2,000 meters need to be installed.  The correct statement is 2,000 
meters have not been replaced with touch sensors. 
 
City Attorney Van Bindsbergen stated the contract for Tom Ringer is still being negotiated.  It will 
come before Council at the next meeting. 
 
5-2 City Manager Reports 
 
City Manager Hoggard reported City Manager recruitment has been narrowed down to four 
applicants and it will be discussed in Closed Session. 
 

 
CITY COUNCIL REPORTS AND REQUESTS – Section 6 

 
6-1 City Council Reports / Requests 
 
Council Member Neal thanked Koinonia, Parks and Recreation Director Simonson and the City 
Manager for working with Koinonia and other churches to clean the garden and Heritage Park.  
Everyone did a great job and thank you for the support. 
 



5 
 

Council Member Siegel noticed Opterra will be brought back on a future agenda.  He asked if the 
additional information could be given out as quickly as possible.  He said thank you to City Staff 
and Budget Committee for making the budget process as painless as possible as well as 
transparent.   
 
Mayor Pro Tem Chedester concurred with Siegel regarding the budget process.  He also said 
thank you to Finance Director Silva for spending many hours on the budget and stated she is very 
valuable to the City of Lemoore. 
 
Mayor Wynne was invited to the Naval Reserve Centennial Celebration this Saturday on base.  
She invited another Council Member to attend. 
 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT – CLOSED SESSION ITEMS 

 
Connie Wlaschin asked that the people who are buying the property not be given a forgivable 
loan.  She also asked if there was a conflict of interest for Council Member Siegel as she 
understands he is in business with a Vorhees family member with the Hub.  Council Member 
Siegel informed all there is no conflict of interest. 
 
At 8:47 p.m. Council adjourned to Closed Session. 

 
CLOSED SESSION

 

1. Conference with Real Property Negotiators, Government Code Section 54956.8 
 Property:  Vacant Land in the Lemoore Industrial Park; Lot 15 (3.04± Acres) - APN 

024051-019 and Lot 16 (3.04± Acres) - APN 024-051-018 
 City Negotiators: City Manager and City Attorney Van Bindsbergen 
 Negotiating Party:  Tom Vorhees 
 Under Negotiation:  Price and Terms of Payment  
2. Public Employee Appointment, Government Code Section 54957.6 

Title:  City Manager 
3. Conference with Labor Negotiator, Government Code Section 54957.6 

Agency Negotiator:  Ron Hoggard and/or Jenell Van Bindsbergen 
Employee Organization:  Unrepresented Employees, City Manager and Interim 
City Manager 

 
 

ADJOURNMENT
There was nothing to report out from Closed Session. 
 
At 10:01 p.m. the meeting adjourned. 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
             
Mary J. Venegas     Lois Wynne 
City Clerk      Mayor 



PEI PAGE NUMBER:    1
DATE: 06/12/2015 CITY OF LEMOORE AUDIT11
TIME: 08:37:32 EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch like ’%061615’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 12/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT − 4213 − CITY MANAGER

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR BUDGET EXPENDITURES ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES
12/15 06/12/15 21 06052015     6533 FRANCISCO VELOZ 315.00 .00 WELDING CERTIFICATE
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES .00 315.00 .00

4340     UTILITIES
12/15 06/12/15 21 70013MAY2015 1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO 281.61 .00 COMM SERVICES
12/15 06/12/15 21 000006627260 5516 AT&T 109.32 .00 559−925−8544
12/15 06/12/15 21 000006627262 5516 AT&T 11.82 .00 559−925−9790
TOTAL    UTILITIES .00 402.75 .00

TOTAL    CITY MANAGER .00 717.75 .00

RUN DATE 06/12/2015 TIME 08:37:37 PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING

Item 2-2



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    2
DATE: 06/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 08:37:32                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch like ’%061615’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 12/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4215 − FINANCE                  

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
12/15 06/12/15 21             2−990−00032  0157 FEDERAL EXPRESS                  34.75               .00 OVERNIGHT MAILING        
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00             34.75               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
12/15 06/12/15 21             70013MAY2015 1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                104.69               .00 COMM SERVICES            
12/15 06/12/15 21             000006627262 5516 AT&T                             14.78               .00 559−925−9790             
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            119.47               .00

4389     BANK FEES AND CHARGES    
12/15 06/12/15 21             MAY2015      6104 US BANK                          22.00               .00 MAINTENANCE FEES         
TOTAL    BANK FEES AND CHARGES                                   .00             22.00               .00

TOTAL    FINANCE                                                 .00            176.22               .00

         RUN DATE 06/12/2015 TIME 08:37:37                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    3
DATE: 06/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 08:37:32                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch like ’%061615’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 12/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4220 − MAINTENANCE DIVISION     

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
12/15 06/12/15 21             77990        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                188.61               .00 BATTERY−LITHIUM          
12/15 06/12/15 21             619−36335995 1547 UNISOURCE                       131.74               .00 TOILET TISSUE            
12/15 06/12/15 21             78137        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                175.67               .00 GLOVE VALVE/DIAPHRM      
12/15 06/12/15 21             154680501    6081 ALL AMERICAN POO                 11.81               .00 TAYLOR DPD POWDER        
12/15 06/12/15 21             154680502    6081 ALL AMERICAN POO                 24.30               .00 CHLORINE/PHENOL RED#4    
12/15 06/12/15 21             7459−118629  0314 LEMOORE AUTO SUP                 30.70               .00 UTILITY V−BELTS          
12/15 06/12/15 21             7459−118911  0314 LEMOORE AUTO SUP                 18.26               .00 SOCKET                   
12/15 06/12/15 21             A203583      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                139.74               .00 CUTT/MTL WHEEL           
12/15 06/12/15 21             A205229      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 53.44               .00 ELBOWS/COUPLERS          
12/15 06/12/15 21             B227719      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  3.18               .00 NUTS/BOLTS               
12/15 06/12/15 21             B227785      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  4.61               .00 OFFSET CONNECTOR         
12/15 06/12/15 21             B227804      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 10.64               .00 DPLX OUTLET              
12/15 06/12/15 21             B227808      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 15.10               .00 DPLX OUTLETS             
12/15 06/12/15 21             A203953      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  9.13               .00 BLUE PVC CEMENT          
12/15 06/12/15 21             B226772      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 25.78               .00 GAL SIMPLE GREEN         
12/15 06/12/15 21             A204493      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 30.08               .00 BLK REFUSE CAN           
12/15 06/12/15 21             A204690      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                124.65               .00 TAPE/KNIFE/CLAW BAR      
12/15 06/12/15 21             A204705      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 94.01               .00 CARP PENCILS/TOOL BIN    
12/15 06/12/15 21             B227167      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 41.90               .00 SPIR BULB/LAMP           
12/15 06/12/15 21             B227179      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 39.29               .00 FLASHLIGHT/BITS          
12/15 06/12/15 21             A204793      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  2.99               .00 FASTNER PK               
12/15 06/12/15 21             B227232      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 10.74               .00 SWIVMOUNT LGT CONTROL    
12/15 06/12/15 21             B227260      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 13.08               .00 OUT BOX/BLNK COVER       
12/15 06/12/15 21             B227262      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  2.56               .00 CONNECTORS               
12/15 06/12/15 21             B227467      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 10.74               .00 BASIC COVER              
12/15 06/12/15 21             7459−117597  0314 LEMOORE AUTO SUP                 15.57               .00 PLASTIC BLADE/SCRAPER    
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00          1,228.32               .00

4230     REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES    
12/15 06/12/15 21             77989        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                 36.22               .00 TEE/EL/CPLNG/SLILP FI    
12/15 06/12/15 21             77769        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                 61.81               .00 SOLENOID−24 VAC          
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES                                   .00             98.03               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
12/15 06/12/15 21             1501363650   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       72.00               .00 UNIFORMS                 
12/15 06/12/15 21             1501363651   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       11.55               .00 MATS                     
12/15 06/12/15 21             1501368305   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       11.55               .00 MAT                      
12/15 06/12/15 21             1501368303   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       74.00               .00 UNIFORMS/MATS            
12/15 06/12/15 21             1501373011   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       11.55               .00 MATS                     
12/15 06/12/15 21             1501373009   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       74.00               .00 UNIFORMS/TOWELS          
12/15 06/12/15 21             1810         6506 GOPHER GRABBERS                 150.00               .00 MONTHLY SERVICE          
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00            404.65               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
12/15 06/12/15 21             000006627258 5516 AT&T                              2.61               .00 559−925−2806             
12/15 06/12/15 21             MAY157106804 0363 P G & E                       2,331.87               .00 05/01/15−06/01/15        

         RUN DATE 06/12/2015 TIME 08:37:38                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    4
DATE: 06/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 08:37:32                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch like ’%061615’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 12/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4220 − MAINTENANCE DIVISION     

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4340     UTILITIES                 (cont’d)
12/15 06/12/15 21             MAY156096369 0363 P G & E                       7,549.17               .00 05/01/15−06/01/15        
12/15 06/12/15 21             70013MAY2015 1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                 90.69               .00 COMM SERVICES            
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00          9,974.34               .00

4350     REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES    
12/15 06/12/15 21             26187        0520 WINDTAMER TARPS                  98.00               .00 BLUE PAD REPAIR          
12/15 06/12/15 21             24456        0388 REED ELECTRIC                   575.93               .00 REPAIR AIR COMPRSSR      
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES                                   .00            673.93               .00

TOTAL    MAINTENANCE DIVISION                                    .00         12,379.27               .00

         RUN DATE 06/12/2015 TIME 08:37:38                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    5
DATE: 06/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 08:37:32                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch like ’%061615’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 12/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4221 − POLICE                   

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
12/15 06/12/15 21             124200       6374 COOK’S COMMUNICA                283.28               .00 SOFTWARE/CABLE           
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00            283.28               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
12/15 06/12/15 21             269232       6377 THE CRISCOM COMP              1,652.00               .00 DISPATCH CENTER/JUNE     
12/15 06/12/15 21             MAY SERVICES 0772 COUNTY OF KINGS               4,252.33               .00 TECH COMM SERVICES       
12/15 06/12/15 21             06052015     0057 RICHARD A BLAK,                 350.00               .00 PRE−EMPLOY PSYCH TEST    
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          6,254.33               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
12/15 06/12/15 21             70013MAY2015 1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO              1,528.47               .00 COMM SERVICES            
12/15 06/12/15 21             9745787389   0116 VERIZON WIRELESS                940.89               .00 APR/MAY SVCS             
12/15 06/12/15 21             000006627259 5516 AT&T                            317.69               .00 559−925−6800             
12/15 06/12/15 21             000006627257 5516 AT&T                             90.97               .00 559−925−1363             
12/15 06/12/15 21             000006612907 5516 AT&T                            189.99               .00 234−267−8470             
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00          3,068.01               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES         
12/15 06/12/15 21             338047       1817 C.A. REDING COMP                424.98               .00 PD PRINTERS              
12/15 06/12/15 21             279068209    5842 U.S.  BANCORP EQ                830.61               .00 PD PRINTERS              
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00          1,255.59               .00

4840     AUTOS AND TRUCKS         
12/15 06/12/15 21             5548         2956 JONES COLLISION               1,190.96               .00 REFINISH HOOD            
12/15 06/12/15 21 6878    −01 4314         6398 DURATECH USA, IN              3,940.00         −3,940.00 LAPTOP/TABLET PC         
12/15 06/12/15 21 6878    −02 4314         6398 DURATECH USA, IN                777.95           −777.95 VEHICLE DOCK             
12/15 06/12/15 21 6878    −03 4314         6398 DURATECH USA, IN                451.00           −451.00 MOUNTING PACKAGE         
12/15 06/12/15 21 6878    −04 4314         6398 DURATECH USA, IN                155.00           −155.00 EXTERNAL ANTENNA         
12/15 06/12/15 21 6878    −05 4314         6398 DURATECH USA, IN                399.30           −399.30 SALES TAX                
12/15 06/12/15 21 6878    −06 4314         6398 DURATECH USA, IN                  3.00             −3.00 CA EWF                   
12/15 06/12/15 21 6878    −07 4314         6398 DURATECH USA, IN                 40.00            −40.00 SHIPPING & HANDLING      
TOTAL    AUTOS AND TRUCKS                                        .00          6,957.21         −5,766.25

TOTAL    POLICE                                                  .00         17,818.42         −5,766.25

         RUN DATE 06/12/2015 TIME 08:37:38                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    6
DATE: 06/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 08:37:32                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch like ’%061615’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 12/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4222 − FIRE                     

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
12/15 06/12/15 21 6908    −01 057935       2161 CASCADE FIRE                    864.00           −864.00 DELUXE H W/VELCRO XL     
12/15 06/12/15 21 6908    −02 057935       2161 CASCADE FIRE                    264.00           −264.00 SUSPENDERS 8 PT BLACK    
12/15 06/12/15 21 6908    −03 057935       2161 CASCADE FIRE                    345.00           −345.00 BOOT−HAIX FIRE HUNTER EXT
12/15 06/12/15 21 6908    −04 057935       2161 CASCADE FIRE                    345.00           −345.00 BOOT HAIX FIRE−10.5 HUNTE
12/15 06/12/15 21 6908    −05 057935       2161 CASCADE FIRE                    345.00           −345.00 BOOT HAIX FIRE−11 HUNTER 
12/15 06/12/15 21 6908    −06 057935       2161 CASCADE FIRE                    245.00           −245.00 BOOT AIRPOWER−10.5 XR1   
12/15 06/12/15 21 6908    −07 057935       2161 CASCADE FIRE                    245.00           −245.00 BOOT AIRPOWER 11.5 XR2   
12/15 06/12/15 21 6908    −08 057935       2161 CASCADE FIRE                    245.00           −245.00 BOOT AIRPOWER−12 XR3     
12/15 06/12/15 21 6908    −09 057935       2161 CASCADE FIRE                    177.00           −177.00 RED HAT WILDFIRE W/RATCHE
12/15 06/12/15 21 6908    −10 057935       2161 CASCADE FIRE                    126.00           −126.00 SHROUD FACE NECK−SUPER DE
12/15 06/12/15 21 6908    −11 057935       2161 CASCADE FIRE                     99.00            −99.00 GOGGLE ESS WILDLAND      
12/15 06/12/15 21 6908    −12 057935       2161 CASCADE FIRE                  1,083.00         −1,083.00 PBI/KELVAR GOLD COAT     
12/15 06/12/15 21 6908    −13 057935       2161 CASCADE FIRE                  2,166.00         −2,166.00 PBI/KELVAR GOLD COAT     
12/15 06/12/15 21 6908    −14 057935       2161 CASCADE FIRE                     59.40            −59.40 3" S/L LETTERS           
12/15 06/12/15 21 6908    −15 057935       2161 CASCADE FIRE                  1,594.00         −1,594.00 PBI/KELVAR GOLD COAT     
12/15 06/12/15 21 6908    −16 057935       2161 CASCADE FIRE                    797.00           −797.00 PBI/KELVAR GOLD COAT     
12/15 06/12/15 21 6908    −17 057935       2161 CASCADE FIRE                    215.00           −215.00 COAT TECASAFE−YELLOW     
12/15 06/12/15 21 6908    −18 057935       2161 CASCADE FIRE                    215.00           −215.00 COAT TECASAFE−YELL 46    
12/15 06/12/15 21 6908    −19 057935       2161 CASCADE FIRE                    215.00           −215.00 COAT TECASAFE YELL 56    
12/15 06/12/15 21 6908    −20 057935       2161 CASCADE FIRE                     63.00            −63.00 3" BLK LETTERS LVFD      
12/15 06/12/15 21 6908    −21 057935       2161 CASCADE FIRE                    145.00           −145.00 PANT TECASAFE YELL 38X32 
12/15 06/12/15 21 6908    −22 057935       2161 CASCADE FIRE                    145.00           −145.00 PANT TECASAFE YELL 36X30 
12/15 06/12/15 21 6908    −23 057935       2161 CASCADE FIRE                    749.81           −749.81 TAX                      
12/15 06/12/15 21             7459−117423  0314 LEMOORE AUTO SUP                 63.40               .00 POLY TARP                
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00         10,810.61        −10,747.21

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
12/15 06/12/15 21             1501373021   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       52.59               .00 UNIFORM/TWLS/MATS        
12/15 06/12/15 21             1501368314   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       22.12               .00 UNIFORM/TWLS/MATS        
12/15 06/12/15 21             1501363660   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       52.59               .00 TOWELS/MATS              
12/15 06/12/15 21             052015       2956 JONES COLLISION               8,270.00               .00 MAY SERVICES             
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          8,397.30               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
12/15 06/12/15 21             000006612910 5516 AT&T                             93.86               .00 234−371−7008             
12/15 06/12/15 21             000006627262 5516 AT&T                              9.85               .00 559−925−9790             
12/15 06/12/15 21             9745787389   0116 VERIZON WIRELESS                164.16               .00 APR/MAY SVCS             
12/15 06/12/15 21             70013MAY2015 1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                133.68               .00 COMM SERVICES            
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            401.55               .00

TOTAL    FIRE                                                    .00         19,609.46        −10,747.21

         RUN DATE 06/12/2015 TIME 08:37:38                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    7
DATE: 06/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 08:37:32                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch like ’%061615’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 12/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4224 − BUILDING INSPECTION      

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4340     UTILITIES                
12/15 06/12/15 21             000006627258 5516 AT&T                              2.61               .00 559−925−2806             
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00              2.61               .00

TOTAL    BUILDING INSPECTION                                     .00              2.61               .00

         RUN DATE 06/12/2015 TIME 08:37:38                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    8
DATE: 06/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 08:37:32                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch like ’%061615’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 12/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4230 − PUBLIC WORKS             

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
12/15 06/12/15 21             80142        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.              3,648.33               .00 GENERAL PLANNING         
12/15 06/12/15 21             80403        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.              1,917.54               .00 APRIL/MAY SERVICES       
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          5,565.87               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
12/15 06/12/15 21             000006627258 5516 AT&T                              3.46               .00 559−925−2806             
12/15 06/12/15 21             000006627262 5516 AT&T                              9.85               .00 559−925−9790             
12/15 06/12/15 21             70013MAY2015 1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                 57.76               .00 COMM SERVICES            
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             71.07               .00

TOTAL    PUBLIC WORKS                                            .00          5,636.94               .00

         RUN DATE 06/12/2015 TIME 08:37:38                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    9
DATE: 06/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 08:37:32                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch like ’%061615’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 12/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4231 − STREETS                  

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
12/15 06/12/15 21             A203938      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 25.76               .00 CHEM NITR GLOVE          
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00             25.76               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
12/15 06/12/15 21             MAY150464835 0363 P G & E                          19.47               .00 05/01/15−06/01/15        
12/15 06/12/15 21             MAY158045532 0363 P G & E                          10.51               .00 05/01/15−06/01/15        
12/15 06/12/15 21             JUN234334669 0363 P G & E                         337.95               .00 APR/MAY SVCS             
12/15 06/12/15 21             JUN15−839922 0363 P G & E                          59.07               .00 APR/MAY SERVICES         
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            427.00               .00

TOTAL    STREETS                                                 .00            452.76               .00

         RUN DATE 06/12/2015 TIME 08:37:38                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   10
DATE: 06/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 08:37:32                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch like ’%061615’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 12/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4242 − RECREATION               

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
12/15 06/12/15 21             103571       2399 DEPARTMENT OF JU                139.00               .00 FINGERPRINTS             
12/15 06/12/15 21             3207         6221 K & K VENDING AN                 85.00               .00 SNACK MACHINE SERVICE    
12/15 06/12/15 21             05202015     5500 ASCAP                           337.29               .00 LICENSE FEE              
12/15 06/12/15 21             25158        6150 CLASSIC SOCCER                  181.68               .00 JERSEYS                  
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00            742.97               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
12/15 06/12/15 21             06102015     6572 JUAN CUEVAS                     343.00               .00 DANCING LESSONS          
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00            343.00               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
12/15 06/12/15 21             70013MAY2015 1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                139.75               .00 COMM SERVICES            
12/15 06/12/15 21             000006627262 5516 AT&T                              5.91               .00 559−925−9790             
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            145.66               .00

TOTAL    RECREATION                                              .00          1,231.63               .00

TOTAL    GENERAL FUND                                            .00         58,025.06        −16,513.46

         RUN DATE 06/12/2015 TIME 08:37:38                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   11
DATE: 06/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 08:37:32                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch like ’%061615’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 12/15

FUND − 028 − CITY GRANTS−  CAP PROJ   
BUDGET UNIT − 4726G − CINNAMON CANAL DR. STUDY 

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4317     CONSTRUCTION/IMPLEMENTA. 
12/15 06/12/15 21             48608        6205 BLAIR, CHURCH &               1,580.00               .00 CINN CANAL PROJECT       
TOTAL    CONSTRUCTION/IMPLEMENTA.                                .00          1,580.00               .00

4318     ENGINEERING/PLANNED DEVEL
12/15 06/12/15 21             80412        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                779.04               .00 CIP#9−CINN CANAL PRJT    
TOTAL    ENGINEERING/PLANNED DEVEL                               .00            779.04               .00

TOTAL    CINNAMON CANAL DR. STUDY                                .00          2,359.04               .00

         RUN DATE 06/12/2015 TIME 08:37:39                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   12
DATE: 06/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 08:37:32                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch like ’%061615’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 12/15

FUND − 028 − CITY GRANTS−  CAP PROJ   
BUDGET UNIT − 4726R − 19 1/2 SIDEWALKS WESTSIDE

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4318     ENGINEERING/PLANNED DEVEL
12/15 06/12/15 21             0014168−IN   6614 PARAGON PARTNERS              1,050.00               .00 CIP10−19 1/2 AVE SIDE    
TOTAL    ENGINEERING/PLANNED DEVEL                               .00          1,050.00               .00

TOTAL    19 1/2 SIDEWALKS WESTSIDE                               .00          1,050.00               .00

TOTAL    CITY GRANTS−  CAP PROJ                                  .00          3,409.04               .00

         RUN DATE 06/12/2015 TIME 08:37:39                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   13
DATE: 06/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 08:37:32                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch like ’%061615’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 12/15

FUND − 029 − GAS TAX  SECTION 2105    
BUDGET UNIT − 4729 − GAS TAX  SECTION 2105    

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4318     ENGINEERING/PLANNED DEVEL
12/15 06/12/15 21             80414        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.              1,765.17               .00 STREET MNTNCE APR/MAY    
12/15 06/12/15 21             80415        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                764.64               .00 ATP GRANT ASSIST−APR     
TOTAL    ENGINEERING/PLANNED DEVEL                               .00          2,529.81               .00

TOTAL    GAS TAX  SECTION 2105                                   .00          2,529.81               .00

TOTAL    GAS TAX  SECTION 2105                                   .00          2,529.81               .00

         RUN DATE 06/12/2015 TIME 08:37:39                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   14
DATE: 06/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 08:37:32                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch like ’%061615’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 12/15

FUND − 034 − GAS TAX SECTION 2103     
BUDGET UNIT − 4734D − STREET OVERLAYS 14/15    

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4318     ENGINEERING/PLANNED DEVEL
12/15 06/12/15 21             80416        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.             17,861.65               .00 CIP#2−STREET OVERLAY     
12/15 06/12/15 21             001056748    0276 KLEINFELDER INC.              2,115.00               .00 CIP 2 OVERLAY            
12/15 06/12/15 21             001060270    0276 KLEINFELDER INC.              6,952.50               .00 CIP 2 OVERLAY            
TOTAL    ENGINEERING/PLANNED DEVEL                               .00         26,929.15               .00

TOTAL    STREET OVERLAYS 14/15                                   .00         26,929.15               .00

TOTAL    GAS TAX SECTION 2103                                    .00         26,929.15               .00

         RUN DATE 06/12/2015 TIME 08:37:39                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   15
DATE: 06/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 08:37:32                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch like ’%061615’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 12/15

FUND − 040 − FLEET MAINTENANCE        
BUDGET UNIT − 4265 − FLEET MAINTENANCE        

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
12/15 06/12/15 21             395054       0252 KINGS AUTO SUPPL                 69.53               .00 PENE OIL                 
12/15 06/12/15 21             C12434       5181 HAAKER EQUIPMENT              1,905.27               .00 HEAT EXCH W/O BAF        
12/15 06/12/15 21             394810       0252 KINGS AUTO SUPPL                  3.71               .00 FUSE                     
12/15 06/12/15 21             394865       0252 KINGS AUTO SUPPL                193.48               .00 WELDING HELMETS          
12/15 06/12/15 21             8156         0634 TERMINAL AIR BRA                302.68               .00 REMAN SHOE KIT           
12/15 06/12/15 21             B227756      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  6.22               .00 RND FELT PAD             
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00          2,480.89               .00

4220CNG  CNG OPERATING SUPPLIES   
12/15 06/12/15 21             315307       0306 LEMOORE HIGH SCH              3,215.05               .00 MAY SLOW FILL            
12/15 06/12/15 21             315307       0306 LEMOORE HIGH SCH                194.42               .00 MAY FAST FILL            
TOTAL    CNG OPERATING SUPPLIES                                  .00          3,409.47               .00

4230     REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES    
12/15 06/12/15 21             1354147      0345 MORGAN & SLATES                  65.85               .00 LYNCH PINS/JACK          
12/15 06/12/15 21             1352313      0345 MORGAN & SLATES                  99.22               .00 HR FLAT 3/16 & 1/4       
12/15 06/12/15 21             3918−238156  6120 O’REILLY AUTO PA                225.70               .00 RADIATOR                 
12/15 06/12/15 21             6887328−00   5379 TURF STAR                       100.40               .00 LH BRAKE CABLE ASM       
12/15 06/12/15 21             6897275−00   5379 TURF STAR                        73.04               .00 BELT−V BANDED            
12/15 06/12/15 21             3146382      1908 BATTERY SYSTEMS                 228.67               .00 BATTERIES                
12/15 06/12/15 21             5034229      2671 KELLER MOTORS                   204.29               .00 ACTUATOR #330            
12/15 06/12/15 21             5034294      2671 KELLER MOTORS                   208.67               .00 SL−N CONTROL #330        
12/15 06/12/15 21             5034127      2671 KELLER MOTORS                   424.63               .00 N−CLUSTER #322           
12/15 06/12/15 21             7459−118732  0314 LEMOORE AUTO SUP                 21.97               .00 STROKE CONTROL/FUSE      
12/15 06/12/15 21             8189         0634 TERMINAL AIR BRA               −419.91               .00 CORE REFUND              
12/15 06/12/15 21             7529         0634 TERMINAL AIR BRA              1,356.28               .00 DRUM/BRAKE SHOE+KIT      
12/15 06/12/15 21             7459−117218  0314 LEMOORE AUTO SUP                 96.34               .00 HOSE/HHC                 
12/15 06/12/15 21             A204898      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 38.97               .00 OUTLET BOX/COVERS        
12/15 06/12/15 21             7459−117981  0314 LEMOORE AUTO SUP                 45.11               .00 DISC PADS                
12/15 06/12/15 21             7459−118014  0314 LEMOORE AUTO SUP                 30.65               .00 HOSE/HHC                 
12/15 06/12/15 21             7459−118477  0314 LEMOORE AUTO SUP                 75.36               .00 HOSE/HHC                 
12/15 06/12/15 21             394884       0252 KINGS AUTO SUPPL                  1.76               .00 PLUG                     
12/15 06/12/15 21             394992       0252 KINGS AUTO SUPPL                 58.04               .00 ELECTRIC FUEL PUMP       
12/15 06/12/15 21             394616       0252 KINGS AUTO SUPPL                 28.15               .00 TRIANGLE                 
12/15 06/12/15 21             394628       0252 KINGS AUTO SUPPL                 55.88               .00 FITTINGS/PIPESEAL        
12/15 06/12/15 21             394705       0252 KINGS AUTO SUPPL                 75.23               .00 SUPPORT                  
12/15 06/12/15 21             14501        6538 FEROMA MOTORSPOR                331.23               .00 TIRES                    
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES                                   .00          3,425.53               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
12/15 06/12/15 21             1501373006   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       39.76               .00 UNIFORMS/TWLS/MATS       
12/15 06/12/15 21             1501363647   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       39.76               .00 UNIFORMS/TOWELS          
12/15 06/12/15 21             1501368300   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       39.76               .00 UNIFORMS/TWLS/MATS       
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00            119.28               .00

4340     UTILITIES                

         RUN DATE 06/12/2015 TIME 08:37:39                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   16
DATE: 06/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 08:37:32                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch like ’%061615’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 12/15

FUND − 040 − FLEET MAINTENANCE        
BUDGET UNIT − 4265 − FLEET MAINTENANCE        

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4340     UTILITIES                
12/15 06/12/15 21             000006627258 5516 AT&T                              2.17               .00 559−925−2806             
12/15 06/12/15 21             70013MAY2015 1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                 49.99               .00 COMM SERVICES            
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             52.16               .00

4350     REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES    
12/15 06/12/15 21             022−49814    5289 CUMMINGS WEST, I                419.10               .00 CLAMP, HOSE              
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES                                   .00            419.10               .00

TOTAL    FLEET MAINTENANCE                                       .00          9,906.43               .00

TOTAL    FLEET MAINTENANCE                                       .00          9,906.43               .00

         RUN DATE 06/12/2015 TIME 08:37:39                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   17
DATE: 06/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 08:37:32                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch like ’%061615’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 12/15

FUND − 045 − GOLF COURSE − CITY       
BUDGET UNIT − 4245 − GOLF COURSE−CITY         

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4000P    COST OF REVENUE−PRO SHOP 
12/15 06/12/15 21             1151502−00   6453 GLOBAL TOUR GOLF                145.20               .00 TEES/POLY BAGS           
12/15 06/12/15 21             1150950−00   6453 GLOBAL TOUR GOLF                155.35               .00 TOWELS/GROOVE BRUSH      
12/15 06/12/15 21             DP,864376    6565 DORFMAN PACIFIC                 435.51               .00 APPAREL                  
TOTAL    COST OF REVENUE−PRO SHOP                                .00            736.06               .00

4220D    DIESEL                   
12/15 06/12/15 21             A439596      6445 GARY V. BURROWS,              1,113.70               .00 DIESEL 370G              
TOTAL    DIESEL                                                  .00          1,113.70               .00

4220F    OPERATING SUPPLIES FUEL  
12/15 06/12/15 21             A439651      6445 GARY V. BURROWS,                541.41               .00 UNLEADED GAS 150G        
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES FUEL                                 .00            541.41               .00

4220M    OPERATING SUPPLIES MAINT.
12/15 06/12/15 21             9012364      6206 WILBUR−ELLIS COM                 32.25               .00 INSECTICIDE CLOCKS       
12/15 06/12/15 21             9012349      6206 WILBUR−ELLIS COM              3,997.93               .00 FAIRWAY FERTILIZER       
12/15 06/12/15 21             062894       6483 SOUTHERN LINKS I                 53.70               .00 MARKING PAINT            
12/15 06/12/15 21             CALEM14499   5866 FASTENAL COMPANY                 93.06               .00 LG BLK GLOVES 100CT      
12/15 06/12/15 21             19821        6559 RANGE MART                       94.60               .00 CUP DISPENSER            
12/15 06/12/15 21             619−36337100 1547 UNISOURCE                       114.64               .00 TOWELS                   
12/15 06/12/15 21             A203582      6541 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 21.90               .00 RED/ORG PAINT            
12/15 06/12/15 21             A204113      6541 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 11.81               .00 DURA 9V BATTERY          
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES MAINT.                               .00          4,419.89               .00

4230     REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES    
12/15 06/12/15 21             A204023      6541 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 27.62               .00 NUTS/BOLTS               
12/15 06/12/15 21             A203446      6541 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 32.23               .00 BIBB−VALVE               
12/15 06/12/15 21             B225901      6541 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 27.19               .00 FLOAT ASSEM              
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES                                   .00             87.04               .00

4230M    REPAIR/MAINT − MAINT     
12/15 06/12/15 21             103159       6522 LAWRENCE TRACTOR                132.04               .00 PART/GREENS MOWER        
12/15 06/12/15 21             785663       6490 JACOBSEN WEST                   853.33               .00 GEAR BOX/MOWER           
12/15 06/12/15 21             90007245     6490 JACOBSEN WEST                   140.53               .00 PULLEY W/SCREWS          
12/15 06/12/15 21             90006045     6490 JACOBSEN WEST                   656.95               .00 PARTS FOR MOWERS         
12/15 06/12/15 21             786634       6490 JACOBSEN WEST                 1,809.69               .00 PARTS FOR MOWERS         
12/15 06/12/15 21             67736        6489 FRONTIER PERFORM                667.58               .00 EQUIPMENT GREASE         
12/15 06/12/15 21             10494        6463 GROWERS SUPPLY I                 97.35               .00 BEARINGS                 
12/15 06/12/15 21             90005846     6490 JACOBSEN WEST                   242.32               .00 BELTS/ROUGH MOWER        
12/15 06/12/15 21             77899        6523 WEST VALLEY SUPP                 35.65               .00 IRRIG SUPPLIES           
12/15 06/12/15 21             77934        6523 WEST VALLEY SUPP                 11.83               .00 IRRIG SUPPLIES           
12/15 06/12/15 21             78079        6523 WEST VALLEY SUPP                 23.06               .00 IRRIG SUPPLIES           
12/15 06/12/15 21             102298       6522 LAWRENCE TRACTOR                485.77               .00 JOHN DEERE CLUTCH        
12/15 06/12/15 21             84905        6550 HANFORD EQUIPMEN                 80.51               .00 BALL PICKER              
12/15 06/12/15 21             PI31145      0361 ORTON’S EQUIPMEN                119.33               .00 SOLENOID/TRACTOR         
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT − MAINT                                    .00          5,355.94               .00

         RUN DATE 06/12/2015 TIME 08:37:39                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   18
DATE: 06/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 08:37:32                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch like ’%061615’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 12/15

FUND − 045 − GOLF COURSE − CITY       
BUDGET UNIT − 4245 − GOLF COURSE−CITY         

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4230M    REPAIR/MAINT − MAINT      (cont’d)

4230P    REPAIR/MAINT − PRO SHOP  
12/15 06/12/15 21             90541311     6499 E−Z−GO A TEXTRON                268.82               .00 STRUTS (4)               
12/15 06/12/15 21             90541312     6499 E−Z−GO A TEXTRON                565.06               .00 TIE ROD/REAR SPRING      
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT − PRO SHOP                                 .00            833.88               .00

4291     MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES   
12/15 06/12/15 21             417763       6441 COURSETRENDS, IN                295.00               .00 JUNE MARKETING SVCS      
TOTAL    MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES                                  .00            295.00               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
12/15 06/12/15 21             05312015     T1885 THOMAS RINGER                  598.50               .00 GOLF LESSONS/MAY         
12/15 06/12/15 21             05312015     T1981 TONY OSBORNE                   495.45               .00 GOLF LESSONS/MAY         
12/15 06/12/15 21             06/30/2015   6548 RINGER, TOM                   3,250.00               .00 JUNE 15−JUNE 30          
12/15 06/12/15 21             JUNE2015−1   6562 JEDD NOONKESTER               2,000.00               .00 JUNE 1−JUNE 15 SERVIC    
12/15 06/12/15 21             6/1/15       6548 RINGER, TOM                   2,250.00               .00 JUNE 1−JUNE 15           
12/15 06/12/15 21             MAY2015      6573 JAMES HUDGEON                   171.90               .00 GOLF LESSONS/MAY         
12/15 06/12/15 21             MAY2015      6574 TONY ALANIZ JR.                 171.90               .00 GOLF LESSONS/MAY         
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          8,937.75               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
12/15 06/12/15 21             000006603289 5516 AT&T                             89.91               .00 559−924−9658             
12/15 06/12/15 21             000006603287 5516 AT&T                             15.50               .00 559−924−6317             
12/15 06/12/15 21             000006603284 5516 AT&T                             19.68               .00 559−924−1330             
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            125.09               .00

4388     INTEREST EXPENSE         
12/15 06/12/15 21             06022015     2236 LEMOORE RDA SUCC                729.77               .00 JUNE INTEREST            
12/15 06/12/15 21             06052015     2236 LEMOORE RDA SUCC                274.25               .00 JUNE INTEREST            
TOTAL    INTEREST EXPENSE                                        .00          1,004.02               .00

4397     LRA SUCC. LOANS PRINCIPAL
12/15 06/12/15 21             06022015     2236 LEMOORE RDA SUCC              5,713.32               .00 JUNE PRINCIPAL           
12/15 06/12/15 21             06052015     2236 LEMOORE RDA SUCC              2,876.75               .00 JUNE PRINCIPAL           
TOTAL    LRA SUCC. LOANS PRINCIPAL                               .00          8,590.07               .00

TOTAL    GOLF COURSE−CITY                                        .00         32,039.85               .00

TOTAL    GOLF COURSE − CITY                                      .00         32,039.85               .00

         RUN DATE 06/12/2015 TIME 08:37:40                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   19
DATE: 06/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 08:37:32                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch like ’%061615’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 12/15

FUND − 050 − WATER                    
BUDGET UNIT − 4250 − WATER                    

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
12/15 06/12/15 21             A205217      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 11.81               .00 TAPE RULE                
12/15 06/12/15 21             A203694      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 20.41               .00 TIE DOWN                 
12/15 06/12/15 21             A203630      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 22.56               .00 2" HOLE SAW              
12/15 06/12/15 21             B226093      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 10.74               .00 ORG EXT CORD             
12/15 06/12/15 21             A203692      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 16.74               .00 LUBRICANT                
12/15 06/12/15 21             B226518      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 15.87               .00 ADJ SPRAYER              
12/15 06/12/15 21             A204696      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  9.65               .00 CONCRETE MIX             
12/15 06/12/15 21             A203484      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 24.68               .00 HARDWARE/DUCT TAPE       
12/15 06/12/15 21             B225977      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 58.02               .00 SEALANT/SHEETING         
12/15 06/12/15 21             B226018      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  6.44               .00 RED/ORG PAINT            
12/15 06/12/15 21             7459−118538  0314 LEMOORE AUTO SUP                  2.53               .00 FIRE EXIT DECAL          
12/15 06/12/15 21             7459−118175  0314 LEMOORE AUTO SUP                 19.34               .00 TOWEL BOX                
12/15 06/12/15 21             7459−118414  0314 LEMOORE AUTO SUP                 26.76               .00 GLOVE/WASP KILLER        
12/15 06/12/15 21             7459−117702  0314 LEMOORE AUTO SUP                 31.14               .00 TRAILER BALL             
12/15 06/12/15 21             A205069      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  5.13               .00 SEAL TAPE                
12/15 06/12/15 21             B227456      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  9.66               .00 8PK ALK BATTERY          
12/15 06/12/15 21             A205078      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  6.44               .00 9V ALK BATTERY           
12/15 06/12/15 21             B227518      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 58.02               .00 PUSH BROOM               
12/15 06/12/15 21             FO823703−2   6058 UNIVAR                           50.00               .00 CHLORINE                 
12/15 06/12/15 21             FO824649     6058 UNIVAR                        1,323.20               .00 CHLORINE                 
12/15 06/12/15 21             FO825068     6058 UNIVAR                        2,238.16               .00 CHLORINE                 
12/15 06/12/15 21             78115        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                 19.57               .00 TEFLON PASTE/PVC GLUE    
12/15 06/12/15 21             FO826204     6058 UNIVAR                        1,372.44               .00 CHLORINE                 
12/15 06/12/15 21             FO826210     6058 UNIVAR                        1,323.20               .00 CHLORINE                 
12/15 06/12/15 21             FO826035     6058 UNIVAR                        1,453.91               .00 CHLORINE                 
12/15 06/12/15 21             FO826032     6058 UNIVAR                        1,584.62               .00 CHLORINE                 
12/15 06/12/15 21             9393433      0190 HACH COMPANY                    492.35               .00 POCKET METER             
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00         10,213.39               .00

4230     REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES    
12/15 06/12/15 21             77877        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                106.21               .00 SEWER CAP/SEWER PIPE     
12/15 06/12/15 21             78018        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                 60.03               .00 SEWER CAP/SEWER PIP      
12/15 06/12/15 21             78037        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                 47.53               .00 CPLNG/PIPE/GLUE PVC      
12/15 06/12/15 21             78055        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                 11.55               .00 SEWER CAP PVC            
12/15 06/12/15 21             78093        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                106.21               .00 SEWER CAP/PIP PVC        
12/15 06/12/15 21             78174        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                106.21               .00 SEWER CAP/PIPE PVC       
12/15 06/12/15 21             A205155      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  9.66               .00 COMMON BOARD             
12/15 06/12/15 21             A204712      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  1.49               .00 FASTNER PK               
12/15 06/12/15 21             A203575      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  3.21               .00 GALV STREET ELBOW        
12/15 06/12/15 21             B225928      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 13.65               .00 NUTS/BOLTS               
12/15 06/12/15 21             A204033      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  9.20               .00 NUTS−BOLTS TURNBUCKLE    
12/15 06/12/15 21             7459−118897  0314 LEMOORE AUTO SUP                 10.73               .00 COUPLER BODY/PLUG        
12/15 06/12/15 21             A203633      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 14.48               .00 BUSHING−NIPPLE−UNION     
12/15 06/12/15 21             7459−118916  0314 LEMOORE AUTO SUP                  7.30               .00 COUPLER BODY             
12/15 06/12/15 21             77946        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                 48.48               .00 4’ CAP SEWER/PIPE        
12/15 06/12/15 21             1087516      0188 FERGUSON ENTERPR                956.75               .00 STEEL FLG SPOOL          

         RUN DATE 06/12/2015 TIME 08:37:40                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   20
DATE: 06/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 08:37:32                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch like ’%061615’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 12/15

FUND − 050 − WATER                    
BUDGET UNIT − 4250 − WATER                    

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4230     REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES     (cont’d)
12/15 06/12/15 21             A205231      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  5.90               .00 HANG STRAP               
12/15 06/12/15 21             A205300      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 21.48               .00 HOSE BIBB/CONNECTOR      
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES                                   .00          1,540.07               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
12/15 06/12/15 21             80088        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.             56,112.27               .00 TTHM PRJCT MAR/APR       
12/15 06/12/15 21             2683966      0809 TAG−AMS, INC.                   190.00               .00 DRUG SCREENING           
12/15 06/12/15 21             7873         6543 KINGS INDUSTRIAL                115.00               .00 DRUG SCREENINGS          
12/15 06/12/15 21             1501363654   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       50.32               .00 UNIFORMS                 
12/15 06/12/15 21             1501368308   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       43.82               .00 UNIFORMS                 
12/15 06/12/15 21             1501373014   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       69.82               .00 UNIFORMS                 
12/15 06/12/15 21             9389450      0190 HACH COMPANY                     41.67               .00 MASTER CATALOG           
12/15 06/12/15 21             80403        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.              1,917.54               .00 APRIL/MAY SERVICES       
12/15 06/12/15 21             80439        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.              7,781.10               .00 APRIL/MAY SERVICES       
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00         66,321.54               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
12/15 06/12/15 21             000006627261 5516 AT&T                             16.77               .00 559−925−9481             
12/15 06/12/15 21             000006627258 5516 AT&T                              3.03               .00 559−925−2806             
12/15 06/12/15 21             000006612908 5516 AT&T                             98.12               .00 234−371−3714             
12/15 06/12/15 21             70013MAY2015 1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                248.89               .00 COMM SERVICES            
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            366.81               .00

4350     REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES    
12/15 06/12/15 21             14883        2908 VALLEY COMMUNICA              1,224.37               .00 PUMP CONTROL SERVICE     
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES                                   .00          1,224.37               .00

4360     TRAINING                 
12/15 06/12/15 21             2015−7       0816 VALLEY COUNTIES                 390.00               .00 VCWA MEETING             
TOTAL    TRAINING                                                .00            390.00               .00

TOTAL    WATER                                                   .00         80,056.18               .00

         RUN DATE 06/12/2015 TIME 08:37:40                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   21
DATE: 06/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 08:37:32                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch like ’%061615’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 12/15

FUND − 050 − WATER                    
BUDGET UNIT − 4251 − UTILITY OFFICE           

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
12/15 06/12/15 21             93093        5546 INFOSEND                      3,792.03               .00 MAY BILLS 2015           
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          3,792.03               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
12/15 06/12/15 21             000006627262 5516 AT&T                             10.83               .00 559−925−9790             
12/15 06/12/15 21             70013MAY2015 1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                104.71               .00 COMM SERVICES            
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            115.54               .00

TOTAL    UTILITY OFFICE                                          .00          3,907.57               .00

TOTAL    WATER                                                   .00         83,963.75               .00

         RUN DATE 06/12/2015 TIME 08:37:40                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   22
DATE: 06/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 08:37:32                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch like ’%061615’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 12/15

FUND − 056 − REFUSE                   
BUDGET UNIT − 4256 − REFUSE                   

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
12/15 06/12/15 21 6882    −01 37210375     5533 WASTEQUIP                    10,361.00        −10,361.00 3 YARD REAR LOAD DUMPSTER
12/15 06/12/15 21 6882    −02 37210375     5533 WASTEQUIP                       777.08           −777.08 SALES TAX                
12/15 06/12/15 21 6882    −03 37210375     5533 WASTEQUIP                       650.00           −650.00 FREIGHT                  
12/15 06/12/15 21             78134        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                 23.65               .00 MARKING FLAGS            
12/15 06/12/15 21             52678216     0020 PRAXAIR                          21.51               .00 SPEC HI PRES >100CF      
12/15 06/12/15 21             7459−118056  0314 LEMOORE AUTO SUP                128.68               .00 GRIND WHEELS/WIRE        
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00         11,961.92        −11,788.08

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
12/15 06/12/15 21             7873         6543 KINGS INDUSTRIAL                 70.00               .00 DRUG SCREENINGS          
12/15 06/12/15 21             B227548      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 63.80               .00 BROOM/TOOLS              
12/15 06/12/15 21             1501373024   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       47.07               .00 UNIFORMS                 
12/15 06/12/15 21             1501363662   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       79.06               .00 UNIFORMS                 
12/15 06/12/15 21             1501368317   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       45.57               .00 UNIFORMS                 
12/15 06/12/15 21             06012015     0234 KINGS WASTE AND              72,311.90               .00 MAY SERVICES             
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00         72,617.40               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
12/15 06/12/15 21             000006627258 5516 AT&T                              1.72               .00 559−925−2806             
12/15 06/12/15 21             70013MAY2015 1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                 49.99               .00 COMM SERVICES            
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             51.71               .00

TOTAL    REFUSE                                                  .00         84,631.03        −11,788.08

TOTAL    REFUSE                                                  .00         84,631.03        −11,788.08

         RUN DATE 06/12/2015 TIME 08:37:41                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   23
DATE: 06/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 08:37:32                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch like ’%061615’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 12/15

FUND − 060 − SEWER& STROM WTR DRAINAGE
BUDGET UNIT − 4260 − SEWER                    

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
12/15 06/12/15 21             7459−118872  0314 LEMOORE AUTO SUP                124.61               .00 GRIND/CUT WHEELS         
12/15 06/12/15 21             B226176      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  5.90               .00 DURA 4PK BATTERY         
12/15 06/12/15 21             A204005      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  5.78               .00 PIPE CEMENT/CAP SLIP     
12/15 06/12/15 21             A204046      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  5.15               .00 BUG SPRAY                
12/15 06/12/15 21             A204796      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  7.51               .00 2PK 9V BATTERY           
12/15 06/12/15 21             B227065      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 23.38               .00 ELEC TAPE−CONNECTOR      
12/15 06/12/15 21             B227177      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  9.00               .00 WIRE CONNECTORS          
12/15 06/12/15 21             9637         5140 BOGIE’S PUMP SYS                558.83               .00 30’ FLOATS−NORM OPEN     
12/15 06/12/15 21             28856940     0205 HELENA CHEMICAL                 123.36               .00 ROUNDUP CONCENTRATE      
12/15 06/12/15 21             SLS10020911  2072 SIERRA CHEMICAL               3,493.64               .00 CHLORINE/DEPOSIT         
12/15 06/12/15 21             SLC10006827  2072 SIERRA CHEMICAL              −2,000.00               .00 DEPOSIT RTN              
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00          2,357.16               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
12/15 06/12/15 21             15−217       6612 A−1 AGRI−BUSINES              1,200.00               .00 EFFLUENT DISCHG RPT      
12/15 06/12/15 21             80082        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.              3,615.90               .00 LEPRINO SVCS MAR/APR     
12/15 06/12/15 21             2683966      0809 TAG−AMS, INC.                    95.00               .00 DRUG SCREENING           
12/15 06/12/15 21             7873         6543 KINGS INDUSTRIAL                 70.00               .00 DRUG SCREENINGS          
12/15 06/12/15 21             1501373019   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       49.42               .00 UNIFORMS/MATS            
12/15 06/12/15 21             1501363658   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       49.42               .00 UNIFORMS                 
12/15 06/12/15 21             1501368313   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       47.07               .00 UNIFORMS                 
12/15 06/12/15 21             80403        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.              1,917.54               .00 APRIL/MAY SERVICES       
12/15 06/12/15 21             80436        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.              3,450.30               .00 LEPRINO                  
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00         10,494.65               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
12/15 06/12/15 21             000006627258 5516 AT&T                              1.72               .00 559−925−2806             
12/15 06/12/15 21             000006627518 5516 AT&T                             17.00               .00 559−925−8587             
12/15 06/12/15 21             70013MAY2015 1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                235.62               .00 COMM SERVICES            
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            254.34               .00

4360     TRAINING                 
12/15 06/12/15 21             CRWA 2015    1999 CALIFORNIA RURAL                425.00               .00 TRAINING                 
TOTAL    TRAINING                                                .00            425.00               .00

TOTAL    SEWER                                                   .00         13,531.15               .00

TOTAL    SEWER& STROM WTR DRAINAGE                               .00         13,531.15               .00

         RUN DATE 06/12/2015 TIME 08:37:41                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   24
DATE: 06/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 08:37:32                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch like ’%061615’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 12/15

FUND − 068 − GENERAL FACILITIES CAP   
BUDGET UNIT − 4714A − FENCING AT CMC           

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4317     CONSTRUCTION/IMPLEMENTA. 
12/15 06/12/15 21             688874       3045 HAYES GARAGE DOO              1,876.25               .00 CMC FENCING/SLAT DOOR    
12/15 06/12/15 21             688860       3045 HAYES GARAGE DOO                891.25               .00 CMC FENCING/INSTALL      
TOTAL    CONSTRUCTION/IMPLEMENTA.                                .00          2,767.50               .00

TOTAL    FENCING AT CMC                                          .00          2,767.50               .00

TOTAL    GENERAL FACILITIES CAP                                  .00          2,767.50               .00

         RUN DATE 06/12/2015 TIME 08:37:41                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   25
DATE: 06/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 08:37:32                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch like ’%061615’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 12/15

FUND − 075 − FACILITY/INFRASTRUCTURE  
BUDGET UNIT − 4775G − CROSSFIT MULTIPURPOSE RM 

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4317     CONSTRUCTION/IMPLEMENTA. 
12/15 06/12/15 21             16572        1263 KINGS COUNTY MOB                151.75               .00 CROSSFIT/KEYS            
12/15 06/12/15 21             1351312      0345 MORGAN & SLATES                 612.97               .00 CROSSFIT−ANGLE/LABOR     
12/15 06/12/15 21             6772−1       6613 SHERWIN WILLIAMS              1,635.84               .00 CROSSFIT/PAINT           
12/15 06/12/15 21             6997−4       6613 SHERWIN WILLIAMS                483.00               .00 CROSSFIT/PAINT           
12/15 06/12/15 21             24459        0388 REED ELECTRIC                    34.44               .00 CROSSFIT/1" ELLS−PART    
12/15 06/12/15 21             24454        0388 REED ELECTRIC                   858.47               .00 CROSSFIT−PARTS           
12/15 06/12/15 21             24443        0388 REED ELECTRIC                   368.91               .00 CROSSFIT−PARTS           
12/15 06/12/15 21             24492        0388 REED ELECTRIC                   100.36               .00 CROSSFIT/PARTS           
12/15 06/12/15 21             B227168      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 42.73               .00 CROSSFIT/HARDWARE        
12/15 06/12/15 21             B227029      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                274.71               .00 CONCRETE MIX CROSSFIT    
12/15 06/12/15 21             6301         1216 CBS DOORS                       117.56               .00 CROSSFIT/KEYLOCK         
12/15 06/12/15 21             29515        6409 PAUL DOMBROWSKI                 200.00               .00 CROSSFIT/HEADER INST     
12/15 06/12/15 21             50515        6409 PAUL DOMBROWSKI                 330.00               .00 CROSSFIT A/C JACK        
TOTAL    CONSTRUCTION/IMPLEMENTA.                                .00          5,210.74               .00

TOTAL    CROSSFIT MULTIPURPOSE RM                                .00          5,210.74               .00

TOTAL    FACILITY/INFRASTRUCTURE                                 .00          5,210.74               .00

         RUN DATE 06/12/2015 TIME 08:37:41                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   26
DATE: 06/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 08:37:32                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch like ’%061615’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 12/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4801 − LLMD ZONE 1 WESTFIELD    

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
12/15 06/12/15 21             17419        6414 PRIMOW LANDSCAPE              3,600.00               .00 MONTHLY SERVICES         
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          3,600.00               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
12/15 06/12/15 21             MAY2015      2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                 529.20               .00 APR/MAY SERVICES         
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            529.20               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 1 WESTFIELD                                   .00          4,129.20               .00

         RUN DATE 06/12/2015 TIME 08:37:41                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   27
DATE: 06/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 08:37:32                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch like ’%061615’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 12/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4803 − LLMD ZONE3 SILVA ESTATES 

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
12/15 06/12/15 21             408550       5637 ELITE MAINTENANC                833.00               .00 MAY MAINTENANCE          
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00            833.00               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
12/15 06/12/15 21             MAY2015      2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                  45.90               .00 APR/MAY SERVICES         
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             45.90               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE3 SILVA ESTATES                                .00            878.90               .00

         RUN DATE 06/12/2015 TIME 08:37:41                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   28
DATE: 06/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 08:37:32                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch like ’%061615’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 12/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4805 − LLMD ZONE 5 WILDFLOWER   

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4340     UTILITIES                
12/15 06/12/15 21             MAY2015      2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                   3.60               .00 APR/MAY SERVICES         
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00              3.60               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 5 WILDFLOWER                                  .00              3.60               .00

         RUN DATE 06/12/2015 TIME 08:37:41                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   29
DATE: 06/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 08:37:32                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch like ’%061615’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 12/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4806 − LLMD ZONE 6 CAPISTRANO   

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
12/15 06/12/15 21             408550       5637 ELITE MAINTENANC                238.00               .00 MAY MAINTENANCE          
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00            238.00               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
12/15 06/12/15 21             MAY2015      2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                  27.00               .00 APR/MAY SERVICES         
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             27.00               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 6 CAPISTRANO                                  .00            265.00               .00

         RUN DATE 06/12/2015 TIME 08:37:41                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   30
DATE: 06/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 08:37:32                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch like ’%061615’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 12/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4807 − LLMD ZONE 7 SILVERADO    

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
12/15 06/12/15 21             408550       5637 ELITE MAINTENANC                714.00               .00 MAY MAINTENANCE          
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00            714.00               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
12/15 06/12/15 21             MAY2015      2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                  44.10               .00 APR/MAY SERVICES         
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             44.10               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 7 SILVERADO                                   .00            758.10               .00

         RUN DATE 06/12/2015 TIME 08:37:41                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   31
DATE: 06/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 08:37:32                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch like ’%061615’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 12/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4808 − LLMD ZONE 8 CTRY.CLB.VILL

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
12/15 06/12/15 21             408550       5637 ELITE MAINTENANC                714.00               .00 MAY MAINTENANCE          
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00            714.00               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
12/15 06/12/15 21             MAY2015      2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                 146.70               .00 APR/MAY SERVICES         
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            146.70               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 8 CTRY.CLB.VILL                               .00            860.70               .00

         RUN DATE 06/12/2015 TIME 08:37:41                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   32
DATE: 06/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 08:37:32                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch like ’%061615’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 12/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4809 − LLMD ZONE 9 LA DANTE ROSE

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4340     UTILITIES                
12/15 06/12/15 21             MAY2015      2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                   3.60               .00 APR/MAY SERVICES         
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00              3.60               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 9 LA DANTE ROSE                               .00              3.60               .00

         RUN DATE 06/12/2015 TIME 08:37:41                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   33
DATE: 06/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 08:37:32                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch like ’%061615’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 12/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4810 − LLMD ZONE 10 AVALON      

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4340     UTILITIES                
12/15 06/12/15 21             MAY2015      2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                 117.00               .00 APR/MAY SERVICES         
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            117.00               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 10 AVALON                                     .00            117.00               .00

         RUN DATE 06/12/2015 TIME 08:37:41                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   34
DATE: 06/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 08:37:32                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch like ’%061615’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 12/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4811 − LLMD ZONE 11 SELF HELP EN

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
12/15 06/12/15 21             408550       5637 ELITE MAINTENANC                119.00               .00 MAY MAINTENANCE          
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00            119.00               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
12/15 06/12/15 21             MAY2015      2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                  15.30               .00 APR/MAY SERVICES         
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             15.30               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 11 SELF HELP EN                               .00            134.30               .00

         RUN DATE 06/12/2015 TIME 08:37:41                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   35
DATE: 06/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 08:37:32                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch like ’%061615’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 12/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4812 − LLMD ZONE 12 SUMMERWIND  

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4340     UTILITIES                
12/15 06/12/15 21             MAY2015      2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                 108.00               .00 APR/MAY SERVICES         
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            108.00               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 12 SUMMERWIND                                 .00            108.00               .00

         RUN DATE 06/12/2015 TIME 08:37:41                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   36
DATE: 06/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 08:37:32                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch like ’%061615’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 12/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4813 − LLMD ZONE 13 CORNERSTONE 

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4340     UTILITIES                
12/15 06/12/15 21             MAY2015      2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                  53.10               .00 APR/MAY SERVICES         
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             53.10               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 13 CORNERSTONE                                .00             53.10               .00

         RUN DATE 06/12/2015 TIME 08:37:41                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   37
DATE: 06/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 08:37:32                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch like ’%061615’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 12/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4815B − PFMD ZONE 2 DEVANTE      

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
12/15 06/12/15 21             408550       5637 ELITE MAINTENANC              1,785.00               .00 MAY MAINTENANCE          
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          1,785.00               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
12/15 06/12/15 21             MAY2015      2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                 462.60               .00 APR/MAY SERVICES         
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            462.60               .00

TOTAL    PFMD ZONE 2 DEVANTE                                     .00          2,247.60               .00

         RUN DATE 06/12/2015 TIME 08:37:41                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   38
DATE: 06/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 08:37:32                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch like ’%061615’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 12/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4815C − PFMD ZONE 3 SILVA 10     

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
12/15 06/12/15 21             17419        6414 PRIMOW LANDSCAPE              1,066.67               .00 MONTHLY SERVICES         
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          1,066.67               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
12/15 06/12/15 21             MAY2015      2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                  22.50               .00 APR/MAY SERVICES         
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             22.50               .00

TOTAL    PFMD ZONE 3 SILVA 10                                    .00          1,089.17               .00

         RUN DATE 06/12/2015 TIME 08:37:41                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   39
DATE: 06/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 08:37:32                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch like ’%061615’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 12/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4815D − PFMD ZONE 4 PARKVIEW     

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4340     UTILITIES                
12/15 06/12/15 21             MAY2015      2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                  45.90               .00 APR/MAY SERVICES         
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             45.90               .00

TOTAL    PFMD ZONE 4 PARKVIEW                                    .00             45.90               .00

         RUN DATE 06/12/2015 TIME 08:37:41                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   40
DATE: 06/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 08:37:32                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch like ’%061615’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 12/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4815E − PFMD EAST VILLAGE PARK   

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4340     UTILITIES                
12/15 06/12/15 21             MAY2015      2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                 287.10               .00 APR/MAY SERVICES         
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            287.10               .00

TOTAL    PFMD EAST VILLAGE PARK                                  .00            287.10               .00

TOTAL    LLMD/PFMD                                               .00         10,981.27               .00

         RUN DATE 06/12/2015 TIME 08:37:42                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   41
DATE: 06/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 08:37:32                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch like ’%061615’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 12/15

FUND − 085 − PBIA                     
BUDGET UNIT − 4270 − PBIA                     

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
12/15 06/12/15 21             MAY2015      5563 RUSTY DEROUIN                   300.00               .00 MAY SERVICES             
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00            300.00               .00

TOTAL    PBIA                                                    .00            300.00               .00

TOTAL    PBIA                                                    .00            300.00               .00

TOTAL REPORT                                                     .00        334,224.78        −28,301.54

         RUN DATE 06/12/2015 TIME 08:37:42                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    1
DATE: 06/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT311
TIME: 08:45:13                                  GENERAL LEDGER TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: account.acct between ’2000’ and ’2999’AND transact.batch like ’%061615’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 12/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C  REFERENCE  VENDOR/PAYER                              DEBIT            CREDIT  DESCRIPTION

2020     ACCOUNTS PAYABLE         
   12/15 06/12/15  21              6619 CALVIN RHOADS                                         250.00  AQUA JETS PAYMENT        
   12/15 06/12/15  21              6618 EMILY CARL                                            250.00  AQUA JETS PAYMENT        
   12/15 06/12/15  21              6617 KATELYN PEDERSEN                                      250.00  AQUA JETS PAYMENT        
   12/15 06/12/15  21              6616 SPENCER DENNEY                                        250.00  AQUA JETS PAYMENT        
   12/15 06/12/15  21              6615 LAURYN PEDERSON                                       250.00  AQUA JETS PAYMENT        
   12/15 06/12/15  21              6421 EMMA SOUZA                                            250.00  AQUA JETS PAYMENT        
   12/15 06/12/15  21              6423 THOMAS RHOADS                                         250.00  INSTRUCTOR PAYMENT       
   12/15 06/12/15  21              6422 MACY BUHL                                             250.00  INSTRUCTOR PAYMENT       
   12/15 06/12/15  21              6437 GUILLERMO VARELA                                      250.00  INSTRUCTOR PAYMENT       
   12/15 06/12/15  21              2399 DEPARTMENT OF JUSTIC                                  932.00  FINGERPRINTS             
TOTAL    ACCOUNTS PAYABLE                                                      .00          3,182.00

2285     LIVE SCAN DEPOSITS−−PD   
   12/15 06/12/15  21              2399 DEPARTMENT OF JUSTIC                932.00                    FINGERPRINTS             
TOTAL    LIVE SCAN DEPOSITS−−PD                                             932.00               .00

2291     AQUA JETS                
   12/15 06/12/15  21              6619 CALVIN RHOADS                       250.00                    AQUA JETS PAYMENT        
   12/15 06/12/15  21              6618 EMILY CARL                          250.00                    AQUA JETS PAYMENT        
   12/15 06/12/15  21              6617 KATELYN PEDERSEN                    250.00                    AQUA JETS PAYMENT        
   12/15 06/12/15  21              6616 SPENCER DENNEY                      250.00                    AQUA JETS PAYMENT        
   12/15 06/12/15  21              6615 LAURYN PEDERSON                     250.00                    AQUA JETS PAYMENT        
   12/15 06/12/15  21              6421 EMMA SOUZA                          250.00                    AQUA JETS PAYMENT        
   12/15 06/12/15  21              6423 THOMAS RHOADS                       250.00                    INSTRUCTOR PAYMENT       
   12/15 06/12/15  21              6422 MACY BUHL                           250.00                    INSTRUCTOR PAYMENT       
   12/15 06/12/15  21              6437 GUILLERMO VARELA                    250.00                    INSTRUCTOR PAYMENT       
TOTAL    AQUA JETS                                                        2,250.00               .00

TOTAL    GENERAL FUND                                                     3,182.00          3,182.00

TOTAL REPORT                                                              3,182.00          3,182.00

         RUN DATE 06/12/2015 TIME 08:45:28                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    1
DATE: 06/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT31
TIME: 08:43:53                                      REVENUE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.account between ’3000’ and ’3999’ and transact.batch like ’%061615’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 12/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 001 − GENERAL FUND             

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C RECEIVE REFERENCE   PAYER/VENDOR        BUDGET          RECEIPTS       RECEIVABLES DESCRIPTION

3625     CIVIC AUDITORIUM RENTAL  
   12/15 06/12/15 21 0        06102015     T1999 ELIA RUIZ                     −250.00                   CIVIC AUDITORIUM REF.    
   12/15 06/12/15 21 0        06102015     T990 TERESA MICHEL                  −250.00                   VETS HALL REFUND         
   12/15 06/12/15 21 0        06102015     T2001 DENISE CUEVAS                 −250.00                   CIVIC AUDITORIUM REF.    
   12/15 06/12/15 21 0        06102015     T2000 LAURA ESPINOZA                −150.00                   VETERANS HALL REFUND     
TOTAL    CIVIC AUDITORIUM RENTAL                                 .00           −900.00               .00

3681     RECREATION FEES          
   12/15 06/12/15 21 0        06102015     T2002 ANNABELLE MORTIM               −30.00                   SPRING DANCE REFUND      
   12/15 06/12/15 21 0        06102015     T2003 SAVANNAH CALLANA               −60.00                   SPRING DANCE REFUND      
TOTAL    RECREATION FEES                                         .00            −90.00               .00

TOTAL    GENERAL FUND                                            .00           −990.00               .00

TOTAL    GENERAL FUND                                            .00           −990.00               .00

TOTAL REPORT                                                     .00           −990.00               .00

                   RUN DATE 06/12/2015 TIME 08:43:56  PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
Lois Wynne 

Mayor Pro Tem 
 Office of the  

City Manager 
 

119 Fox Street 
Lemoore, CA  93245 

Phone (559) 924-6700 
FAX (559) 924-9003 

Jeff Chedester 
Council Members 

Ray Madrigal 
Eddie Neal 

William Siegel 
 

          City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM 2-3 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Janie Venegas, City Clerk 

Date: May 31, 2015 Meeting Date: June 16, 2015 

Subject: Claim for Ross Cox  

 
Discussion: 
The City of Lemoore received a claim from Mr. Ross Cox on May 26, 2015 for an 
incident that occurred on March 18, 2015.  Mr. Ross claims an officer broke out his 
window and he is seeking replacement of the glass in the amount of $218.95. 
 
AIMS has concluded their investigation and have determined there is no liability against 
the officer or the City.  AIMS has suggested the City issue a Notice of Rejection under 
Operation of Law in order to establish a six month civil status 
 
 
Budget Impact:  
Unknown at this time. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
That the City Council, by motion, approve the Notice of Rejection for Ross Cox. 











“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
Lois Wynne 

Mayor Pro Tem 

  Maintenance &       
Fleet Divisions 

 
711 W. Cinnamon Dr. 
Lemoore, CA  93245 

Phone (559) 924-6739 
Fax  (559) 924-6708 

Jeff Chedester 
Council Members 

Ray Madrigal 
Eddie Neal 

William Siegel 
 

                               City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

	

Staff Report 
  ITEM 2-4 

To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Joe Simonson, Parks and Recreation Director 

Date: June 12, 2015           Meeting Date:  June 16, 2015 

Subject: Approval – Management Agreement – Tom Ringer Golf  

 
 

Discussion: 
 
The City of Lemoore has completed the management agreement with Tom Ringer Golf.   
The contract distributed to City Council for their review at the meeting. 
 
  
 Budget Impact: 
 
Per 2015-16 Budget 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That the City Council, by motion, approve The Management Agreement with Tom Ringer 
Golf. 
 

 



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
Lois Wynne 

Mayor Pro Tem 

 Parks and Recreation 
Department 

 721 W. Cinnamon Dr. 
Lemoore � CA  93245 

Phone � (559) 924-6767 
FAX � (559) 924-6772 

Jeff Chedester 
Council Members 

Ray Madrigal 
Eddie Neal 

William Siegel 
 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA

 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM 2-5 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From:  Joe Simonson, Parks and Recreation Director  

Date: June 11, 2015  

Subject:  Lemoore Golf Course Fiscal Year 2014-2015 Operating Budget  

 
Discussion: 
As Council is well aware, the 2014-2015 fiscal year brought many changes to the 
Lemoore Golf Course.  During the management changes and concession changes 
during the year, the 2014-2015 budget was never presented to Council for approval.   
 
Other than normal operating expenses this year, we added a new stove, remodeled 
employee area, replaced ice makers and currently, because of health and safety 
reasons, are remodeling the bathroom on the front nine.   
 
As Council is aware, Foot Golf was added to the course in order to generate more 
income.   
  
Budget Impact: 
Although our grand total of expenses exceeded our total operating revenues by 
$53,014; $64,739 came from an asset replacement account with no impact to the 
general fund.  
All debt was met in the Budget year 2014-2015 
 
Recommendation: 
That Council, by motion, to adopt the 2014-2015 budget for the Lemoore Municipal Golf 
Course.   



Golf Course - 4245
2014-2015 Budget

ACCOUNT 2014-2015
ACCOUNT  DESCRIPTION NUMBER BUDGET

    REGULAR  SALARIES 4010 0
    OVERTIME 4020 4,614
    PART TIME SALARIES 4030 204,904
    FICA/MEDICARE 4110 15,974
    STATE UNEMPLOYMENT  INS 4120 9,579
    RETIREMENT 4130 3,437
    HEALTH   INSURANCE 4140 0
    LIFE  INSURANCE 4150 0
    STATE DISABILITY INSURANCE 4190 0
   CAFETERIA PLAN 4195 337
    DEFERRED COMPENSATION 4200 0

TOTAL  SALARIES  &  BENEFITS 238,845

    CITY COST OF REVENUE-KITCHEN 4000K 39,992
    CITY COST OF REVENUE-PRO SHOP 4000P 72,206

TOTAL COST OF SALES 112,198

    OPERATING SUPPLIES 4220 9,752
    OPERATING SUPPLIES - DIESEL 4220D 9,306
    OPERATING SUPPLIES - FUEL 4220F 6,636
    OPERATING SUPPLIES - MAINT 4220M 89,422
    OPERATING SUPPLIES - PRO SHOP 4220P 4,561
    REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES 4230 1,977
    REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES - MAINT 4230M 15,034
    REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES - PRO SHOP 4230P 827
    MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE 4291 17,956
    PROFESSIONAL/CONTRACT SERV 4310 144,839
    UTILITIES 4340 91,895
    REPAIR/MAINTENANCE SERVICES 4350 46,077
    RENTAL/LEASES 4380 57,025

TOTAL  MAINTENANCE/OPERATIONS 495,307

    INTEREST EXPENSE 4388 30,002
    GENERAL FUND BOND LOAN PRINCIPAL 4396 174,789
    LRA SUCC. LOAN PRINCIPAL 4397 53,673



TOTAL OTHER PAYABLES 258,464

    MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT 4825 0

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 0

    MACH/EQUIP ASSET REPLACEMENT 4825AR 21,739
    VEHICLE ASSET REPLACEMENT 4840AR 0
    CIP ASSET REPLACEMENT 4850 36,000
   Bathroom Renovation 4850 7,000

TOTAL ASSET REPLACEMENT 64,739
 
GRAND  TOTAL EXPENSES 1,169,553

REVENUES
   Property Rental 3620 5,767                  
   Concession Fees 3691 86,697                
   Concession Fees-Contract 3691C 655                     
   Interest 3850 300                     
   Miscellaneous 3880 1,905                  
   Golf Course Receipts 3866 908,737              
   Golf Pro Shop Receipts 3864 112,478              

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 1,116,539         

ASSET REPLACEMENT FUNDS 64,739              



“In God We Trust” 

 
Mayor 

Lois Wynne  Public Works/ 
Planning Department 

 
711 W. Cinnamon Drive 

Lemoore, CA  93245 
Phone (559) 924-6744 

Fax (559) 924-6708 
 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Jeff Chedester 

Council Members 
Ray Madrigal 
Eddie Neal 

William Siegel 

                            City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM NO. 2-6 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Joel Joyner, City Engineer  

Date: June 11, 2015 Meeting Date: June 16, 2015 

Subject: 
Bid Award – Construction of Street Improvements and Irrigation 
Pipeline Improvements at Cinnamon Municipal Complex 

 
Discussion: 
This project was designed by Blair, Church and Flynn and consists, in general, of undergrounding 
the Dockstetter Ditch, widen Cinnamon Drive from Hill Street to the Lemoore Sports Complex, 
and construction of sidewalk, curb and gutter, street lights and landscaping. 
 
The City of Lemoore received two bids for the project on May 29, 2015, with the following results: 
 
 Yarbs Grading and Paving   $895,345 
 
 Bill Nelson General Engineering 
 Construction     $939,877 
 
 Engineer’s Estimate    $868,000 
 
Staff is recommending the bid be awarded to Yarbs Grading and Paving in the amount of 
$895,345.  The project is scheduled to begin in August with completion late September 2015.  In 
addition to the construction costs, Staff would also like to request additional funding for the cost 
of compaction testing, construction overview and contingencies in the amount of $450,000. 
 
Budget Impact: 
Total budget amount for the Cinnamon Drive Project will be $1,345,345. The 2013-15 Street 
Capital Fund (028-033) appropriated amount was $650,000 which included $419,000 from State 
Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) funds and $231,000 Local Transportation Funds. 
Budget amendment amount of $695,000 will be funded through the 065 Street Capital Fund. 
 
Recommendation: 
That the City Council, by motion, approve the budget amendment in the amount of $695,000 and 
award the bid to Yarbs Grading and Paving for the Construction of Street Improvements and 
Irrigation Pipeline Improvements at Cinnamon Municipal Complex in the amount of $895,345 and 
authorize the City Manager to sign the agreement and contracts. 



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
Lois Wynne 

Mayor Pro Tem 
 Office of the  

City Manager 
 

119 Fox Street 
Lemoore, CA  93245 

Phone (559) 924-6700 
FAX (559) 924-9003 

Jeff Chedester 
Council Members 

Ray Madrigal 
Eddie Neal 

William Siegel 
 

          City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM 3-1 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Ron Hoggard, Interim City Manager 

Date: June 8, 2015 Meeting Date: June 16, 2015 

Subject: Public Hearing – 2015/2016 City Operations & Maintenance Budget - 
Resolution 2015-10 

 

 
Discussion: 
The proposed 2015-2016 City Operations and Maintenance Budget was presented to 
Council during the June 2, 2015 Study Session.  Council had the opportunity to discuss 
the proposed budget in detail with City staff at that time. 
 
The following changes were discussed: 
 
 Budget 

Committee 
Recommended

Council 
Recommended 

Difference

4224 - Building Inspector  
    1 Full-Time Building Inspector Position $185,628 $220,778 $35,150
  
4231- Street  
    (4825) Street Vacuum Billy Goat $88,000 $94,500 $6,500
  
4260 – Sewer  
    1 Full-Time MW Position $781,705 $819,986 $38,281
 
The Council requested justification for the Sewer Maintenance Worker position is 
attached. 
 
Minor grammatical and format corrections were made to the document that did not 
affect the overall outcome. 
 
A public hearing has been noticed for the consideration of adoption of the proposed 
budget July 16, 2015 during the Regular Meeting to be held at 7:30 p.m.  I plan on 
giving a short overview of the proposed budget at that time.  We should expect others 
interested in the Budget’s impact on City service to be present as well. 
   
Following the public hearing, the Council can consider adopting Resolution 2015-10 
(attached) which approves the proposed budget.  Council may, as a result of comments 
made during the public hearing, make changes to the budget as presented prior to 
adoption.  A budget will need to be approved (or similar action) by the Council no later 



“In God We Trust” 

than July 21st in order for the City to have the authority to continue paying for 
purchases, services, and payroll for fiscal year 2015-2016. 
 
Budget Impact: 
The 2015-2016 proposed budget includes an overall revenue projection of $17,944,085 
and authorizes $20,743,642 in City wide expenditures.  For more details, see page 17 
of the proposed City Operations and Maintenance Budget.  
 
Recommendation: 
That the City Council, by motion, approve Resolution 2015-10 adopting the proposed 
2015-2016 City Operations and Maintenance Budget. 
 



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
Lois Wynne 

Mayor Pro Tem 

  Sewer Department 
 

711 W. Cinnamon Dr. 
Lemoore, CA  93245 

Phone (559) 924-6744 
FAX  (559) 924-6708 

Jeff Chedester 
Council Members 

Ray Madrigal 
Eddie Neal 

William Siegel 
 

                         City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 
                                                                                                                 
 
 
 
To:            City of Lemoore Council Members 
 
From:        Fred Jimenez, Public Works Superintendent 
 
Date:         June 4, 2015 
 
Subject:     Justification of new Maintenance Worker I/II Position 
 
 
My request for the addition of this position is for the restructure of my department to 
improve and maintain a more efficient running sewer system and reduce costs. 
 
I would staff the Wastewater Treatment plant with four (4) certified operators to cover time 
off, vacation, sick leave etc. Certification is required by the State Water Resources Control 
Board to operate any wastewater plant. I currently have two (2) certified operators and 
one (1) Operator in Training. 
 
On the collection side of the department, I would utilize the sewer line camera we 
purchased last year to inspect more footage of sewer lines, inspect the trouble spots 
throughout town and eliminate them. I would also perform more efficient maintenance on 
all lift stations (19 sewer and 23 storm) and fix the problems before they create problems. 
 
I would keep one (1) permanent part-time position and one (1) part-time position to 
continue with their current maintenance duties and to assist in the leaf collection program. 
 
As a result of the additional person, I would eliminate one (1) part time position which 
would save $10,000.  
 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 2015-10 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMOORE 
APPROVING FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016 OPERATIONS AND 

MAINTENANCE BUDGET  
 

 
 At a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Lemoore duly called and held on 

June 16, 2015 at 7:30 p.m. on said day, it was moved by Council Member _________________ 

seconded by Council Member ______________ and carried that the following Resolution be 

adopted: 

 WHEREAS, the City Manager of the City of Lemoore has presented to the City Council 

a proposed Operations and Maintenance Budget of anticipated receipts and expenditures for the 

Fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2015 and ending June 30, 2016; and 

 WHEREAS, after consideration thereon, the City Council of the City of Lemoore made 

detailed review and adjustments thereto. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Operations and Maintenance 

Budget of the City of Lemoore for Fiscal Year 2015-2016 is hereby approved as follows: 

 
General Government (2014-2015) 

 
$3,691,848 

 
Public Safety (2014-2015) 

 
$5,573,098 

 
Public Service (2014-2015) 

 
$1,389,595 

 
Enterprise & Utility Activities (2014-2015) 

 
$7,0814,339 

 
Golf Course (2014-2015) 

 
$1,329,747 

  
Asset Replacement $866,790 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED as follows: 

1. The transfers as set forth in the City of Lemoore Operations and Maintenance Budget for 

Fiscal Year 2015-2016 on Page 17 are hereby approved. 

2. The appropriations limit of $18,855,371 as set forth in the City of Lemoore Operations 

and Maintenance Budget for Fiscal Year 2015-2016 is hereby approved. 

 



 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Lemoore at a regular 

meeting held on the 16th day of June 2015 by the following vote: 

 
  AYES: 

  NOES: 

  ABSENT: 

  ABSTAINING: 

 

 

ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
             
Mary J. Venegas     Lois Wynne 
City Clerk      Mayor 
 



 

     
 
CITY OF LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 
 
 
 
PROPOSED BUDGET 
Fiscal Year July 1, 2015 – June 30, 2016 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City Council 
Lois Wynne, Mayor 
Jeff Chedester, Mayor Pro Tem 
Ray Madrigal, Council Member 
Edward Neal, Council Member 
William Siegel, Council Member 
 
 

City Manager 
Ron Hoggard, Interim 
 
 
City of Lemoore 
119 Fox Street 
Lemoore, CA  93245 
(559) 924‐6700 
(559) 924‐9003 
www.lemoore.com 

 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

This page intentionally left blank. 
 
 
 
 

   



1 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
TRANSMITTAL LETTER ......................................................................................................................... 2 

ORGANIZATIONAL CHART ................................................................................................................... 5 

STATISTICS .......................................................................................................................................... 6 

SUMMARY OF FUND BALANCES ......................................................................................................... 7 

REVENUE SUMMARY .......................................................................................................................... 9 

ESTIMATED 2014‐2015 EXPENDITURE SUMMARY ........................................................................... 16 

APPROVED 2015‐2016 EXPENDITURE SUMMARY ............................................................................ 17 

APPROPRIATIONS LIMITATION ......................................................................................................... 18 

SALARY SCHEDULE ............................................................................................................................ 19 

POSITION ALLOCATION ..................................................................................................................... 22 

MONTHLY SALARY MATRIX ............................................................................................................... 25 

CITY COUNCIL.................................................................................................................................... 26 

CITY MANAGER ................................................................................................................................. 28 

FINANCE ............................................................................................................................................ 33 

MAINTENANCE DIVISION .................................................................................................................. 36 

POLICE DEPARTMENT ....................................................................................................................... 40 

FIRE DEPARTMENT ............................................................................................................................ 43 

BUILDING INSPECTION ...................................................................................................................... 46 

PUBLIC WORKS ................................................................................................................................. 49 

STREETS ............................................................................................................................................ 52 

RECREATION ..................................................................................................................................... 55 

GOLF COURSE ................................................................................................................................... 58 

WATER DIVISION ............................................................................................................................... 61 

UTILITY OFFICE .................................................................................................................................. 65 

REFUSE DIVISION .............................................................................................................................. 67 

SEWER AND STORM DRAIN .............................................................................................................. 70 

FLEET MAINTENANCE ....................................................................................................................... 73 

DOWNTOWN PBIA ............................................................................................................................ 76 

LIGHTING & LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE DISTRICT .......................................................................... 78 

PUBLIC FACILITIES MAINTENANCE DISTRICT .................................................................................... 80 

 
   



2 

 

 

TRANSMITTAL LETTER 

 
Mayor 

Lois Wynne  Office of the  
City Manager 

 
119 Fox Street 

Lemoore, CA  93245 
Phone (559) 924-6700 

Fax (559) 924-9003 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Jeff Chedester 

Council Members 
Ray Madrigal 
Eddie Neal 

William Siegel 
 

         
          City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 
 
June 2015 
 
 
 
Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council, and Citizens of Lemoore: 
 
Each year the City of Lemoore presents a one year funding plan for City operations set to coincide 
with the fiscal year which commences on July 1st and runs thru June 30th. This 2015/16 Operations 
and Maintenance Budget is provided pursuant to Section 1-6A-4H of the Lemoore Municipal 
Code, and includes departmental budget requests, as well as, the Budget Committee’s budget 
recommendations for review by the full City Council. 
 
General Fund Focus 
 
At the core of the City of Lemoore’s operational funds is the General Fund. Many of the day-to-
day operations of municipal government revolve around and flow out of the General Fund.  It is 
also the fund of last resort. Years ago one of the practical reasons to maintain reserves in the 
General Fund was to fund City operations during periods between property tax payments when 
large amounts of cash came into the City. If cities did not have sufficient dry period reserves, they 
would sell short-term tax anticipation notes (TANs) to bridge the shortfall. The nature of the cash 
flow has changed over the years and the City of Lemoore has been prudent in maintaining healthy 
cash reserves, as well as, asset replacement reserves in the General Fund and in the enterprise 
funds of Water, Sewer/Storm Drain, and Refuse.  
 
The City’s approach to budgeting is conservative. Revenue projections reflect this philosophy, 
therefore, normally there is a better likelihood that revenues will exceed expectations, rather than 
fall short of projections. But with all estimates, shortfalls can occur from time-to-time. Those 
unforeseen shortfalls are softened by the establishment and maintenance of prudent cash reserves. 
  
The three largest revenue source contributors to the General fund currently and historically are 
respectively: 
 

1. Sales and Use Tax 
 

2. Motor Vehicle In-Lieu Tax 
 

3. Secured Property Tax 



3 

 

The 2015/16 combined anticipated revenues are expected to total $16,744,759.  During the 
2015/16 fiscal year, we estimate $8,296,576 in 
General Fund Revenue. Figure A depicts 
General Fund Revenues.  This revenue forecast 
is conservative, and takes into consideration 
the most recent level of economic activity.   
 

The Budget Committee recommendations for 
expenditures in the General Fund for 2015/16 
are contained in detailed, department-by-
department worksheets beginning on page 26 
of this document. Overall, they total 
$10,965,325, which is a few hundred dollars 
higher than the estimated General Fund 
expenses projected for the 2014/15 Budget.  

Figure B shows the breakdown by service area 
for the proposed expenditures.  
 

The proposed budget reflects adding four 
positions to the current staffing levels.  The 
General Fund has lost 11.45 full-time positions 
since the beginning of 2009, a decrease of 15% 
of the full-time employees.  The current level 
of services required warrant the additional 
positions.  
 

Staffing costs (salaries and benefits) continue 
to make up more than two-thirds of the General 
Fund costs.  Contained in this proposed budget 
are salary adjustments for various personnel.  Should any savings be created or other changes in 
compensation made through collective bargaining or Council action, this budget will need to be 

modified accordingly.     
 

As we compare total ongoing revenues, 
including transfers, with ongoing expenses 
and asset replacement contributions in the 
2015/16 Proposed Budget, you will find that 
the General Fund is underfunded by $348,255.  
If one-time expenditures of $437,617 were 
taken out of the calculation, there would be a 
surplus to the General Fund of $89,362.  
Figure C compares the General Fund 
department’s performance against the 2014-
15 budget ongoing expenses.  

 

Enterprise Fund Focus            
 

Our Water, Sewer/Storm Drain and Refuse Utilities are each operated as Enterprise Funds; 
revenues associated with these operations may only be used to cover the costs of operating the 
utility.  They operate as independent businesses where revenues are received and expenses are 
paid. Long term expensive capital improvements are either funded out of reserves collected or 



4 

 

larger projects require the use of long term debt instruments in the form of loans, bonds and where 
possible grants. 
  
In both the Water Fund and the Sewer/Storm Drain Fund, rate adjustments were made effective 
December 26, 2007.  The financial health of the Water Fund has been effected by the prolonged 
drought, a receding water table, ground movement, changing water quality, conservation efforts, 
and additional governmental regulation.  In the Sewer/Storm Drain Fund, we are accumulating 
funds to replace our aging wastewater treatment plant.  In the 2011/12 FY, the set aside funds were 
utilized to pay off the 1995 Water/Sewer Bonds.  We forecast that by the time the solar loan is 
paid in full, we will have set aside approximately 7 to 8 million dollars.  While a replacement plant 
could cost as much as $40 million (in current dollars), we will certainly not be able to accumulate 
it prior to needing to replace the facility. The set aside funds will help reduce the amount of debt 
needed to construct the new plant.  In the case of the Water Fund, we have set aside funds for the 
arsenic mitigation project.  The City was able to obtain the Federal American Recovery and 
Reinvestment Act grant to pay for the nearly $6 million in improvements that were needed for the 
water system.  The project is completed and required $1 million in set aside funds.  The estimated 
balance of the Arsenic Set Aside Funds for the end of the 2015/16 FY is projected to be $2 million. 
 

The Refuse Fund revenues and expenditures for 2015/16 are expected to be nearly equal to the 
current fiscal year. The recent conversion of a majority of our fleet to Natural Gas is expected to 
reduce fuel expenses in this department going forward. 
 

In fiscal year 2015/16 the City of Lemoore should see tangible savings in energy costs from the 
installation of the Solar Project. We look forward to the tracking and comparison of these costs 
with prior year utility expenses.  
 

Other Funds 
 

The Fleet Fund functions as an internal service fund, with all costs reimbursed by the departments 
utilizing the services.   
 

In this current fiscal year, the City took back the financial oversight of the golf course and 
requested proposals for the operation of both the Golf Course and the Food Concession. A 
recommendation for contracting these functions will be considered June 16, 2015. Subsequent to 
the action of the City Council, staff will formalize a budget for this enterprise for City Council 
consideration.   
 

Conclusion 
 

It is my pleasure to present to the Lemoore City Council the Budget Committee’s 
recommendations for expenditure levels and a generally conservative forecast for revenues.  The 
budget recommendations were the responsibility of the Budget Committee which consisted of 
Finance Director Cheryl Silva, Mayor Lois Wynne, Mayor Pro Tem Jeff Chedester and myself.  
Additionally, significant input and refinement took place from dedicated staff throughout the City.  
Each of the Department Heads and Division Managers contributed significantly to this document. 
Many thanks to Finance Director Cheryl Silva and City Clerk, Janie Venegas for their tireless and 
endless work in bringing this document together in a timely manner amid significant changes in 
City personnel. 
 

Sincerely, 
 
Ron Hoggard 
Interim City Manager   



5 

 

ORGANIZATIONAL CHART 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City Clerk

City Attorney **
City Council

City Manager

Police 
Department

Code 
Enforcement

Parks & 
Recreation

Maintenance 
Division

Fleet

Volunteer 
Fire 

Department
Finance * Public Works

Planning

Water

Sewer & Storm 
Drain

Refuse 
LLMD/PFMD

Building

Inspection

City Engineer **

Planning Commission

Parks & Recreation 
Commission

Citizens of 
Lemoore

** Contract Position 
* City Treasurer 



6 

 

STATISTICS 
 

      Market  New     Police     Population 

   Valuation  Dwelling  Fire  Felony  Full‐Time  Per 

Year  Population  Million  Units  Incidents Complaints Employees  Employee 

96‐97  16,371   519   313  226  595  83  197 

97‐98  16,799   551   282  267  649  88  191 

98‐99  17,605   589   240  251  532  89  198 

99‐00  18,316   621   146  194  613  88  208 

00‐01  20,000   652   123  190  672  96  208 

01‐02  20,193   733   171  193  750  99  204 

02‐03  20,733   826   167  255  835  100  207 

03‐04  20,993   1,062   227  207  777  100  210 

04‐05  21,076   1,164   134  248  740  96  220 

05‐06  22,508  1,262  241  279  877  107  210 

06‐07  23,388  1,393  206  276  854  108  217 

07‐08  24,098  1,552  92  244  903  112  215 

08‐09  24,502  1,702  67  263  771  114  215 

09‐10  24,818  1,709  28  128  781  112  222 

10‐11  24,282  1,784  11  183  872  101  240 

11‐12  24,835  1,830  29  274  821  97  256 

12‐13  24,815  1,810  99  157  859  96  258 

13‐14  25,262  1,851  96  254  730  95  278 

14‐15  25,281  1,767  50  187  838  96  263 

15‐16  25,325  N/A  N/A  N/A  N/A  101  251 

 
 
 
 



7 

 

SUMMARY OF FUND BALANCES 
2014‐2015 

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE BUDGET 
 

 BALANCE ESTIMATED     ESTIMATED ESTIMATED ASSET REPLACE ESTIMATED 
 AS OF  REVENUES TRANSFER TRANSFER CASH AVAILABLE EXPENSES CONTRIBUTION BALANCE 

FUND 7/1/2014 2014-2015 IN OUT RESERVE 2014-2015 2014-2015 2014-2015 6/30/2015 

          
001  General Fund $8,559,045 $8,954,901 $1,881,940 $197,360 $1,487,774 $17,710,752 $10,041,996 $320,956 $7,347,799 

   Asset Replacement $2,348,785 $320,956   $1,334,871 $1,334,871 $453,549  $881,322 

          
020  Traffic Safety Fund $399,405 $14,850  $1,025  $413,230   $413,230 

          
030  Gas Tax 2106 $267,067 $62,000  $225,097  $103,970   $103,970 

          
032  Gas Tax 2107.5 $34,328 $6,000  $16,819  $23,509   $23,509 

          
045 Golf Course Fund $96,967 $1,116,539    $1,213,506 $1,104,814  $108,692 
   Capital Project/Asset Funds $72,471 $28,025    $100,496 $57,739  $42,757 

          
050  Water Fund $710,721 $3,056,255 $217,544 $527,516 $910,093 $2,546,912 $4,668,999 $292,406 -$2,414,494 

   Asset Replacement $1,178,887 $292,406   $735,647 $735,647 $166,598  $569,049 

   Arsenic Plant Set Aside $762,516 $690,467    $1,452,983   $1,452,983 

          
056  Refuse Fund -$61,511 $3,036,087  $645,400 $270,691 $2,058,485 $1,804,604 $109,304 $144,577 

   Asset Replacement $775,685 $109,304   $442,495 $442,495 $299,472  $143,023 

          
060  Sewer/Storm Drain 
Fund $1,342,793 $2,255,430  $477,536 $277,595 $2,843,092 $1,819,371 $137,126 $886,595 

   Asset Replacement $1,388,774 $137,126   $762,950 $762,950 $149,282  $613,668 

   WWTP Set Aside $2,918,167 $1,904,561    $4,822,728   $4,822,728 

          
078  LLMD $41,455 $253,565  $9,560  $285,460 $180,042  $105,418 

           
078 Pub. Fac. Maint. Dist. $1,723,265 $409,225  $20,440 $1,257,320 $854,730 $122,778  $731,952 

          
085 Parking & Bus. 
   Improvement Area $8,912 $9,500    $18,412 $6,026  $12,386 

          

              TOTAL $22,567,732 $18,085,838 $2,099,484 $2,120,753 $7,479,434 $37,724,226 $20,875,271 $859,792 $15,989,164 
          

 040  Fleet Maintenance  -$178,997 $918,839  $100,758  $639,084 $846,637 $4,596 -$212,149 

    Asset Replacement $82,730 $4,596   $43,663 $43,663   $43,663 



8 

 

2015‐2016 
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE BUDGET 

 

 ESTIMATED         
 BALANCE ESTIMATED     ESTIMATED ESTIMATED ASSET REPLACE ESTIMATED 

 AS OF  REVENUES TRANSFER TRANSFER CASH AVAILABLE EXPENSES CONTRIBUTION BALANCE 
FUND 7/1/2015 2015-2016 IN OUT RESERVE 2015-2016 2015-2016 2015-2016 6/30/2016 

          
001  General Fund $8,835,574 $8,296,576 $2,169,278 $169,800 $1,536,225 $17,601,650 $10,365,003 $320,956 $6,909,443 

   Asset Replacement $2,216,192 $320,956   $1,268,574 $1,268,574 $641,973  $626,601 

          
020  Traffic Safety Fund $413,230 $14,500  $70,654  $357,076   $357,076 

          
030  Gas Tax 2106 $103,970 $60,000  $485,314  -$321,344   -$321,344 

          
032  Gas Tax 2107.5 $23,509 $6,000  $12,150  $17,359   $17,359 

          
045 Golf Course Fund $108,692 $1,381,607    $1,490,299 $1,329,747 $16,800 $160,552 
Capital Project/Asset Funds $42,757 $16,800    $59,557 $3,700  $55,857 

          
050  Water Fund -$1,504,401 $2,823,301 $216,414 $526,468 $597,476 $411,370 $3,418,533 $292,406 -$3,299,569 

   Asset Replacement $1,304,695 $292,406   $798,551 $798,551 $160,617  $637,934 

   Arsenic Plant Set Aside $1,452,983 $630,688    $2,083,671   $2,083,671 

          
056  Refuse Fund $415,268 $2,893,500  $645,479 $314,597 $2,348,692 $2,097,313 $109,304 $142,075 

   Asset Replacement $585,517 $109,304   $347,411 $347,411 $28,500  $318,911 

          
060  Sewer/Storm Drain 
Fund $1,164,190 $2,267,722  $486,183 $236,895 $2,718,909 $1,615,871 $137,126 $955,837 

   Asset Replacement $1,376,618 $137,126   $756,872 $756,872 $32,000  $724,872 

   WWTP Set Aside $4,822,728 $1,139,110    $5,961,838   $5,961,838 

          
078  LLMD $105,418 $253,565  $6,500  $352,483 $183,505  $168,978 

           
078 Pub. Fac. Maint. Dist. $1,989,272 $409,225  $12,848 $1,257,320 $1,128,329 $124,070  $1,004,259 

          
085  Parking & Business 
Improv Area $12,386 $9,500    $21,886 $19,624  $2,262 

          
              TOTAL $23,468,598 $17,050,689 $2,385,692 $2,415,396 $7,097,598 $37,403,183 $19,932,427 $876,592 $16,614,963 

          
 040  Fleet Maintenance  -$212,149 $888,800  $92,881  $583,770 $811,215 $4,596 -$232,041 

   Asset Replacement $87,326 $4,596   $45,961 $45,961   $45,961 

   



9 

 

REVENUE SUMMARY 
 

  
Actual 

Revenue 
Adopted 
Budget  

Adjusted 
Budget  

Actual 
Revenue 

Anticipated 
Revenue 

Approved 
Revenue  

   2013-2014 2014-2015 2014-2015 Thru Mar 2015 2014-2015 2015-2016 

PROPERTY TAXES       

3010 Secured Property Taxes   
  

943,748 
  

1,000,000 
  

1,000,000            541,818 
  

1,000,000 
  

1,000,000 

3010A Secured Property Taxes - RDA (Ongoing) 
  

873,292 
  

400,000 
  

800,000            731,191 
  

831,200 
  

400,000 

3010A Secured Property Taxes - RDA - One Time 
  

-   
  

-   
  

-   - - 
  

-   

3012 Unsecured Property Taxes 
  

38,081 
  

40,000 
  

40,000              36,635 
  

40,000 
  

40,000 

3014 Prior Year Taxes 
  

208 
  

25,000 
  

25,000                6,085 
  

25,000 
  

25,000 

3016 Supplemental Taxes 
  

16,071 
  

18,000 
  

18,000                8,881 
  

18,000 
  

18,000 
 
OTHER TAXES       

3020 Franchises 
  

590,571 
  

590,000 
  

590,000              88,227 
  

624,000 
  

624,000 

3022 Sales and Use Tax 
  

2,122,348 
  

2,021,000 
  

2,100,000         1,079,295 
  

2,116,000 
  

1,996,000 

3024 Real Property Transfer Tax 
  

48,948 
  

43,000 
  

43,000              26,213 
  

43,000 
  

43,000 

3026 Public Safety Tax  (SB 172) 
  

115,525 
  

115,000 
  

115,000              82,491 
  

118,500 
  

112,000 
 
LICENSES AND PERMITS       

3029 Business License Tax 
  

86,980 
  

85,000 
  

85,000              70,884 
  

85,000 
  

85,000 

3291-3293 Dog License 
  

7,981 
  

8,000 
  

8,000                4,415 
  

6,400 
  

7,000 

3032 Garage Sale Permits 
  

2,138 
  

2,000 
  

2,000                1,261 
  

2,000 
  

2,000 

3034 Transient Occupancy Tax 
  

127,248 
  

120,000 
  

130,000            122,538 
  

192,500 
  

160,000 

3040 Building Permits 
  

201,497 
  

100,000 
  

150,000            122,266 
  

150,000 
  

89,000 

3040 Building Permits - One Time 
  

-   
  

-   
  

-   - - 
  

-   

3045 Plumbing Permits (Ongoing) 
  

23,759 
  

13,500 
  

20,250                9,473 
  

20,250 
  

12,000 



10 

 

3045 Plumbing Permits - One Time 
  

-   
  

-   
  

-   - - 
  

-   

3050 Electrical Permits 
  

21,070 
  

7,200 
  

10,800              10,480 
  

11,000 
  

6,400 

3050 Electrical Permits - One Time 
  

-   
  

-   
  

-   - - 
  

-   

3055 Mechanical Permits 
  

6,116 
  

2,700 
  

4,050                3,749 
  

4,050 
  

2,400 

3055 Mechanical Permits - One Time 
  

-   
  

-   
  

-   - - 
  

-   

3290 Other Permits 
  

8,055 
  

7,500 
  

7,500                5,435 
  

7,500 
  

7,500 
 
FINES AND PENALTIES       

3815 Abandoned Vehicle Abatement 
  

5,434 
  

5,500 
  

5,500                1,982 
  

5,500 
  

5,500 

3820 Other Court Fines 
  

8,324 
  

9,000 
  

9,000              13,500 
  

15,000 
  

10,000 
 
RENTAL AND INTEREST REVENUE       

3850 Interest 
  

40,105 
  

50,000 
  

50,000              34,457 
  

61,941 
  

63,855 

3610 Reports & Copies 
  

5,504 
  

5,500 
  

5,500                4,731 
  

5,500 
  

5,500 

3620 Real Property Rental 
  

4,303 
  

7,250 
  

7,250                3,529 
  

7,250 
  

7,250 

3625/3626 Civic /Vets Hall Rental 
  

37,797 
  

34,000 
  

40,000              32,808 
  

40,000 
  

40,000 

3685 Park Reservations 
  

13,857 
  

15,000 
  

15,000                8,165 
  

12,000 
  

12,000 
 
REVENUE FROM OTHER AGENCIES       

3755 Motor Vehicle In-Lieu Tax 
  

1,976,735 
  

1,975,000 
  

1,880,000            945,359 
  

1,880,000 
  

1,880,000 

3760 Off-Highway Motor Vehicle Fees 
  

12 
  

25 
  

25                      -   
  

-   
  

-   

3765 Homeowners Exemption 
  

10,946 
  

12,000 
  

12,000                1,662 
  

12,000 
  

12,000 
 
REIMBURSEMENTS       

3792 Y.D.O Program - Liberty School 
  

47,224 
  

46,234 
  

46,234              26,025 
  

52,890 
  

46,234 

3777 Booking Fees 
  

22,771 
  

16,000 
  

16,000                5,277 
  

12,000 
  

12,000 

3786 Crossing Guards 
  

9,487 
  

14,358 
  

14,358                4,923 
  

10,420 
  

10,800 



11 

 

3778 Narcotics Task Force 
  

46,869 
  

30,000 
  

30,000                1,051 
  

1,051 
  

-   

3780 D.U.I. Cost Recovery 
  

6,959 
  

6,500 
  

6,500                4,170 
  

6,500 
  

6,500 

3782 P.O.S.T. 
  

15,522 
  

10,380 
  

10,380                5,439 
  

10,380 
  

10,429 

 SLESF COPS Funding - - - - - 100,000 

3793 Tachi Palace Grant 
  

-   
  

-   
  

50,000                      -   
  

50,000 
  

50,000 

3796 AB109 - Police Funding 
  

44,209 
  

35,000 
  

35,000                      -   
  

75,100 
  

80,200 

3861 Police Dept. Misc. Reimbursements 
  

5,017 
  

8,000 
  

8,000                7,456 
  

9,500 
  

9,500 

3862 Police Dept. Misc. Fees 
  

3,761 
  

2,000 
  

2,000                2,089 
  

2,500 
  

2,500 

3784 High School Y.D.O. Program 
  

45,143 
  

43,885 
  

43,885              31,324 
  

53,685 
  

92,819 

3787 WHC Campus Police Officer 
  

-   
  

-   
  

-                        -   
  

16,248 
  

70,745 

3882 Risk Mgmt. Retro. Adjust. 
  

360 
  

-   
  

-                        -   
  

-   
  

-   

3788A Incentives/Rebates 
  

40,247 
  

38,728 
  

38,728                4,766 
  

5,000 
  

20,000 

3879 Reimbursements 
  

54,764 
  

70,000 
  

70,000            107,503 
  

160,399 
  

70,000 

3880 Miscellaneous 
  

21,778 
  

13,000 
  

13,000                9,115 
  

13,000 
  

13,000 

3880 Miscellaneous - One Time 
  

209,191 
  

-   
  

-                        -   - 
  

-   
 
CHARGES FOR OTHER SERVICES       

3060 Plan Check Fees 
  

83,680 
  

50,000 
  

75,000              44,488 
  

75,000 
  

50,000 

3540 Planning Fees 
  

34,989 
  

25,000 
  

25,000              19,472 
  

25,000 
  

25,000 

3630 General Plan Update Fee 
  

25,965 
  

9,000 
  

13,500              12,169 
  

13,500 
  

8,000 

3635 Technology Fee 
  

12,372 
  

4,500 
  

6,750                6,085 
  

6,750 
  

4,000 

3030 Business License Processing Fee 
  

36,713 
  

37,000 
  

37,000              35,041 
  

37,000 
  

37,000 

3190 Subdivision Street Sign Fee 
  

-   
  

-   
  

-                  2,665 
  

2,665 
  

-   

3200 Public Improvement Plan Check Fee 
  

39,145 
  

50,000 
  

90,000              89,393 
  

90,000 
  

50,000 

3205 Street Cut Review Fee 
  

2,278 
  

1,500 
  

1,500                2,049 
  

2,200 
  

2,200 



12 

 

3220 Special Building Inspection Fee 
  

-   
  

500 
  

500                   110 
  

150 
  

150 

3681 Recreation Fees 
  

352,283 
  

325,000 
  

325,000            227,585 
  

352,585 
  

350,000 

3811 Animal Control 
  

998 
  

600 
  

600                   333 
  

600 
  

600 
 
OTHER REVENUE       

3870 Contributions-Lem RDA Successor Agency 
  

250,000 
  

250,000 
  

250,000            250,000 
  

250,000 
  

250,000 

 Contributions-Lemoore Housing Authority 
  

-   
  

-   
  

-   - - 
  

-   

3867GC General Fund Golf Course Bond Loan 
  

-   
  

-   
  

-                43,595 
  

174,215 
  

176,227 

3865 Sale - City-owned Property 
  

9,201 
  

-   
  

-                  2,974 
  

2,974 
  

-   

3881 Sundry Revenue 
  

188 
  

600 
  

600                   394 
  

600 
  

600 

3872 School Impact Fee Admin./Kings.Co.Admin. 
  

28,269 
  

10,000 
  

15,000                9,496 
  

15,000 
  

10,000 

3874 Weed Abatement 
  

796 
  

4,000 
  

4,000                3,032 
  

4,000 
  

4,000 

3875 Gifts & Donations 
  

1,000 
  

2,500 
  

2,500                      -   
  

5,000 
  

5,000 

 
 
Grant Proceeds       

3900 Transfer In-CNG Grant 
  

-   
  

-   
  

-                20,000 
  

20,000 
  

-   

3710 Grant Proceeds 
  

46,480 
  

5,500 
  

5,500                      -   
  

10,767 
  

22,000 

 COPS Grant 
  

52,867 
  

41,667 
  

41,667              26,208 
  

54,631 
  

41,667 

 FUND SUB-TOTAL 8,887,179 7,862,627 8,451,077 5,001,757 8,954,901 8,296,576 

        
SPECIAL REVENUE       

078-3775 Lighting & Landscape Maint. District 
  

259,260 
  

257,334 
  

257,334            125,918 
  

253,565 
  

253,565 

078-3775A Public Facilities Maint. District 
  

541,479 
  

550,199 
  

550,199            202,482 
  

409,225 
  

409,225 

085-3029 Downtown Improvement District 
  

9,703 
  

9,500 
  

9,500                8,737 
  

9,500 
  

9,500 
 
CODE FINES       

020-3810 Vehicle Code Fines 
  

24,060 
  

26,000 
  

26,000                7,763 
  

10,000 
  

10,000 



13 

 

020-3812 Parking Fines 
  

5,291 
  

3,200 
  

3,200                2,252 
  

3,000 
  

3,500 

020-3850 Interest 
  

1,342 
  

-   
  

-                  1,392 
  

1,850 
  

1,000 
 
GAS TAX (Maintenance)       

030-3740 Gas Tax 2106 
  

61,263 
  

60,000 
  

60,000              41,937 
  

62,000 
  

60,000 

032-3750 Gas Tax 2107.5 
  

6,086 
  

6,000 
  

6,000                6,000 
  

6,000 
  

6,000 

 Special Revenue Sub-Total 
  

908,484 
  

912,233 
  

912,233            396,481 
  

755,140 
  

752,790 
        
 ENTERPRISE ACTIVITIES       
        

WATER FUND - 050       

3305 Water Meter Fees 64,241 
  

40,500 
  

45,500              27,725 
  

40,000 
  

36,000 

3300 Water Service Fees 3,791,818 
  

3,800,000 
  

3,500,000         2,664,368 
  

3,473,000 
  

2,950,000 

3311 Account Set Up Fee 33,796 
  

35,000 
  

35,000              26,325 
  

34,000 
  

34,000 

3850 Interest 9,233 
  

4,000 
  

4,000                6,871 
  

9,100 
  

8,000 

3880 Miscellaneous Reimbursements 
  

(488) 
  

1,000 
  

12,000              15,649 
  

15,700 
  

1,000 

3550 Delinquent Turn On/Off 20,227 
  

27,000 
  

27,000              18,150 
  

20,000 
  

20,000 

3320 Construction Meter Rental 26,077 
  

5,000 
  

18,000              12,621 
  

20,000 
  

10,000 

3321 Returned Check 6,513 
  

6,500 
  

6,500                4,572 
  

5,500 
  

5,500 

3560 Delinquent Penalty 55,341 
  

60,000 
  

60,000              36,857 
  

42,000 
  

42,000 

3570 Door Hanger Fee 50,832 
  

70,000 
  

70,000              44,518 
  

53,422 
  

54,000 

3884 Bad Debt Recovery 6,444 
  

4,000 
  

7,000              10,486 
  

14,000 
  

7,000 

3710 Grant Proceeds 
  

-   
  

-   
  

-                        -   
  

-   
  

-   

3788A Incentives/Rebates 
  

-   
  

286,489 
  

286,489                      -   
  

-   
  

286,489 

3970 Operating Transfer In - Water Capital - 
  

-   
  

-                20,000 
  

20,000 
  

-   

  Water Fund Totals  4,064,034 4,339,489 4,071,489 2,888,142 3,746,722 3,453,989 
 



14 

 

 UPDATE   Arsenic Plant Set Aside  
  

(726,792) 
  

(727,026) 
  

(727,026)                      -   
  

(1,135,660) 
  

(1,109,946) 

  Water Fund Totals         3,337,242 
  

3,612,463 
  

3,344,463         2,888,142 
  

2,611,062 
  

2,344,043 
         

REFUSE FUND - 056       

3400 Refuse Service Fees 2,771,721 
  

2,793,000 
  

2,793,000         2,100,678 
  

2,777,722 
  

2,780,000 

3850 Interest 2,555 
  

1,000 
  

1,000                3,825 
  

5,000 
  

4,000 

3410 Special Refuse Pickups 24,840 
  

25,000 
  

25,000              18,560 
  

25,000 
  

25,000 

3560 Delinquent Penalty 39,133 
  

44,000 
  

44,000              30,424 
  

38,000 
  

38,000 

3570 Door Hanger Fee 29,369 
  

31,000 
  

31,000              25,721 
  

30,865 
  

31,000 

3420/3430 Recycling Program 1,447 
  

1,500 
  

1,500                     76 
  

1,500 
  

1,500 

3880 Miscellaneous Reimbursements 13,394 
  

9,500 
  

9,500                8,335 
  

10,000 
  

10,000 

3884 Bad Debt Recovery 3,954 
  

3,000 
  

3,000                6,435 
  

8,000 
  

4,000 

3710 Grant Proceeds 6,912 
  

-   
  

-                        -   
  

140,000 
  

-   

 Refuse Fund Totals 2,893,325 2,908,000 2,908,000 2,194,054 3,036,087 2,893,500 
        

SEWER FUND - 060       

3500 Sewer Service Fees 3,201,226 
  

3,250,000 
  

3,250,000         2,401,778 
  

3,173,471 
  

3,204,251 

3850 Interest 25,759 
  

12,000 
  

12,000              21,519 
  

28,600 
  

25,000 

3879B Drainage Reimbursements 26,760 
  

35,000 
  

35,000              14,637 
  

18,000 
  

18,000 

3880 Miscellaneous Reimbursements 5,594 
  

-   
  

-                     234 
  

80,234 
  

3,000 

3510 Waste Water Sales 2,825 
  

2,750 
  

2,750                1,402 
  

2,750 
  

2,750 

3560 Delinquent Penalty 41,754 
  

46,500 
  

46,500              33,512 
  

40,000 
  

40,000 

3570 Door Hanger Fee 32,758 
  

35,600 
  

35,600              28,689 
  

34,427 
  

35,000 

3884 Bad Debt Recovery 4,247 
  

3,100 
  

3,100                6,911 
  

8,500 
  

4,200 

3575 Non System Waste Water Fees 813 
  

60,000 
  

60,000                   415 
  

415 
  

-   



15 

 

3788A Incentives/Rebates 
  

-   
  

74,631 
  

74,631                      -   
  

-   
  

74,631 

3960 Operating Transfer In - 
  

-   
  

-                        -   
  

-   
  

-   

 Sewer Set Aside-Solar Project (One Time) - 
  

-   
  

-                        -   
  

-   
  

-   

  Sewer Fund Totals  3,341,736 3,519,581 3,519,581 2,509,097 3,386,397 3,406,832 
        

 UPDATE   WWTP Set Aside  
  

(1,555,927) 
  

(1,153,382) 
  

(1,153,382)                      -   
  

(1,454,561) 
  

(1,139,982) 

  Sewer Fund Totals  
  

4,897,663 
  

2,366,199 
  

2,366,199         2,509,097 
  

1,931,836 
  

2,266,850 
        

GOLF FUND        

3620 Property Rental 
  

-   
  

-   
  

-                  3,267 
  

5,767 
  

-   

3691 Concession Fees 
  

-   
  

-   
  

-                76,995 
  

86,697 
  

232,210 

3691C Concession Fees-Contract 
  

-   
  

-   
  

-                     255 
  

655 
  

-   

3850 Interest 
  

-   
  

-   
  

-                     156 
  

300 
  

600 

3880 Miscellaneous 
  

-   
  

-   
  

-                  1,905 
  

1,905 
  

-   

3866 Golf Course Receipts 
  

-   
  

-   
  

-              625,632 
  

908,737 
  

981,516 

3864 Golf Pro Shop Receipts 
  

-   
  

-   
  

-                71,605 
  

112,478 
  

167,281 

3879 Reimbursements 
  

201,724 
  

191,000 
  

191,000                      -   
  

-                    - 

 Golf Course Fund Totals 
  

201,724 
  

191,000 
  

191,000            779,815 
  

1,116,539 
  

1,381,607 

        

SPECIAL REV./ENTERPRISE FUNDS SUB-TOTAL 
  

12,238,438 
  

9,989,895 
  

9,721,895         8,767,589 
  

9,450,664 
  

9,638,790 

          

        

GRAND TOTAL 
  

21,125,617 
  

17,852,522 
  

18,172,972       13,769,346 
  

18,405,565 
  

17,935,366 

 
   



16 

 

ESTIMATED 2014‐2015 EXPENDITURE SUMMARY 

    
BENEFITS & 
SALARIES M & O 

OTHER 
PAYABLES 

CAPITAL 
OUTLAY TOTAL 

ASSET 
REPLACEMENT ONE TIME 

         

GENERAL GOVERNMENT        

4211 Council           35,813      430,093                   -                   -              465,906                            -               356,946 

4213 City Manager         459,721       104,877                   -                   -              564,598                    15,400               24,861 

4215 Finance 254,993 826,508                   -                   -           1,081,501                            -                   3,317 

4216 Planning                     -                    -                 -                 -                        -                           -   

4218 Community Participation                     -                    -                     -                   -                        -                              -                         -   

4220 Maintenance Division         666,357       647,389           25,255         62,917          1,401,918                    57,149               95,167 

4231 Streets           25,061       132,790            3,000             160,851                    70,000                 3,000 

4270 PBIA                    -             6,026                   -                   -                  6,026                            -                         -   

TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT      1,441,945    2,147,683           25,255         65,917          3,680,800                  142,549             483,291 

         

PUBLIC SAFETY        

4221 Police      3,666,725         871,919                   -         124,534          4,663,178                  311,000             161,034 

4222 Fire           71,197         346,033                   -           48,115             465,345                            -                 51,315 

4224 Building Inspection         161,325           38,301                   -                   -              199,626                            -                   6,258 

TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY      3,899,247      1,256,253                   -         172,649          5,328,149                  311,000             218,607 

         

PUBLIC SERVICE        

4230 Public Works         350,524         170,448                   -                   -              520,972                            -                   4,992 

4800 LLMD             3,856         176,186                   -                   -              180,042                            -                         -   

 PFMD             7,242         115,536                   -                   -              122,778                            -                         -   

4242 Recreation         291,565         216,537                   -           10,000             518,102                            -                 14,373 

4245 Golf Course 238,845 607,505 258,464                   -  1,104,814 57,739 9,287 

4250 Water         705,638      1,695,755      1,023,628       859,151          4,284,172                  166,598             859,151 

4251 Utility Office         264,812         120,015                   -                   -              384,827                            -                   4,750 

4256 Refuse         585,126      1,219,478                   -                   -           1,804,604                  299,472                 6,250 

4260 Sewer         764,139         724,381         323,594           7,257          1,819,371                  149,282               20,499 

TOTAL PUBLIC SERVICE      3,211,747      5,045,841      1,605,686       876,408         10,739,682                  673,091             919,302 

         

4265 Fleet Maintenance         252,437         545,777                   -           48,423             846,637                            -                 48,423 

GRAND TOTAL      8,805,376      8,995,554      1,630,941    1,163,397        20,595,268               1,126,640          1,669,623 



17 

 

APPROVED 2015‐2016 EXPENDITURE SUMMARY 

    
BENEFITS & 
SALARIES M & O 

OTHER 
PAYABLES 

CAPITAL 
OUTLAY TOTAL 

ASSET 
REPLACEMENT 

ONE TIME 
OPERATIONS 

TOTAL ONE 
TIME 

          

GENERAL GOVERNMENT         

4211 Council            50,875       118,200                 -                     -          169,075                        -                         -                         -   

4213 City Manager          540,126          88,572                 -                     -          628,698                        -                   7,177                 7,177 

4215 Finance Department          267,461        826,560                 -                     -       1,094,021                44,073                    875               44,948 

4216 Planning                     -                     -                   -                     -                      -                         -                         -                         -   

4218 Community Participation                     -                     -                   -                     -                      -                         -                         -                         -   

4220 Maintenance Division          629,363        610,978        24,807         19,000     1,284,147                        -                 94,000               94,000 

4231 Streets          157,143       251,140                 -          94,500       502,782                        -               206,550             206,550 

4270 PBIA                     -            19,624                 -                     -            19,624  0 0                       -   

TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT       1,644,968     1,915,073        24,807       113,500    3,691,848                44,073             308,602             352,675 

          

PUBLIC SAFETY         

4221 Police       3,956,493        908,002                 -            3,500    4,867,995              136,000               62,215             198,215 

4222 Fire            71,835        389,240                 -          22,000       483,075              461,900               22,000             483,900 

4224 Building Inspection          220,778          36,400                 -                     -         257,178                        -                   1,800                 1,800 

TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY       4,249,106    1,333,642                 -           25,500     5,608,248              597,900             86,015             683,915 

           

PUBLIC SERVICE         

4230 Public Works          352,677       169,800                 -                     -          522,477                        -                         -                         -   

4800 LLMD              3,705       179,800                 -                     -          183,494                          -                         -                         - 

4800 PFMD              6,874        121,196         128,070                          -                          - 

4242 Recreation         297,520       250,034                 -            8,000       555,554                        -                   8,000                 8,000 

4245 Golf Course -  1,024,535   305,212                   -   1,329,747 3,700 - 3,700 

4250 Water          729,338     1,584,741      573,628        98,000     2,985,707                93,000               113,000             206,000 

4251 Utility Office          313,191        119,635                 -                     -          432,826                67,617                    875               68,492 

4256 Refuse          644,213     1,453,100                 -                     -       2,097,313                28,500               13,700               42,200 

4260 Sewer      819,986        795,885                 -                     -       1,615,871                32,000               22,900               54,900 

TOTAL PUBLIC SERVICE       3,167,504     5,698,726      878,840       106,000     9,851,070              224,817             158,475             383,292 

          

4265 Fleet Maintenance          258,667        529,548                 -           23,000        811,215                        -                 23,000               23,000 

GRAND TOTAL       9,320,245     9,476,989      903,647       261,500   19,968,881              866,790             553,092          1,419,882 



18 

 

APPROPRIATIONS LIMITATION 
 
In November, 1979, the voters of California approved Proposition 4 ‐ Spending Limitation.  The Proposition 
provides for limits to annual appropriations which are funded by proceeds from taxes for each fiscal year 
beginning with the 1980‐81 Fiscal Year.  Proposition 4 establishes 1978‐79 as the base year for computing 
the  limitation.   The  limit may be adjusted each year  for  the percentage change  in population, plus  the 
percentage  change  in  the  Consumer  Price  Index  (CPI)  or  the  Per  Capita  Income  (PCI)  for  California, 
whichever is less.  To arrive at the limit for 2015‐2016, the base year has to be adjusted for the changes in 
population, plus CPI or PCI for fiscal years 1978‐79 through 2015‐2016. 
 
The  amount  determined  to  be  the  Appropriations  Limit  for  2015‐2016  was  computed  by  using  the 
information provided by  the State Department of Finance and adding  the  increase  to  the  limitation  for 
2014‐2015. 
 
The following is the calculation of the 2015‐2016 Appropriations Limit: 
       
  Appropriations Limit – 2014‐2015    $     17,905,981 
   
  Adjustment Factors: 
    Population Change  1.0382 
               Per Capita Income Change                    x     1.0040 
  Total Adjustment Factor                                 1.0424 
 
  Increase to 2014‐2015    $           766,130   
 
  Appropriations Limit for 2015‐2016    $      18,855,371 
  Expenditures Subject to Limit 2015‐2016    $        6,519,700 
          ______________ 
 
  Amount of Unspent Authorized Appropriation    $      12,335,671



19 

 

SALARY SCHEDULE 
CLASSIFICATION MONTHLY PAY RANGES 

 

CLASSIFICATION  7/1/2014 7/1/2015

Office Assistant I  246 (2229‐2859) 252 (2295‐2946)

Police Records Technician  264 (2438‐3127) 266 (2462‐3159)

Maintenance Worker I  264 (2438‐3127) 266 (2462‐3159)

Office Assistant II  270 (2510‐3223) 272 (2536‐3255)

Account Clerk I  271 (2523‐3239) 273 (2549‐3271)

Police Records Technician II  286 (2719‐3490)

Maintenance Worker II  284 (2692‐3456) 286 (2719‐3490)

Recreation Specialist  288 (2747‐3525) 290 (2775‐3561)

Secretary  288 (2747‐3525) 290 (2775‐3561)

Police Evidence Technician  289 (2761‐3543) 291 (2789‐3579)

Utility Operator I  289 (2761‐3543) 291 (2789‐3579)

Account Clerk II  291 (2789‐3579) 293 (2817‐3615)

Community Service Officer  292 (2803‐3597) 294 (2831‐3633)

Building Permit Technician  301 (2931‐3762)

Planning Technician  301 (2931‐3762)

Utility Operator II  309 (3051‐3914) 311 (3081‐3954)

Senior Maintenance Worker  310 (3066‐3934) 312 (3096‐3974)

Equipment Mechanic  314 (3127‐4014) 316 (3159‐4054)

Recreation Coordinator  314 (3127‐4014) 316 (3159‐4054)

Police Record Supervisor  326 (3320‐4261) 330 (3388‐4347)

Office Manager  326 (3320‐4261) 330 (3388‐4347)

Accounting Technician  330 (3338‐4347) 332 (3422‐4391)

Senior Utility Operator  332 (3422‐4391) 334 (3456‐4435)

Senior Equipment Mechanic  338 (3525‐4524) 340 (3561‐4570)



20 

CLASSIFICATION  7/1/2014 7/1/2015

Building Inspector  339 (3543‐4547) 341 (3579‐4593)

Executive Sec / Housing Specialist  339 (3543‐4547) 343 (3615‐4639)

Police Officer  341 (3579‐4593) 347 (3687‐4732)

Coordinator ♦  342 (3597‐4616) 344 (3633‐4662)

Collection System Coordinator  342 (3597‐4616) 344 (3633‐4662)

Accountant  351 (3762‐4828) 355 (3838‐4925)

Police Officer & AA/AS Degree 357 (3876‐4975)

Police Officer & BA/BS Degree 367 (4074‐5230)

Police Corporal  355 (3838‐4925) 367 (4074‐5230)

Police Corporal & AA/AS Degree 377 (4282‐5497)

Administrative Analyst  375 (4240‐5443) 379 (4325‐5552)

City Clerk / Administrative Secretary  375 (4240‐5443) 379 (4325‐5552)

Superintendent  380 (4347‐5580) 384 (4435‐5692)

Police Corporal & BA/BS Degree 387 (4501‐5778)

Police Sergeant  380 (4347‐5580) 392 (4616‐5923)

Police Sergeant & AA/AS Degree 402 (4852‐6227)

Project Manager  404 (4900‐6289) 408 (5000‐6416)

Police Sergeant & BA/BS Degree 412 (5100‐6546)

Police Commander  428 (5524‐7090) 432 (5636‐7234)

Parks/Recreation Director  445 (6013‐7719) 449 (6134‐7875)

Public Works/Planning Director  458 (6416‐8237) 462 (6546‐8403)

Finance Director  460 (6481‐8320) 464 (6611‐8488)

Police Chief  473 (6916‐8877) 485 (7343‐9425)

City Manager  513 (8445‐10838) 517 (8615‐11056)

♦ Includes Building Maintenance‐Construction., Collection System and Refuse



21 

PART‐TIME CLASSIFICATIONS  Hourly Rate

Accounting Technician  $19.00 ‐ $25.00

Assistant Day Camp Director  $10.00 ‐ $12.00

Cashier  $9.00 ‐ $11.00

Crossing Guard  $10.00 ‐ $11.00

Day Camp Director  $12.00 ‐ $15.00

Finance Clerk  $12.00 ‐ $14.00

Instructor  $9.00 ‐ $15.00

Laborer  $9.00 ‐ $16.00

Lifeguard  $9.00 ‐ $11.00

Pool Manager  $10.00 ‐ $12.00

Recreation Leader  $9.00 ‐ $11.00

Golf Course Maintenance Worker I  $9.00 ‐ $13.00

Golf Course Maintenance Worker II  $10.00 ‐ $16.00

Golf Course Mechanic  $10.00 ‐ $16.00

Golf Course Shop Assistant I  $9.00 ‐ $13.00

Golf Course Shop Assistant II  $10.00 ‐ $16.00

*Part‐Time Classifications not listed here will be paid an hourly rate equal to

Step A of the appropriate range for that Classification.



22 

POSITION ALLOCATION 

2014‐2015 2015‐2016 

Class./Departments  Authorized Range    Approved Range 

GENERAL GOVERNMENT

City Manager's Office 

City Manager  1.00 513 1.00  517

Project Manager  0.70 404 0.70  408

City Clerk / Admin. Secretary  1.00 375 1.00  379

Administrative Analyst  1.00 375 1.00  379

Executive Sec/Housing Specialist  1.00 339 1.00  343

Office Assistant I/II  1.00 246 1.00  272

5.70 5.70 

Finance Department 

Finance Director  0.50 460 0.50  464

Accountants (2)  1.00 351 1.00  355

Accounting Technician  1.00 330 1.00  332

Account Clerk I/II  0.75 291 0.75  293

3.25 3.25 

0.60 445 0.50  449

0.70 380 0.50  384

1.00 342 0.65  344

6.00 284 6.40  286

Maintenance Division 

Parks/Recreation Director 
Superintendent 

Bldg. Maint/Const. 

Coordinator Maintenance 

Worker I/II Office Assistant I/II  0.45 270 0.20  272

8.75 8.25 

PUBLIC SAFETY

Police Department 

Police Chief  1.00 473 1.00  485

Police Commander  1.00 428 2.00  432

Police Sergeant  5.00 380 5.00  392

Police Corporal  5.00 355 5.00  367

Police Officer  19.00 341 19.00  347

Police Records Supervisor  1.00 326 1.00  330

Community Services Officer  2.00 292 2.00  294

Police Evidence Technician  1.00 289 1.00  291

Secretary  1.00 288 1.00  290

Police Records Technician I/II  2.00 264 2.00  286

38.00 39.00 



23 

1.00 284 1.00  286

0.25  301

Fire Department 

Maintenance Worker I/II 
Planning Technician 
Office Assistant II  0.25 270

1.25 1.25 

Building Inspection 

Superintendent  0.30 380 0.30  384

Building Inspector  1.00 339 1.00  341

Building Permit Technician 1.00  301

Office Assistant II  1.00 270

2.30 2.30 

PUBLIC SERVICE

Public Works 

Public Works Director  1.00 458 1.00  462

Project Manager  0.30 404 0.30  408

Superintendent  0.70 380 0.70  384

Office Manager  1.00 326 1.00  330

Planning Technician 0.75  301

Office Assistant II  0.75 270

3.75 3.75 

0.10  449

0.20  384

0.35  344

1.60  286

Streets 

Parks/Recreation Director
Superintendent

Bldg. Maint/Const. Coordinator 
Maintenance Worker I/II 
Office Assistant I/II 0.25  272

2.50 

Recreation 

Parks/Recreation Director  0.40 445 0.40  449

Recreation Coordinator  2.00 314 2.00  316

Recreation Specialist  1.00 288 1.00  290

3.40 3.40 

1.00 380 1.00  384

0.35 375 0.35  379

1.00 332 1.00  334

6.00 309 6.00  311

1.00 284 1.00  286

Water Division 

Superintendent 

Administrative Analyst 

Senior Utility Operator 

Utility Operator I/II 

Maintenance Worker I/II 

Office Assistant I/II  0.30 270 0.30  272

9.65 9.65 



24 

Utility Office 

Finance Director  0.50 460 0.50  464

Accountants (2)  1.00 351 1.00  355

Account Clerk I/II  2.25 291 2.25  293

3.75 3.75 

0.92 380 0.92  384

0.30 375 0.30  379

1.00  342

1.00 310

6.00 284 7.00  286

Refuse Division 

Superintendent 

Administrative Analyst 

Refuse Maintenance Coordinator   

Senior Maintenance Worker 

Maintenance Worker I/II 

Office Assistant I/II  0.33 270 0.33  272

8.55 9.55 

1.00 380 1.00  384

0.35 375 0.35  379

1.00 342 1.00  344

1.00 332 1.00  334

2.00 309 2.00  311

5.00 284 5.00  286

Sewer/Storm Drain 

Superintendent 

Administrative Analyst 

Collection System Coordinator 

Senior Utility Operator 

Utility Operator I/II 

Maintenance Worker I/II 

Office Assistant I/II  0.30 270 0.30  272

10.65 10.65 

0.30 380 0.30  384

2.00 338 2.00  340

Fleet Maintenance 

Superintendent 

Senior Equipment Mechanic 

Office Assistant I/II  0.55 270 0.55  272

2.85 2.85 

0.03 380 0.03  384

LLMD 

Superintendent 

Office Assistant I/II  0.02 270 0.02  272

0.05 0.05 

0.05 380 0.05  384

PFMD 

Superintendent 

Office Assistant I/II  0.05 270 0.05  272

0.10 0.10 

TOTAL FULL TIME POSITIONS 102.00 106.00



25 

MONTHLY SALARY MATRIX 

RANGE 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 
25 2273 2284 2295 2306 2318 2330 2342 2354 2366 2378
26 2390 2402 2414 2426 2438 2450 2462 2474 2486 2498
27 2510 2523 2536 2549 2562 2575 2588 2601 2614 2627
28 2640 2653 2666 2679 2692 2705 2719 2733 2747 2761
29 2775 2789 2803 2817 2831 2845 2859 2873 2887 2901
30 2916 2931 2946 2961 2976 2991 3006 3021 3036 3051
31 3066 3081 3096 3111 3127 3143 3159 3175 3191 3207
32 3223 3239 3255 3271 3287 3303 3320 3337 3354 3371
33 3388 3405 3422 3439 3456 3473 3490 3507 3525 3543
34 3561 3579 3597 3615 3633 3651 3669 3687 3705 3724
35 3743 3762 3781 3800 3819 3838 3857 3876 3895 3914
36 3934 3954 3974 3994 4014 4034 4054 4074 4094 4114
37 4135 4156 4177 4198 4219 4240 4261 4282 4303 4325
38 4347 4369 4391 4413 4435 4457 4479 4501 4524 4547
39 4570 4593 4616 4639 4662 4685 4708 4732 4756 4780
40 4804 4828 4852 4876 4900 4925 4950 4975 5000 5025
41 5050 5075 5100 5126 5152 5178 5204 5230 5256 5282
42 5308 5335 5362 5389 5416 5443 5470 5497 5524 5552
43 5580 5608 5636 5664 5692 5720 5749 5778 5807 5836
44 5865 5894 5923 5953 5983 6013 6043 6073 6103 6134
45 6165 6196 6227 6258 6289 6320 6352 6384 6416 6448
46 6481 6513 6546 6578 6611 6644 6678 6711 6745 6779
47 6813 6847 6881 6916 6950 6985 7020 7055 7090 7126
48 7162 7198 7234 7270 7306 7343 7380 7416 7454 7492
49 7529 7567 7604 7642 7681 7719 7758 7796 7835 7875
50 7915 7954 7994 8034 8074 8115 8155 8196 8237 8279
51 8320 8362 8403 8445 8488 8530 8573 8615 8659 8702
52 8746 8789 8833 8877 8922 8966 9011 9056 9102 9147
53 9193 9239 9285 9331 9378 9425 9472 9519 9567 9615
54 9663 9711 9760 9809 9858 9907 9957 10007 10057 10107
55 10158 10208 10259 10311 10362 10414 10466 10518 10571 10624
56 10677 10730 10784 10838 10892 10947 11001 11056 11112 11167
57 11223 11279 11335 11392 11449 11506 11564 11622 11680 11738
58 11797 11856 11915 11975 12034 12095 12155 12216 12277 12338
59 12400 12462 12524 12587 12650 12713 12777 12841 12905 12969
60 13034 13099 13165 13231 13297 13363 13430 13497 13565 13633



26 

CITY COUNCIL 
Fund 001 ‐ Department 4211 

The  five  City  Council Members  are  elected  at  large  to  serve  four‐year,  overlapping  terms.  
Municipal elections are held in November of even‐numbered years.  The Council selects one of 
its members to serve a two‐year term as Mayor, who presides at meetings and represents the 
City in official matters and at official functions. 

The City Council  is responsible  for approving all  legislation and  formulating City policies.   The 
Council's objectives are broad and include translating public attitudes and service requirements 
into  policies  and  programs,  so  that  desired  levels  of  service  can  be  provided  efficiently  and 
economically.  The Council keeps abreast of current State and Federal legislation.  By participation 
in the League of California Cities, Council Members are able to compare policies, techniques and 
procedures with other cities throughout the State.  Close liaison is maintained with other Kings 
County elected officials  to  insure  that Lemoore's policies and programs are coordinated with 
other public agencies.  

The City Council conducts  its meetings  in public session on the first and third Tuesday of each 
month, at 7:30 p.m. and at other times when special meetings are called. 

GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 

The Council has validated the following long‐term goals: 

 Business and Job Opportunities 

 Fiscally Sound City Government 

 Preservation:  Our Small Town Character 

 Quality Municipal Services 

 Safe Community for Families 

During  this  fiscal year,  it  is anticipated  that  the Council will hold work  sessions and  consider 
adoption of new goals and objectives. 

ACTIVITY STATISTICS 

2010 2011 2012  2013  2014

Meeting Agenda Items  338 446 324  429  308
Ordinances Adopted  3 7 5  5  7
Resolutions Adopted  38 48 36  30  37
Agreements Approved  43 62 34  28  18

Commentary: 
The City Council 15/16 budget shows a slight increase in the overall budget.  The increase is in 
Professional  Contract  Services  (4310)  as  CrisCom  and  a  6‐month  Chamber  Agreement were 
added. 

Budget Committee Recommendation(s): 
Recommended as requested. 

Council Approved: 
As recommended. 



27 

CITY OF LEMOORE UNIT NUMBER: 4211 
BUDGET UNIT FINANCING USES DETAIL 

FISCAL YEAR 2015-16 
UNIT TITLE: 
FUNCTION: 

City Council 
GENERAL FUND

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION 
ACCOUNT
NUMBER 

ACTUAL
2013-14 

ADOPTED
2014-15 

ADJUSTED
2014-15 

ACTUAL 
2/28/2015 

ESTIMATED
2014-15 

REQUESTED
2015-16 

RECOMMENDED 

2015-16 
APPROVED 

2015-16 

EXPENDITURE CLASSIFICATION 

REGULAR SALARIES 4010 19,200 19,200 19,200 12,700 19,050 19,200 19,200 19,200 
OVERTIME 4020 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
PART TIME SALARIES 4030 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
FICA/MEDICARE 4110 1,584 1,469 1,469 1,240 1,860 1,469 1,469 1,469
STATE UNEMPLOYMENT INS 4120 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
RETIREMENT 4130 0 0 0 56 84 225 225 225
HEALTH  INSURANCE 4140 5,976 20,312 20,312 4,474 6,711 29,981 29,981 29,981 
LIFE INSURANCE 4150 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
STATE DISABILITY INSURANCE 4190 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

CAFETERIA PLAN 4195 2,820 0 0 1,074 1,611 0 0 0 
DEFERRED COMPENSATION 4200 3,535 0 0 4,331 6,497 0 0 0 

TOTAL SALARIES & BENEFITS 33,115 40,981 40,981 23,875 35,813 50,875 50,875 50,875 

MAINTENANCE/OPERATIONS 

OPERATING SUPPLIES 4220 2,308 2,500 6,500 2,381 5,381 1,525 1,525 1,525 
REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES 4230 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES 4291 0 0 356,346 356,346 356,346 0 0 0 
RENTAL/CITY OWNED VEHICLE 4300 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
PROFESSIONAL/CONTRACT SERV 4310 90,481 50,040 88,040 34,327 51,827 103,475 103,475 103,475 
MEETINGS/DUES 4320 9,912 13,954 16,539 11,502 16,539 13,200 13,200 13,200
PRINTING/PUBLICATIONS 4330 259 0 1,000 0 0 0 0 0
UTILITIES 4340 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
REPAIR/MAINTENANCE SERVICES 4350 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
TRAINING 4360 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
RENTAL/LEASES 4380 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL MAINTENANCE/OPERATIONS 102,960 66,494 468,425 404,556 430,093 118,200 118,200 118,200 

MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT 4825 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

ASSET REPLACEMENT 
MACH/EQUIP ASSET REPLACEMENT 4825AR 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

VEHICLE ASSET REPLACEMENT 4840AR 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL ASSET REPLACEMENT 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

GROSS EXPENDITURES 136,075 107,475 509,406 428,431 465,906 169,075 169,075 169,075 

SALARIES & EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 



28 

CITY MANAGER 
Fund 001 ‐ Department 4213 

The City Manager is charged with coordinating and directing the administration of the City within 
the framework of policy established by the City Council. 

The City Manager is responsible for directing the administration of departments and divisions, 
preparing and  submitting  the Annual Budget, maintaining communication and good  relations 
with the general public, advising the Council on the City's financial condition, and recommending 
to the Council measures or actions considered necessary for the welfare of the City and efficient 
operation of government.     

The City Manager also directs development and implementation of the City’s General Plan and 
Utility  Plans,  strategic  financial  policy,  personnel  administration,  and  intergovernmental 
coordination/liaison activities.  Additionally, the City Manager's Office provides clerical and staff 
assistance to the City Council.  

The City Manager’s Department oversees the majority of the work involved in the dissolution of 
the Former Redevelopment Agency providing support to the Successor Agency, the Oversight 
Board, and the Lemoore Housing Authority.  

GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 

In addition to the responsibility for overseeing all City Goals and Objectives, the City Manager's 
Office has  the responsibility  to see  that  the Goals and Objectives set  for  the City, by  the City 
Council, are faithfully and properly carried out.  Again, in support of the Council’s goals, major 
emphasis in the City Manager’s Department is placed on the following: 

 Strengthen  our  “business  friendly”  environment  that  promotes  the  recruitment, 
expansion and retention of sales tax producing businesses 

 Implement best practices to conserve and improve the efficiency and effectiveness of 
the entire water system 

 Expand  efforts  toward  combating  gang  activities  with  broad‐based  community 
involvement, focusing both on prevention and enforcement 

 Secure future wastewater disposal site(s) and prepare for new permit issuance 
‐ Secure rights to property for future use 
‐ Develop long term plan for effluent disposal 

 Expand community amenities and programs through participation in joint projects      
with other agencies and public/private partnerships 

 Include in all new facility and equipment purchases, an analysis of both life cycle 
costs and carbon emissions when making decisions regarding specification – analyze 
existing facilities using same criteria 

 Make customer service a high priority at all times through staff selection, evaluation, 
education/training, oversight and accountability 

 Develop short and long term solutions for Railroad rights‐of‐way and City entrances 
within Lemoore – establish partnerships with the property owners to accomplish 



29 

CITY MANAGER, Continued 

ACTIVITY STATISTICS 

2010 2011 2012  2013  2014
Administration 
Meeting Agendas Prepared  25 29 34  32  31
Full time Employees  98 94 91  95  97
Recruitments  14 3 12  13  21
Applicants  207 219 567  254  443
New Employees Hired F/T & P/T  59 50 22  36  66
Number of On‐the‐Job Injuries  118 21 15  21  17
Number of Work Days Lost  67 8 172  68  82
Health Insurance – Employee Only  23 19 18  20  23
Health Insurance – Employee + One  23 22 20  22  23
Health Insurance – Employee + Family  25 21 19  19  24

Commercial Façade Improvement Program 
Applications Received  7 6 N/A  N/A  N/A
Agreements Processed  3 0
Projects Pending  5 0

First‐Time Homebuyer Program 
Applications Received  23 6 N/A  N/A  N/A
Agreements Processed  10 1
Households Assisted

♦Moderate 8 1

♦ Low 2 0

♦ Very‐Low 0 0

Exterior Home Improvement Program 
Applications Received  36 13 N/A  N/A  N/A
Agreements Processed  21 6
Households Assisted

♦Moderate 10 6

♦ Low 8 0

♦ Very‐Low 3 0

Emergency Home Repair Grant Program 
Applications Received  11 5 N/A  N/A  N/A
Agreements Processed  4 2
Households Assisted

♦ Low 3 1

♦ Very‐Low 1 1

Do‐It Yourself House Painting Program 
Applications Received  2 0 N/A  N/A  N/A
Agreements Processed  1 0
Households Assisted

♦Moderate 0 0

♦ Low 1 0

♦ Very‐Low 0 0



30 

CITY MANAGER, Continued  2010 2011 2012  2013  2014

Residential Solar Program 
Applications Received – Low‐Moderate  1 0 N/A  N/A  N/A
Applications Received – General  N/A N/A
Agreements Processed – Low‐Moderate  0 0
Agreements Processed – General  N/A N/A
Households Assisted

♦ Above Moderate 0 0

♦Moderate 0 0

♦ Low 0 0

♦ Very‐Low 0 0

Senior Paint Program 
Applications Received  12 11 N/A  N/A  N/A
Agreements Processed  10 2
Households Assisted

♦Moderate

♦ Low

♦ Very‐Low

Multi‐Family Rehabilitation Program 
Applications Received  5 N/A  N/A  N/A
Agreements Processed  1
Households Assisted

♦ Low 1

♦ Very Low 1

HOME First Time Homebuyer Program 
Applications Received  1 20 10  5 11
Agreements Processed  2 5 1  1  4
Households Assisted

♦ Low 1 5 1  1  4

♦ Very Low 1 0 0  0  0

Multi‐Family New Construction 
Proposals Received  1 1 N/A  N/A  N/A
Commitments Approved  1 1
Agreements Processed  0 1
Projects Pending  3 1

Notices of Funding Availability 
Grant Applications Prepared  3 2 1  0  1
Grants Received  1 2 1  0  1
Grant Amounts Awarded  $975K $1.6M $800K  0  $120,475

Code Enforcement 
Customer Complaints  398 397 319  N/A  N/A
Property Maintenance  1715 1298 1196



31 

CITY MANAGER, Continued  2010 2011 2012  2013  2014

Vehicle Violations  218 141 155

♦ Towed Vehicles 13 6 4

♦ AVA Reimbursement 107 92 123

Business License  10 15 13
Public Nuisance  1103

♦ Signs/Banners 265 145

♦ Shopping Carts 306 342

Zoning Violations  23 1 2
Substandard Housing  5 8 4

F/T Position Allocation  4 7.64 5.7  5.7  5.7

Position Allocation:  14/15 
Actual

15/16 
Requested

15/16 
Approved 

City Manager  1.00 1.00 1.00 
Project Manager  .70 .70 .70 
City Clerk / Administrative Secretary  1.00 1.00 1.00 
Administrative Analyst  1.00 1.00 1.00 
Executive Secretary / Housing Specialist  1.00 1.00 1.00 
Office Assistant I/II  1.00 1.00 1.00 

Total Positions 5.70 5.70 5.70 

Commentary: 
The City Manager 15/16 Maintenance/Operations budget has an overall decrease of $16,305 
mainly due  to  lower projections  in all accounts based on previous year activity.   This overall 
decrease takes into account the one‐time increase of $6,000 to Professional/Contract Services 
(4310)  to  update  our  Records  Retention  Schedule  as  well  as  the  increase  of  $1,495  to 
Meetings/Dues (4320) as a result of higher membership renewal fees. 

Budget Committee Recommendation(s): 
Decrease Salaries & Employee Benefits by $21,034 to account for vacant positions in department. 

Council Approved: 
As recommended. 



32 

CITY OF LEMOORE UNIT NUMBER: 4213 
BUDGET UNIT FINANCING USES DETAIL 

FISCAL YEAR 2015-16 
UNIT TITLE: 
FUNCTION: 

City Mgr 
GENERAL FUND

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION 
ACCOUNT 
NUMBER 

ACTUAL
2013-14 

ADOPTED
2014-15 

ADJUSTED
2014-15 

ACTUAL 
2/28/2015 

ESTIMATED
2014-15 

REQUESTED
2015-16 

RECOMMENDED 

2015-16 
APPROVED 

2015-16 

EXPENDITURE CLASSIFICATION 

REGULAR SALARIES 4010 261,861 360,052 364,885 207,509 311,264 386,082 372,165 372,165 
OVERTIME 4020 0 1,000 1,000 15 23 1,000 1,000 1,000
PART TIME SALARIES 4030 0 0 0 4,955 4,955 0 0 0 
FICA/MEDICARE 4110 19,604 27,497 27,497 15,844 23,766 29,303 28,239 28,239
STATE UNEMPLOYMENT INS 4120 1,974 2,394 2,394 1,868 2,802 2,474 2,474 2,474 
RETIREMENT 4130 46,403 68,917 68,917 38,902 58,353 55,584 53,496 53,496
HEALTH  INSURANCE 4140 29,809 55,062 55,062 26,800 40,200 68,153 64,901 64,901 
LIFE INSURANCE 4150 333 524 524 263 395 534 511 511 
UNIFORMS 4170 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
STATE DISABILITY INSURANCE 4190 2,496 3,623 3,623 1,860 2,790 3,690 3,558 3,558 

CAFETERIA PLAN 4195 2,461 0 0 777 1,166 0 0 0 
DEFERRED COMPENSATION 4200 11,384 13,127 13,127 9,338 14,007 14,340 13,783 13,783 

TOTAL SALARIES & BENEFITS 376,324 532,196 537,029 308,131 459,721 561,160 540,126 540,126

MAINTENANCE/OPERATIONS 

OPERATING SUPPLIES 4220 8,740 6,995 6,995 4,558 6,558 7,725 7,725 7,725 
REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES 4230 0 1,020 400 494 0 0 0 
RENTAL/CITY OWNED VEHICLE 4300 1,007 1,020 0 0 0 0 0 0
PROFESSIONAL/CONTRACT SERV 4310 45,137 49,140 49,140 29,918 44,877 52,140 52,140 52,140 
MEETINGS/DUES 4320 3,024 4,590 4,590 3,182 4,590 6,085 6,085 6,085
PRINTING/PUBLICATIONS 4330 3,343 2,800 19,300 11,490 17,235 2,800 2,800 2,800
UTILITIES 4340 6,686 7,556 7,556 6,825 6,825 7,220 7,220 7,220
REPAIR/MAINTENANCE SERVICES 4350 7,959 4,000 4,000 0 3,332 0 0 0 
TRAINING 4360 7,339 12,578 12,578 8,294 12,441 4,077 4,077 4,077
RENTAL/LEASES 4380 9,564 8,525 8,525 6,222 8,525 8,525 8,525 8,525

TOTAL MAINTENANCE/OPERATIONS 92,799 97,204 113,704 70,889 104,877 88,572 88,572 88,572

MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT 4825 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

ASSET REPLACEMENT 
MACH/EQUIP ASSET REPLACEMENT 4825AR 0 15,400 15,400 12,368 15,400 0 0 0 

VEHICLE ASSET REPLACEMENT 4840AR 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL ASSET REPLACEMENT 0 15,400 15,400 12,368 15,400 0 0 0

GROSS EXPENDITURES 469,123 644,800 666,133 391,388 579,998 649,732 628,698 628,698

SALARIES & EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 



33 

 

FINANCE 
Fund 001 ‐ Department 4215 

 
Under the direction of the Finance Director, this Department is charged with the overall financial 
and accounting  records of  the City, processing accounts payable and  receivable,  fixed assets, 
bank reconciliations, purchasing, data processing, budget control, payroll, animal licensing and 
processing of business licenses.   
 

GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 
 

 Obtain an unqualified opinion for Audits 

 Treasurer Functions 
‐ Investment Tracking 
‐ Fund Transfers 
‐ Management  Reports:  (Quarterly  Investment  Report,  Quarterly  Revenue, 

monthly budget reporting) 

 Continue to improve and monitor internal cash controls 

 Cross train staff in the department to ensure that accounting functions are provided 
on a consistent basis 

 Budget Preparation 
‐ Fund Balances 
‐ Year‐to‐Date Detail 
‐ Revenue Estimates 
‐ CIP bi‐annual fund balances 
‐ CIP capitalization and progress reporting 

 Continue to improve Cost Accounting System for LLMD and PFMD 

 Review Fleet Maintenance Financial Transactions and Allocations 
 

ACTIVITY STATISTICS 
 

  2010 2011 2012 2013  2014
   
Warrants Processed/Issued  4,180 4,878 5,073 5,243  5,671
Business Licenses Issued  1,163 1,242 1,193 1,160  1,105
Interest Earned on Investments  199,181 173,441 133,308 115,726  128,616
Animal Licensing  279  297
   
F/T Position Allocation  3 3 3 3  3.25
 
Position Allocation:  14/15 

Actual

15/16 
Requested

15/16 
Approved 

  Finance Director  .50 .50 .50 
  Accountants (2)  1.00 1.00 1.00 
  Account Technician  1.00 1.00 1.00 
  Account Clerk I/II  .75 .75 .75 

  Total Positions 3.25 3.25 3.25 



34 

 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT, Continued 
 
Commentary: 
The Finance Department budget is consistent with the approved 2014‐2015 budget.  There are 
no material changes  in the 2015‐2016 requested budget  for the day to day operations of the 
department.    The  budget  includes  a  request  to  upgrade  the  Pentamation  Software  used  to 
process the financial transactions for the City.  The modules include Finance, Purchasing, Human 
Resources,  Fixed Asset  and Business  Licensing.    The  cost of  the  Finance Program upgrade  is 
$44,073.  This upgrade has been recommended so that the server and software are reliable and 
up to date. 
 
Budget Committee Recommendation(s): 
Recommended as requested. 
 
Council Approved: 
As recommended. 
 
 
 
 



35 

 

 

CITY OF LEMOORE UNIT NUMBER: 4215 
BUDGET UNIT FINANCING USES DETAIL 

FISCAL YEAR 2015-16 
UNIT TITLE: 
FUNCTION: 

Finance 
GENERAL FUND

 

 
ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION 

ACCOUNT 
NUMBER 

ACTUAL
2013-14 

ADOPTED
2014-15 

ADJUSTED
2014-15 

ACTUAL 
2/28/2015 

ESTIMATED
2014-15 

REQUESTED
2015-16 

RECOMMENDED 

2015-16 
APPROVED 

2015-16 
 

EXPENDITURE CLASSIFICATION 
 

 
 

REGULAR SALARIES 
 

4010 
 

157,775
 

178,881
 

181,380
 

121,440 
 

175,459
 

179,848
 

179,848
 

178,848 
OVERTIME 4020 0 946 946 0 946 1,000 1,000 1,000 
PART TIME SALARIES 4030 7,566 18,768 18,768 4,016 8,888 18,768 18,768 18,768 
FICA/MEDICARE 4110 13,123 15,192 15,192 10,123 14,897 15,271 15,271 15,271 
STATE UNEMPLOYMENT INS 4120 1,530 1,785 1,785 1,610 2,222 1,845 1,845 1,845 
RETIREMENT 4130 26,317 30,799 30,799 21,048 30,151 22,810 22,810 22,810 
HEALTH  INSURANCE 4140 6,323 14,361 14,361 2,820 5,711 21,807 21,807 21,807 
LIFE INSURANCE 4150 262 373 373 188 291 305 305 305 
STATE DISABILITY INSURANCE 4190 1,567 1,721 1,721 1,187 1,672 1,718 1,718 1,718 

CAFETERIA PLAN 4195 3,697 3,500 3,500 2,250 3,342 0 0 0 
DEFERRED COMPENSATION 4200 8,480 3,981 3,981 7,520 11,414 4,090 4,090 4,090 

TOTAL SALARIES & BENEFITS   226,641 270,307 272,806 172,202 254,993 267,461 267,461 267,461 

MAINTENANCE/OPERATIONS  
 

OPERATING SUPPLIES 
 

4220 
 

7,219 
 

10,225 
 

10,225 
 

7,806 
 

10,206 
 

7,175 
 

7,175 
 

7,175 

REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES 4230 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
RENTAL/CITY OWNED VEHICLE 4300 0 0 0 0 0 1,700 1,700 1,700 
PROFESSIONAL/CONTRACT SERV 4310 61,649 57,650 57,650 30,870 63,644 57,805 57,805 57,805 
INSURANCE BONDS 4315 586,432 642,677 714,300 562,440 701,039 705,285 705,285 705,285 
MEETINGS/DUES 4320 433 600 600 370 570 600 600 600 
PRINTING/PUBLICATIONS 4330 2,153 1,995 1,995 2,412 2,512 2,175 2,175 2,175 
UTILITIES 4340 2,140 2,340 2,340 1,066 1,686 2,340 2,340 2,340 
REPAIR/MAINTENANCE SERVICES 4350 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
TRAINING 4360 375 3,000 3,000 0 1,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 
RENTAL/LEASES 4380 2,505 2,800 2,800 1,599 2,452 2,800 2,800 2,800 
BANK FEES & CHARGES 4389 42,041 43,200 43,200 25,108 43,399 43,680 43,680 43,680 

TOTAL MAINTENANCE/OPERATIONS   704,948 764,487 836,110 631,671 826,508 826,560 826,560 826,560 

MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT 4825 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY   0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

ASSET REPLACEMENT 
MACH/EQUIP ASSET REPLACEMENT 4825AR 0 0 0 0 0   44,073 44,073 44,073 

VEHICLE ASSET REPLACEMENT 4840AR 0 0 0 0 0   0 0 0 

TOTAL ASSET REPLACEMENT   0 0 0 0 0 44,073 44,073 44,073 

GROSS EXPENDITURES   931,589 1,034,794 1,108,916 803,873 1,081,501 1,138,094 1,138,094 1,138,094 

SALARIES & EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 



36 

 

MAINTENANCE DIVISION 
Fund 001 ‐ Department 4220 

 
The Maintenance  Division  is  charged with maintaining  City  building  and  park  facilities with 
janitorial  services,  preventative  and  corrective  maintenance,  renovations  and  new 
construction/projects.  This Division takes care of 377,930 square feet of facilities which includes 
janitorial services and maintenance of the new CMC Lemoore Recreation Centers indoor soccer 
field, playground, dance room, bathrooms, cheer mats, walking track and other areas as needed 
as well as the maintenance and repairs of 85.42 acres of park grounds, equipment and structures.  
Personnel are also tasked with duties within the Street Department. 
 

GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 
 

 Look for additional ways to meet mandates of conserving water and energy. 

 Continue cross training personnel in the diverse tasks required in the three areas of 
the Maintenance Division in order to improve standards and skills. 

 Continue investigating ways to increase organizational effectiveness and efficiency. 

 Continue to provide courtesy and productivity in the workplace and to our citizens. 
 

ACTIVITY STATISTICS 
 

Building Maintained in Square Feet  2010 2011 2012  2013  2014
 
Buildings with Some Janitorial Services and Maintenance 

   

Civic Auditorium  6,092 6,092 6,092  6,092  6,092
Council Chamber  4,710 4,710 4,710  4,710  4,170
City Hall Offices  6,656 6,656 6,656  6,656  6,656
Planning Department & Upstairs Offices  3,872 1,936 1,936  1,936  9,936
Police Department Offices  8,467 8,467 8,467  8,467  8,467
Cinnamon Municipal Complex Offices  8,880 8,880 8,880  8,880  8,880
CMC Rec Center Facilities  0 0 63,158  63,158  63,158
Veterans Memorial Hall  5,624 5,624 5,624  5,624  5,624
 
Building Maintenance Only 

   

Cinnamon Municipal Complex Yard/Warehouse  252,30
0

252,30
0

252,30
0 

252,30
0 

252,30
0

Fox Street Fire Station  7,140 7,140 7,140  7,140  7,140
North Side Fire Station  5,474 5,474 5,474  5,474  5,474,
Planning Department & Upstairs Offices  3,872 3,872 3,872  3,872  3,872
19th Avenue Snack Bar, Restrooms, Pump House  857 857 857  857  857
City Park Restroom  640 640 640  640  640
Heritage Park Restroom  576 576 576  576  576
Sewer Plant Lab  768 768 768  768  768
Meter Shop  780 780 780  780  780
 
Landscaped Acres Maintained 

   

City Park  4.50 4.50 4.50  4.50  4.50
19th Avenue Park/Waggin Tails Dog Park  17.00 17.00 0  0  0



37 

 

MAINTENANCE DIVISION, Continued 
 

   

Industrial Park  .50 .50 .50  .50  .50
Heritage Park  25.00 25.00 25.00  25.00  25.00
Lions Park  12.00 12.00 12.00  12.00  12.00
Cinnamon Municipal Complex  12.50 12.50 12.50  12.50  12.50
Depot Complex  1.75 1.75 1.75  1.75  1.75
Pedersen Park  1.00 1.00 1.00  1.00  1.00
Bevalaqua Park  10.00 10.00 10.00  10.00  10.00
     
Rotary Youth Plaza  .67 .67 .67  .67  .67
Vine Street (North of 198)  .25 .25 .25  .25  .25
Plaza Park  .25 .25 .25  .25  .25
Police Department  .50 .50 0  0  0
Teen Center / Veteran’s Hall  .20 .20 0  0  0
City Hall / Civic / Council Chamber  1.00 1.00 0  0  0
Sarah Mooney Museum  1.00 1.00 0  0  0
     
F/T Position Allocation  7.15 7.15  8.15  8.75

         
Position Allocation:  14/15 

Actual

15/16 
Requested

15/16 
Approved 

  Director  .60 .50 .50 
  Superintendent  .70 .50 .50 
  Building Maint./Const. Coordinator  1.00 .65 .65 
  Maintenance Worker I/II  6.00 6.40 6.40 
  Office Assistant I/II  .45 0.20 0.20 

  Total Positions 8.75 8.25 8.25 
        
Commentary: 
The Maintenance Division is being subdivided into Maintenance Division and Streets for accurate 
tracking of expenditures for both departments.  The Position Allocation was updated this fiscal 
year  to  reflect  personnel  working  within  this  department.    The  combined  ongoing  budget 
expenditure requests decreased an incremental amount despite rising costs.  
 
The Maintenance Division (4010) has requested two additional staff members to meet the work 
load demands and cross  train workers prior  to retirement of a  few  long  term staff members.  
Part‐time Salaries (4030) is shown with an increase in staffing to meet the janitorial demands and 
duties for facility rentals and an additional staff person for duties in the streets department. 
 
Operating  Supplies  (4220) will  increase 1.5% as we will  start purchasing all  the City  facilities 
janitorial supplies, due to the change  in the Janitorial Contract, and overall  increase  in supply 
prices. 
 
Professional  Contract  Services  (4310)  increased  due  to  the  need  for  additional  pest  control 
services, facility rental attendants and cleanup cost for the 19 ½ Avenue property. 
 
 
 



38 

 

MAINTENANCE DIVISION, Continued 
 
Repair Maintenance  Services  (4350)  is  expected  to  see  savings  from  the  improvements  and 
upgrades to the plumbing and electrical systems over the past few years.  Newer AC units and 
ongoing preventative maintenance measures are paying off. 
 
Capital Outlay and Asset Replacement request list in Machinery & Equipment (4825), a one‐time 
cost for a Torro Workman Heavy Duty Cart.  Staff is currently using the 19th Avenue Parks unit 
that worked the baseball fields and found the use around the Corp Yard/Recreation Center has 
been beneficial and efficient in use of time and resources. 
 
Staff continues to be innovative in the Division’s goals of improving techniques and services to 
benefit the Citizens of Lemoore. 
 
Budget Committee Recommendation(s): 
Decrease equivalent of two positions from Part‐Time Salaries (4030) by $64,766. 
 
Calculate ADA Transition Plan (4395) at 2% which decreases it by $1,193. 
 
Council Approved: 
As recommended. 



39 

 

CITY OF LEMOORE UNIT NUMBER: 4220 
BUDGET UNIT FINANCING USES DETAIL UNIT TITLE: Maintenance 

FISCAL YEAR 2015-16 FUNCTION: GENERAL FUND 
 

 
ACCOUNT  DESCRIPTION 

ACCOUNT 
NUMBER 

ACTUAL
2013-14 

ADOPTED
2014-15 

ADJUSTED
2014-15 

ACTUAL
2/28/2015 

ESTIMATED
2014-15 

REQUESTED
2015-16 

RECOMMENDED 

2015-16 
APPROVED 

2015-16 
 

       EXPENDITURE CLASSIFICATION 
 

SALARIES & EMPLOYEE BENEFITS   

REGULAR SALARIES 4010 319,397 390,054 395,558 246,392 377,392 352,596 352,596 352,596
OVERTIME 4020 9,200 5,000 5,000 1,691 4,991 5,000 5,000 5,000
PART TIME SALARIES 4030 138,846 150,600 150,600 54,914 91,414 150,600 94,600 94,600
FICA/MEDICARE 4110 32,545 41,788 41,788 22,484 37,484 39,056 34,772 34,772
STATE UNEMPLOYMENT INS 4120 7,406 5,775 5,775 4,513 7,513 4,449 4,449 4,449
RETIREMENT 4130 50,247 68,970 68,970 42,674 65,050 51,187 46,706 46,706
HEALTH  INSURANCE 4140 67,718 74,514 74,514 40,133 61,522 82,851 82,851 82,851
LIFE INSURANCE 4150 750 858 858 524 790 775 775 775
UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 4170 550 600 600 600 600 900 900 900
STATE DISABILITY INSURANCE 4190 3,236 3,951 3,951 2,438 3,738 3,411 3,411 3,411
CAFETERIA PLAN 4195 -203 0 0 38 115 0 0 0
DEFERRED COMPENSATION 4200 7,891 4,156 4,156 10,110 15,748 3,304 3,304 3,304

TOTAL SALARIES  &  BENEFITS   637,582 746,266 751,770 426,511 666,357 694,129 629,363 629,363

MAINTENANCE/OPERATIONS    

OPERATING SUPPLIES 4220 64,739 60,275 60,275 49,049 60,249 65,000 65,000 65,000 
REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES 4230 50,525 41,000 41,000 18,766 37,273 40,000 40,000 40,000
RENTAL/CITY OWNED VEHICLE 4300 87,003 91,000 91,000 29,106 81,972 93,000 93,000 93,000
PROFESSIONAL/CONTRACT SERV 4310 203,019 171,585 175,085 157,928 226,668 204,541 204,541 204,541
MEETINGS/DUES 4320 0 0 0 960 5,761 1,440 1,440 1,440
PRINTING/PUBLICATIONS 4330 0 50 50 0 0 0 0 0
UTILITIES 4340 130,898 111,025 165,025 113,088 165,025 166,598 166,598 166,598
REPAIR/MAINTENANCE SERVICES 4350 57,416 57,500 72,948 34,887 69,776 36,500 36,500 36,500
TRAINING 4360 323 3,500 3,500 120 120 3,500 3,500 3,500
RENTAL/LEASES 4380 899 547 547 325 545 399 399 399

TOTAL MAINTENANCE/OPERATIONS   594,821 536,482 609,430 404,229 647,389 610,978 610,978 610,978

ADA TRANSITION PLAN 4395 0 25,255 25,255 0 25,255 26,000 24,807 24,807 

TOTAL ADA TRANSITION PLAN   0 25,255 25,255 0 25,255 26,000 24,807 24,807 

MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT 4825 269,465 0 18,500 62,917 62,917 19,000 19,000 19,000
TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY   269,465 0 18,500 62,917 62,917 19,000 19,000 19,000

ASSET REPLACEMENT    

MACH/EQUIP ASSET 4825A 28,812 27,500 27,500 0 27,500  0 0 0
VEHICLE ASSET REPLACEMENT 4840A

R
0 0 0 0 0  0 0 0

CIP ASSET REPLACEMENT 4850 62,596 0 0 29,649 29,649 0 0

TOTAL ASSET REPLACEMENT   91,408 27,500 27,500 29,649 57,149 0 0 0 

GROSS EXPENDITURES 
 

1,593,276 1,335,503 1,432,455 923,306 1,459,067 1,350,106 1,284,147 1,284,147



40 

 

POLICE DEPARTMENT 
Fund 001 ‐ Department 4221 

 
The  Police Department  is  charged with  the  protection  of  life  and  property  and  the  primary 
responsibility of crime prevention and suppression.   The Department maintains good relations 
with the public,  investigates traffic accidents, crimes, and violations of City, State and Federal 
Laws.  The Department also participates in the Kings County Narcotics and Gang Task Forces.  
 
While  our  mission  of  protecting  people  and  crime  prevention  remains  the  same,  like  all 
organizations, we are facing many new challenges in accomplishing that mission. To ensure the 
Lemoore Police Department adapts to these new realities, we will engage  in regular strategic 
planning to continuously assess the external environment for emerging challenges and enhance 
our capacity to respond effectively to these challenges. 
 
With the impacts of AB 109 and jail overcrowding, and recent passage of Proposition 47, we will 
continue  to  strive  to  enhance  public  safety  and  protect  our  community  through  four main 
actions: Enforcement, Education, Community Involvement and an emphasis on Crime Prevention 
programs with the establishment of a PAL Program to target at‐risk and under‐served youth in 
our community. 
 

GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 
 

 Implement  a Problem Oriented Policing  (POP)  team  to more effectively deal with 
quality of life and criminal issues in specific neighborhoods. 

 Provide quality law enforcement services, while building community partnerships. 

 Provide emphasis on  the Department’s effort  to  combat gang activity  focusing on 
enforcement, prevention and expanding community involvement. 

 Continue  the  emphasis  on  involving  each  patrol  officer  in  a  community  oriented 
policing project. 

 
ACTIVITY STATISTICS 

 

  2010 2011 2012  2013  2014
     
Calls for Service  28,266 30,984 29,882  32,100  46,897
Total Arrests  1,296 1,268 1,453  1,558  1,567
Total Drunk Driving Arrests  81 68 151  83  77
Total Traffic Citations  1,204 1,382 1,393  1,630  1325
Total Traffic Accidents  263 230 235  217  243
Training Hours  2,499 2,122 1,922  1,584  2,326
Animal Control:     
  Calls for Service  1,510 1,524 1,470  1,310  1,448
  Animals Picked Up  760 1,053 789  840  813
  Warnings  455 200 204  196  133
     
F/T Position Allocation  36 36 36  37  38



41 

 

POLICE DEPARTMENT, Continued 
 
Position Allocation:  14/15 

Actual

15/16 
Requested

15/16 
Approved 

  Chief of Police  1.00 1.00 1.00 
  Police Commander  1.00 2.00 2.00 
  Police Sergeant  5.00 5.00 5.00 
  Police Corporal  5.00 5.00 5.00 
  Police Officer  18.00 19.00 19.00 
  Secretary  1.00 1.00 1.00 
  Community Service Officer  2.00 2.00 2.00 
  Police Evidence Technician  1.00 1.00 1.00 
  Police Records Supervisor  1.00 1.00 1.00 
  Police Records Technician I/II  2.00 2.00 2.00 

  Total Positions 38.00 39.00 39.00 
 
Commentary: 
The Lemoore Police Department continues  to work hard  to achieve  the goal of quality of  life 
improvement for our citizens, which  includes a safe community to  live  in. We truly appreciate 
the  support  given  to  us  by  the  Lemoore  City Council  and  the  citizens  of  Lemoore.   We will 
continue to work with our community partnerships to ensure the City of Lemoore remains a safe 
community to live, work and enjoy. 
 
The people we serve continue to be the key to our success as an organization. Whether it’s by 
being  vigilant  and  reporting  violators,  partnering with  us  in  educational  endeavors, working 
together to solve problems or supporting us through your willingness to volunteer, together we 
can ensure Lemoore continues to be one of the safest places in the Central Valley to raise our 
families.  
 
Budget Committee Recommendation(s): 
Decrease Salaries & Benefits by $1,203 to adjust for three months of reclassification. 
 
Council Approved: 
As recommended. 
 

 
 

 



42 

 

 

CITY OF LEMOORE UNIT NUMBER: 4221 
BUDGET UNIT FINANCING USES DETAIL 

FISCAL YEAR 2015-16 
UNIT TITLE: 
FUNCTION: 

Police 
GENERAL FUND

 

 
ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION 

ACCOUNT
NUMBER 

ACTUAL
2013-14 

ADOPTED
2014-15 

ADJUSTED
2014-15 

ACTUAL 
2/28/2015 

ESTIMATED
2014-15 

REQUESTED
2015-16 

RECOMMENDED 

2015-16 
APPROVED 

2015-16 
 

EXPENDITURE CLASSIFICATION 
 

 
REGULAR SALARIES 4010 2,090,296 2,165,185 2,209,998 1,438,859 2,163,371 2,465,586 2,464,613 2,465,586 
OVERTIME 4020 211,678 200,000 200,000 156,449 234,118 200,000 200,000 200,000 
PART TIME SALARIES 4030 54,775 113,004 113,004 57,917 103,339 113,695 113,695 113,695 
FICA/MEDICARE 4110 179,460 216,300 216,300 126,960 188,372 224,844 224,769 224,769 
STATE UNEMPLOYMENT INS 4120 18,648 16,800 16,800 19,088 28,632 17,360 17,360 17,360 
RETIREMENT 4130 562,354 577,482 577,482 366,332 549,497 430,666 430,520 430,520 
HEALTH  INSURANCE 4140 228,970 293,224 293,224 163,638 261,114 380,452 380,452 380,452 
LIFE INSURANCE 4150 3,200 3,463 3,463 2,196 3,320 3,651 3,651 3,651 
UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 4170 29,600 29,500 29,500 29,100 29,100 33,400 33,400 33,400 
STATE DISABILITY INSURANCE 4190 4,765 7,444 7,444 3,272 4,908 8,032 8,023 8,023 

CAFETERIA PLAN 4195 3,812 3,780 3,780 3,226 4,838 0 0 0 
DEFERRED COMPENSATION 4200 92,240 57,909 57,909 62,600 96,116 80,010 80,010 80,010 

TOTAL SALARIES & BENEFITS   3,479,798 3,684,091 3,728,904 2,429,637 3,666,725 3,957,696 3,956,493 3,956,493 

MAINTENANCE/OPERATIONS 
OPERATING SUPPLIES 4220 73,586 77,300 77,300 58,761 77,300 129,450 129,450 129,450 

REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES 4230 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
RENTAL/CITY OWNED VEHICLE 4300 208,361 170,000 170,000 78,165 242,427 170,000 170,000 170,000 
PROFESSIONAL/CONTRACT SERV 4310 461,842 433,621 433,621 259,582 434,351 443,878 443,878 443,878 
MEETINGS/DUES 4320 10,973 16,113 26,924 12,258 16,113 26,810 26,810 26,810 
PRINTING/PUBLICATIONS 4330 2,293 3,850 3,850 1,398 3,850 3,850 3,850 3,850 
UTILITIES 4340 36,514 44,300 44,300 25,314 44,300 48,144 48,144 48,144 
REPAIR/MAINTENANCE SERVICES 4350 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
TRAINING 4360 38,560 52,789 52,789 21,883 36,883 69,030 69,030 69,030 
PD TRAINEE 4361 4,956 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
RENTAL/LEASES 4380 15,229 16,272 16,272 11,094 16,695 16,840 16,840 16,840 

TOTAL MAINTENANCE/OPERATIONS   852,314 814,245 825,056 468,455 871,919 908,002 908,002 908,002 

MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT 4825 0 0 50,889 78,534 78,534 3,500 3,500 3,500 
VEHICLES 4840 0 0 46,000 0 46,000 0 0 0 

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY   0 0 96,889 78,534 124,534 3,500 3,500 3,500 

ASSET REPLACEMENT 
MACH/EQUIP ASSET REPLACEMENT 4825AR 11,527 0 0 0 0  2,500  2,500 2,500 

VEHICLE ASSET REPLACEMENT 4840AR 128,905 181,000 311,000 220,237 311,000    133,500    133,500 133,500 

TOTAL ASSET REPLACEMENT   140,432 181,000 311,000 220,237 311,000 136,000 136,000 136,000 

GROSS EXPENDITURES   4,472,545 4,679,336 4,961,849 3,196,863 4,974,178 5,005,198 5,003,995 5,003,995 

SALARIES & EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 



43 

 

FIRE DEPARTMENT 
Fund 001 ‐ Department 4222 

 

The Lemoore Volunteer Fire Department continues to maintain exceptional standards in service 
to this community.  The Department strives to improve the knowledge and training of all firemen 
in keeping with NFPA standards.  Lemoore’s Class 3 Rating from the ISO is the highest rating in 
Kings County.   
 

GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 
 

 Improve Readiness and Training Levels 

 Maintain City Weed Abatement Program  

 Continue to Replace or Upgrade Outdated Equipment 
 

ACTIVITY STATISTICS 
 

  2010 2011 2012  2013  2014
     
Calls for Service  1,513 1,664 1,572  1,857  1,788
     Fire Alarm Calls  227 274 157  254  187
     EMT  Calls  1,195 1,309 1,379  1,523  1,467
     Training Hours  4,295 4,305 6,958  6,637  7,152
     

Weed Abatement     
     Parcels Abated by Owners  173 153 166  N/A  245
     Parcels Abated by City of Lemoore  4 4 5  4  5
     

Inspections     
     Preplan Updates (hours)  27 176 175  170  150
     Business Fire Inspections  56 23 24  45  22
     
F/T Position Allocation  1.00 1.36 1.25  1.25  1.25
 
Position Allocation:  14/15 

Actual

15/16 
Requested

15/16 
Recommended 

  Maintenance Worker I/II  1.00 1.00 1.00 
  Planning Technician  .25 .25 
  Office Assistant I/II  0.25  

  Total Positions 1.25 1.25 1.25 
 
Commentary: 
The  Fire  Department  is  currently  comprised  of  35  Volunteer  Fire  Fighters,  14  of which  are 
Certified Emergency Medical Technicians.  One full‐time Maintenance Worker II is employed by 
the City solely for the Fire Department and one full‐time Office Assistant II provides support to 
both the Fire Department and the Public Works Department.  
 
Further support is provided by the Public Works Director, who plays a dual role as the City Fire 
Marshall.  Under the supervision of the Fire Marshall, the City Building Inspectors perform annual 



44 

 

FIRE DEPARTMENT, Continued 
 
fire/building  safety  inspections  on  behalf  of  the  Fire Department. One  full  time  Community 
Service Officer, under the supervision of the Police Chief, assists the Fire Department with weed 
abatement cases that become hazardous to the community.   
 
The  Fire Department  is  requesting  two one‐time expenditures  in Vehicle Asset Replacement 
(4840AR) totaling $710,000 to purchase a 2015 Ferrara Crew Cab Freightliner for $260,000 and a 
2015 Ferrara Midship Pumper for $450,000.  The 2015 Crew Cab Freightliner will replace Lemoore 
#9, a 2004 Ford Fire Rescue Truck equipped with  the  Jaws of Life. Lemoore #9 will remain  in 
service to retire Lemoore #3, a 1990 Grass Fire Truck.   The 2015 Midship Pumper will replace 
Lemoore #2, a 1962 American LaFrance Fire Pumper Truck which has become obsolete. 
 
Budget Committee Recommendation(s): 
Decrease Salaries & Benefits by $139 to adjust for three months of reclassification. 
 
Decrease Miscellaneous Equipment (4825) by $25,000 and request a detailed list of equipment 
to be purchased. 
 
Decrease Vehicle Asset Replacement (4840AR) by $260,000 as 2015 Crew Cab Freightliner not 
recommended. 
 
Council Approved: 
As recommended. 
 
  



45 

 

 

CITY OF LEMOORE UNIT  NUMBER: 4222 
BUDGET  UNIT  FINANCING  USES DETAIL 

FISCAL  YEAR  2015-16 
UNIT  TITLE: 
FUNCTION: 

Fire 
GENERAL FUND

 

 
ACCOUNT  DESCRIPTION 

ACCOUNT
NUMBER 

ACTUAL
2013-14 

ADOPTED
2014-15 

ADJUSTED
2014-15 

ACTUAL 
2/28/2015 

ESTIMATED
2014-15 

REQUESTED
2015-16 

RECOMMENDED 

2015-16 
APPROVED 

2015-16 
 

EXPENDITURE CLASSIFICATION 
 

SALARIES & EMPLOYEE BENEFITS         

REGULAR  SALARIES 4010 48,227 49,958 50,638 33,571 50,355 52,095 51,983 51,983 
OVERTIME 4020 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
PART TIME SALARIES 4030 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
FICA/MEDICARE 4110 3,904 3,829 3,829 2,685 4,029 3,993 3,984 3,984 
STATE UNEMPLOYMENT INS 4120 525 525 525 528 792 543 543 543 
RETIREMENT 4130 8,642 9,529 9,529 6,337 9,505 7,816 7,799 7,799 
HEALTH  INSURANCE 4140 2,983 5,670 5,670 1,164 1,748 6,816 6,816 6,816 
LIFE  INSURANCE 4150 114 151 151 76 116 117 117 117 
UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 4170 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 
STATE DISABILITY INSURANCE 4190 482 500 500 327 491 495 494 494 

CAFETERIA PLAN 4195 1,407 0 0 1,171 1,755 0 0 0 
DEFERRED COMPENSATION 4200 2,700 0 0 1,538 2,306 0 0 0 

TOTAL  SALARIES  &  BENEFITS   69,084 70,262 70,942 47,497 71,197 71,974 71,835 71,835 

MAINTENANCE/OPERATIONS    
OPERATING SUPPLIES 4220 59,765 49,900 49,900 7,472 29,900 55,500 55,500 55,500 
REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES 4230 9,358 9,500 9,500 3,732 5,600 18,000 18,000 18,000 
RENTAL/CITY OWNED VEHICLE 4300 39,612 34,000 34,000 15,960 44,595 38,000 38,000 38,000 
PROFESSIONAL/CONTRACT SERV 4310 236,746 225,847 225,847 154,599 231,899 234,400 234,400 234,400 
MEETINGS/DUES 4320 1,000 1,000 26 126 5,000 5,000 5,000 
PRINTING/PUBLICATIONS 4330 1,054 1,000 1,000 0 100 1,500 1,500 1,500 
UTILITIES 4340 3,323 6,060 6,060 1,813 4,140 5,340 5,340 5,340 
REPAIR/MAINTENANCE SERVICES 4350 4,964 7,500 7,500 1,985 3,977 8,500 8,500 8,500 
TRAINING 4360 13,827 4,000 4,000 3,812 3,912 6,000 6,000 6,000 
WEED ABATEMENT 4365 3,838 12,000 12,000 14,025 21,037 15,000 15,000 15,000 
RENTAL/LEASES 4380 1,172 1,200 1,200 499 747 2,000 2,000 2,000 

TOTAL MAINTENANCE/OPERATIONS   373,659 352,007 352,007 203,923 346,033 389,240 389,240 389,240 

MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT 4825 0 35,000 51,000 39,735 48,115 47,000 22,000 22,000 
TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY   0 35,000 51,000 39,735 48,115 47,000 22,000 22,000 

ASSET REPLACEMENT    
MACH/EQUIP ASSET REPLACEMENT 4825AR 0 0 0 0 0    11,900 11,900 11,900 
VEHICLE ASSET REPLACEMENT 4840AR 579,665 0 0 0 0     710,000 450,000 450,000 

TOTAL ASSET REPLACEMENT   579,665 0 0 0 0 721,900 461,900 461,900 

GROSS EXPENDITURES   1,022,409 457,269 473,949 291,155 465,345 1,230,114 944,975 944,975 



46 

 

BUILDING INSPECTION 
Fund 001 ‐ Department 4224 

 
The  Building  Division  is  responsible  for  plan  review  and  inspection  of  new  and  remodeled 
structures assuring current Building Codes, Planning Department regulations and Municipal Code 
compliance.   This division also performs annual  fire  inspections of  commercial and  industrial 
businesses and code enforcement of dangerous dilapidated buildings. 
 

GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 
 

 Strive to complete plan checking in a timely manner by having weekly meetings with 
staff and discussing plan review questions and status. 

 Host free Energy and Green Code update courses that the State offers at our facility 
and  invite  our  local  contractors  to  attend  so  that  they  understand what we  are 
required to enforce. 

 Update the Building Department by adding online inspection requests and a web page 
that customers can download handouts and building code updates. 

 
ACTIVITY STATISTICS 

 

  2010 2011 2012 2013  2014
   
Building Permits Issued  366 369 470 508  679
Value of Construction  28,694,744 15,341,284 17,657,226 19,231,153  34,245,887.84

Value/Residential Cons./Alteration  3,288,969 12,488,475 16,586,441 18,331,196  22,127,996.43

Value/Commercial Cons./Alteration  25,405,805 2,852,808 1,070,785 899,957  4,861,156.41 

Single‐Family Homes  11 29 99 87  101
Multi‐Family Homes  0 81 0 0  0
New Commercial  2 1 2 0  2
Swimming Pools  6 8 15 18  24
Buildings Demolished  2 4 2 4  3
Fire Inspections  19 43  22
   
F/T Position Allocation  2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3  2.3

 
Position Allocation:  14/15 

Actual

15/16 
Requested

15/16 
Approved 

  Public Works Superintendent  .30 .30 .30 
  Building Inspector  1.00 2.00 1.00 
  Building Permit Technician  1.00 1.00 
  Office Assistant I/II  1.00  

  Total Positions 2.30 3.30 2.30 
 
Commentary: 
Building  permits  issuance  continues  to  increase  once  again  in  all  categories.  Single  family 
dwellings permits and swimming pools are the highest that they have been in the past four years. 
I predict construction activity will increase and the demand on all staff duties will also increase. 
Training and education units for all certified inspectors will be on going and necessary in order to 
keep up with changing building code requirements. 



47 

 

BUILDING INSPECTION, Continued 
 
Budget Committee Recommendation(s): 
Decrease  Salaries  &  Employee  Benefits  by  $35,011  as  new  Building  Inspector  position  not 
recommended. 
 
Increase Part‐Time Salaries by $25,770 as full‐time position not recommended. 
 
Decrease Salaries & Employee Benefits by $139 to adjust for three months of reclassification. 
 
Council Approved: 
Increase Salaries & Employee Benefits by $35,011 as new Building Inspector approved. 
 
Decrease Part‐Time Salaries by $25,770 as full‐time position recommended and additional part‐
time funds not required. 
 
  



48 

 

 

CITY OF LEMOORE UNIT  NUMBER: 4224 
BUDGET  UNIT  FINANCING  USES DETAIL 

FISCAL  YEAR  2015-16 
UNIT  TITLE: 
FUNCTION: 

Bldg Inspection 
GENERAL FUND

 
 

ACCOUNT  DESCRIPTION 
ACCOUNT
NUMBER 

ACTUAL
2013-14 

ADOPTED
2014-15 

ADJUSTED
2014-15 

ACTUAL 
2/28/2015 

ESTIMATED
2014-15 

REQUESTED
2015-16 

RECOMMENDED 

2015-16 
APPROVED 

2015-16 
 

EXPENDITURE CLASSIFICATION 
 

SALARIES & EMPLOYEE BENEFITS        

REGULAR  SALARIES 4010 106,939 113,685 118,518 74,478 105,682 152,654 108,158 152,654 
OVERTIME 4020 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
PART TIME SALARIES 4030 0 0 0 0 7,358 0 25,770 0 
FICA/MEDICARE 4110 7,294 8,712 8,712 5,516 7,844 11,693 10,261 11,693 
STATE UNEMPLOYMENT INS 4120 966 1,386 1,386 1,384 1,523 1,432 1,432 1,432 
RETIREMENT 4130 19,225 21,684 21,684 10,810 15,721 14,899 14,147 14,899 
HEALTH  INSURANCE 4140 22,743 23,235 23,235 11,167 16,776 37,321 23,698 37,321 
LIFE  INSURANCE 4150 210 255 255 147 217 309 215 309 
UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 4170 100 200 200 100 100 200 100 200 
STATE DISABILITY INSURANCE 4190 1,067 1,137 1,137 728 1,005 1,450 1,027 1,450 

CAFETERIA PLAN 4195 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
DEFERRED COMPENSATION 4200 804 804 804 3,223 5,099 820 820 820 

TOTAL  SALARIES & BENEFITS   159,347 171,098 175,931 107,553 161,325 220,778 185,628 220,778 

MAINTENANCE/OPERATIONS 
     

OPERATING SUPPLIES 4220 2,028 2,000 3,000 2,376 2,976 4,400 4,400 4,400 
REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES 4230 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
RENTAL/CITY OWNED VEHICLE 4300 6,298 3,500 3,500 1,363 5,081 3,500 3,500 3,500 
PROFESSIONAL/CONTRACT SERV 4310 16,339 29,200 29,200 6,509 22,709 20,000 20,000 20,000 
MEETINGS/DUES 4320 598 1,000 1,000 494 994 1,200 1,200 1,200 
PRINTING/PUBLICATIONS 4330 3,162 2,200 2,200 441 2,100 2,200 2,200 2,200 
UTILITIES 4340 228 500 500 174 500 400 400 400 
REPAIR/MAINTENANCE SERVICES 4350 0 300 300 0 300 300 300 300 
TRAINING 4360 700 2,500 2,500 0 2,500 3,200 3,200 3,200 
RENTAL/LEASES 4380 1,302 1,200 1,200 706 1,141 1,200 1,200 1,200 

TOTAL MAINTENANCE/OPERATIONS   30,655 42,400 43,400 12,063 38,301 36,400 36,400 36,400 

MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT 4825 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY   0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

ASSET REPLACEMENT 
     

MACH/EQUIP ASSET REPLACEMENT 4825AR 0 0 0 0 0     0     0 0 
VEHICLE ASSET REPLACEMENT 4840AR 0 0 0 0 0     0     0 0 

TOTAL ASSET REPLACEMENT 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

GROSS EXPENDITURES 
 

190,002 213,498 219,331 119,616 199,626 257,178 222,028 257,178 
 



49 

 

PUBLIC WORKS 
Fund 001 ‐ Department 4230 

 
The Public Works Department  is  charged with  supervising  and directing  the Water,  Sewer/ 
Storm Drainage, Refuse, Planning Services and Building Inspection functions.   In addition, the 
Public Works Department coordinates engineering activities with  the contract City Engineer, 
Quad Knopf, and oversees the Capital Improvement Program. 
 

GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 
 

 Discussions  with  Westlake  Farms,  Leprino  Foods  and  Olam  Foods  concerning 
wastewater discharge requirements and long term commitments. 

 Adopt updated Public Works Standard Specifications. 

 Implement water conservation measures. 

 Evaluate CNG vehicle costs. 

 Review Public  Facilities Maintenance District  (PFMD) and  Lighting and  Landscape 
Maintenance District (LLMD) costs/service. 

 Work with commercial and multi‐family units to meet State recycling standards. 

 Work to secure funding for undergrounding of Dockstader Ditch and completion of 
Cinnamon Drive at Cinnamon Municipal Complex. 

 Assist Fire Department with inspections of structures and fire systems. 

 Abate dangerous buildings. 

 Work with Railroad Company on street crossing upgrades. 
 

ACTIVITY STATISTICS 
 

  2010 2011 2012  2013  2014
     
Encroachment Permits Issued  40 34 31  33  52
Street Tree Permits Issued  9 4 14  17  9
Underground Service Alert Calls  262 377 410  517  415
Pool Draining Permits Issued  139 105 119  228  131
     
F/T Position Allocation  2.7 2.7 2.7  3.75  3.75

 

Position Allocation:  14/15 
Actual

15/16 
Requested

15/16 
Approved 

  Public Works Director  1.00 1.00 1.00 
  Program Manager  .30 .30 .30 
  Superintendent  .70 .70 .70 
  Office Manager  1.00 1.00 1.00 
  Planning Technician  .75 .75 
  Office Assistant I/II  .75  

  Total Positions 3.75 3.75 3.75 
 
 
 



50 

 

PUBLIC WORKS, Continued 
 
Commentary: 
Public Works Salaries will show a savings due to the retirement of the Public Works Director 
position  and  the  current  Superintendent  being  placed  as  the  Interim  which  leaves  the 
Superintendent position vacant. 
 
Budget Committee Recommendation(s): 
Decrease Salaries & Employee Benefits by $418 to adjust for three months of reclassification. 
 
Decrease Training (4360) by $2,000. 
 
Council Approved: 
As recommended. 
 
 
 
 



51 

 

 

CITY OF LEMOORE UNIT  NUMBER: 4230 
BUDGET  UNIT  FINANCING  USES DETAIL 

FISCAL  YEAR  2015-16 
UNIT  TITLE: 
FUNCTION: 

Public Works 
GENERAL FUND

 

 
ACCOUNT  DESCRIPTION 

ACCOUNT
NUMBER 

ACTUAL
2013-14 

ADOPTED
2014-15 

ADJUSTED
2014-15 

ACTUAL 
2/28/2015 

ESTIMATED
2014-15 

REQUESTED
2015-16 

RECOMMENDED 

2015-16 
APPROVED 

2015-16 
 

EXPENDITURE CLASSIFICATION 
 

SALARIES & EMPLOYEE BENEFITS          

REGULAR  SALARIES 4010 245,755 248,495 252,368 168,658 252,483 249,647 249,310 249,310 
OVERTIME 4020 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
PART TIME SALARIES 4030 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
FICA/MEDICARE 4110 19,581 19,051 19,051 13,460 20,048 19,139 19,114 19,114 
STATE UNEMPLOYMENT INS 4120 1,575 1,575 1,575 1,602 1,727 1,628 1,628 1,628 
RETIREMENT 4130 44,337 47,501 47,501 31,890 44,596 37,536 37,485 37,485 
HEALTH  INSURANCE 4140 13,019 19,922 19,922 8,565 13,105 33,634 33,634 33,634 
LIFE  INSURANCE 4150 338 408 408 228 329 352 352 352 
STATE DISABILITY INSURANCE 4190 2,457 2,490 2,490 1,648 2,396 2,377 2,374 2,374 

CAFETERIA PLAN 4195 3,192 0 0 2,242 2,710 0 0 0 
DEFERRED COMPENSATION 4200 13,109 8,801 8,801 9,007 13,130 8,782 8,782 8,782 

TOTAL  SALARIES  &  BENEFITS 343,364 348,243 352,116 237,300 350,524 353,095 352,677 352,677 

MAINTENANCE/OPERATIONS    
OPERATING SUPPLIES 4220 2,282 5,800 6,800 6,332 6,632 2,400 2,400 2,400 
REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES 4230 0 50 50 0 0 50 50 50 
RENTAL/CITY OWNED VEHICLE 4300 6,733 8,000 8,000 2,834 7,612 8,000 8,000 8,000 
PROFESSIONAL/CONTRACT SERV 4310 74,762 146,048 156,448 106,005 146,005 148,000 148,000 148,000 
MEETINGS/DUES 4320 1,261 1,380 1,380 1,124 1,324 1,440 1,440 1,440 
PRINTING/PUBLICATIONS 4330 1,293 1,375 2,375 1,493 2,093 2,500 2,500 2,500 
UTILITIES 4340 2,125 2,112 2,112 968 1,668 1,910 1,910 1,910 
REPAIR/MAINTENANCE SERVICES 4350 0 400 400 0 400 400 400 400 
TRAINING 4360 1,003 4,900 4,900 387 2,387 4,500 2,500 2,500 
RENTAL/LEASES 4380 2,754 2,178 2,178 1,527 2,327 2,600 2,600 2,600 

TOTAL MAINTENANCE/OPERATIONS 92,212 172,243 184,643 120,670 170,448 171,800 169,800 169,800 

MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT 4825 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

ASSET REPLACEMENT    
MACH/EQUIP ASSET REPLACEMENT 4825AR 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
VEHICLE ASSET REPLACEMENT 4840AR 34,429 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL ASSET REPLACEMENT 34,429 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

GROSS EXPENDITURES   470,005 520,486 536,759 357,970 520,972 524,895 522,477 522,477 



52 

STREETS 
Fund 001 ‐ Department 4231 

The Streets portion of the Maintenance Division  is charged with overseeing the maintenance, 
repair, aesthetics and Capital  Improvement Projects of  the City  streets,  roadways and  street 
lights.   Staff provides service for 92 miles of streets repair through filling cracks, potholes and 
maintenance of  sidewalks,  curb and gutter,  traffic  striping,  street  lighting,  signage and weed 
control. 

GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 

 Continue training and cross training of personnel in the diverse tasks required in order 
to improve standards and skills. 

 Strive to streamline the tasks into seasons of workloads, rather than one season for 
all tasks. 

 Continue investigating ways to increase organizational effectiveness and efficiency. 

ACTIVITY STATISTICS 

2010 2011 2012  2013  2014
Streets 
Total Miles of Streets  90 91 91  91  91
Crosswalk/Center Line Striping (Miles  14 14 15  15  15
Traffic Control/Street Signs Maintained  300 300 300  300  310
Banners Hung  20 20 21  27  28

F/T Position Allocation  0 0 0  .30  .30

Position Allocation:  14/15 
Actual

15/16 
Requested

15/16 
Approved 

Director  .10 .10 
Superintendent  .20 .20 
Bldg. Maint./Constr. Coordinator  .35 .35 
Maintenance Worker I/II  1.60 1.60 
Office Assistant I/II  .25 .25 

Total Positions 0 2.50 2.50 

Commentary: 
The Maintenance Division budget was subdivided during this fiscal year to track expenditures for 
all street  related projects and duties.   The Position Allocation was updated  this  fiscal year  to 
reflect personnel working in the department.  However, their salaries and benefits remain in the 
Maintenance Division.  The actual street related costs will be expensed to the Streets Department 
as necessary. 

The Street Budget’s main expenditures continue  to be  for Operating Supplies  (4220); Utilities 
(4340); Repair Supplies (4230) and Repair Maintenance (4350).   Rentals/Leases (4380) shows 



53 

STREETS, Continued 

Chipper  Rental  costs  that may  be  eliminated  should  a  new  one  time  chipper  purchase  be 
authorized. 

In 4230 Repair/Maintenance Supplies staff has shown a carryover amount of $40,000 for the one‐
time  expense  of  street  light  poles  that  staff  has  been waiting  for  approval  of  the  new  pole 
standards prior to expending the funds and a one‐time additional expense of $71,000 that was 
discussed at the March 3, 2015 City Council meeting. The poles and fixtures will replace most of 
street  light  poles  that  have  been  taken  out  by  uninsured motorist  and were  not  funded  in 
previous years for replacement. 

Capital Outlay (4825 Machinery & Equipment) request note one‐time cost for a Wood Chipper to 
provide onsite chipping  for any of  the street  tree  trimming  throughout  the year. Staff  is also 
requesting a Wide Area Litter Vacuum for the Downtown streets and gutters.  There are many 
uses for this type of vacuum such as downtown cleanup, parking lot at CMC, Heritage Park, event 
areas and other locations. 

Budget Committee Recommendation(s): 
Decrease Machinery & Equipment (4825) by $6,500 as Wide Area Litter Vacuum (Billy Goat) not 
recommended. 

Council Approved: 
Increase Machinery & Equipment (4825) by $6,500 as Wide Area Litter Vacuum (Billy Goat)  is 
approved. 



54 

CITY OF LEMOORE UNIT  NUMBER: 4231 
BUDGET  UNIT  FINANCING  USES DETAIL 

FISCAL  YEAR  2015-16 
UNIT  TITLE: 
FUNCTION: 

Streets 
GENERAL FUND

ACCOUNT  DESCRIPTION 
ACCOUNT 
NUMBER 

ACTUAL
2013-14 

ADOPTED
2014-15 

ADJUSTED
2014-15 

ACTUAL 
2/28/2015 

ESTIMATED
2014-15 

REQUESTED
2015-16 

RECOMMENDED 

2015-16 
APPROVED 

2015-16 

EXPENDITURE CLASSIFICATION 

SALARIES & EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

REGULAR  SALARIES 4010 0 0 0 0 19,550 106,414 106,414 106,414 
OVERTIME 4020 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
PART TIME SALARIES 4030 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
FICA/MEDICARE 4110 0 0 0 0 1,037 8,141 8,141 8,141
STATE UNEMPLOYMENT INS 4120 0 0 0 0 813 1,085 1,085 1,085
RETIREMENT 4130 0 0 0 0 1,407 12,910 12,910 12,910
HEALTH  INSURANCE 4140 0 0 0 0 2,012 26,413 26,413 26,413
LIFE  INSURANCE 4150 0 0 0 0 24 235 235 235 
UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 4170 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
STATE DISABILITY INSURANCE 4190 0 0 0 0 136 1,011 1,011 1,011 

CAFETERIA PLAN 4195 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
DEFERRED COMPENSATION 4200 0 0 0 0 82 934 934 934

TOTAL  SALARIES  &  BENEFITS 0 0 0 0 25,061 157,143 157,143 157,143 

MAINTENANCE/OPERATIONS 

OPERATING SUPPLIES 4220 16,222 20,725 20,725 15,702 20,702 31,500 31,500 31,500
REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES 4230 620 49,000 49,000 7,629 10,129 120,550 120,550 120,550
RENTAL/CITY OWNED VEHICLE 4300 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
PROFESSIONAL/CONTRACT SERV 4310 0 200 200 80 130 450 450 450
MEETINGS/DUES 4320 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
PRINTING/PUBLICATIONS 4330 0 250 250 98 198 0 0 0
UTILITIES 4340 74,608 59,755 92,755 56,221 92,755 88,815 88,815 88,815
REPAIR/MAINTENANCE SERVICES 4350 2,297 5,500 5,500 4,774 8,774 8,000 8,000 8,000
TRAINING 4360 400 1,500 1,500 0 0 1,500 1,500 1,500
WEED ABATEMENT 4365 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
RENTAL/LEASES 4380 0 4,400 4,400 2 102 325 325 325

TOTAL MAINTENANCE/OPERATIONS 94,147 141,330 174,330 84,506 132,790 251,140 251,140 251,140 

MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT 4825 0 3,000 3,000 0 3,000 94,500 88,000 94,500

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 0 3,000 3,000 0 3,000 94,500 88,000 94,500

ASSET REPLACEMENT 

MACH/EQUIP ASSET REPLACEMENT 4825AR 0 70,000 70,000 0 70,000 0 0 0 
VEHICLE ASSET REPLACEMENT 4840AR 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL ASSET REPLACEMENT 0 70,000 70,000 0 70,000 0 0 0

GROSS EXPENDITURES 94,147 214,330 247,330 84,506 230,851 502,782 496,282 502,782 



55 

RECREATION 
Fund 001 ‐ Department 4242 

The Recreation Department offers a wide variety of programs and special events for citizens of 
all ages.  The Recreation Center is still flourishing and new night time classes such as Archery, Hip 
Hop Dance, Ballroom Dancing and Salsa have brought in new citizens to the building.  Daytime 
activities include Witness for Fitness Senior Walking Club, open walking track hours for the public, 
after  school  indoor  soccer and basketball  for  school age  children, Pee Wee Paint,  Jazzercise, 
Summer Day Camp and Crossfit.   Construction has started  for a new Crossfit room which will 
allow the PAL Program to utilize the current Crossfit room and offer more opportunities to the 
youth in Lemoore.  The center continues to draw 100 to 300 people per day. 

Excitement is building as the Kings Lions Complex (formally 19th Avenue Park) will open in June 
and we will have fall, spring and summer adult softball during this budget cycle. 

GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 

 To evaluate the cost effectiveness of programs/events and focus on those that create 
revenue. 

 To continue to look for new programs and events that benefit our entire community: 
senior, adults, youth and pre‐school. 

 To provide the best customer service possible and take into account that we work for 
all the citizens of Lemoore. 

ACTIVITY STATISTICS 

2010 2011 2012  2013  2014
Programs/Classes/Special Events 
     Total Infant Programs  1 0 3  2  3
     Total Pee Wee Programs  9 10 11  12  12
     Total Youth Program  16 24 25  25  28
     Youth Dances  14 16 12  11  11
     Youth Performances  6 7 5  10  12
     Adult Sports Programs  7 13 9  8  9
     Adult Exercise Programs  6 9 8  6  6
     Adult Enrichment Programs  12 17 10  6  16
     Senior Events  14 6 5  6  8
     Community Events/Special Events  15 18 14  15  15
     Trips  4 6 3  3  3
     Run/Walks  3 3 3  3  3
Total Programs/Classes/Special Events  116 129 108  107  126

F/T Position Allocation 3.40  3.40



56 

RECREATION, Continued 

Position Allocation:  14/15 
Actual

15/16 
Requested

15/16 
Approved 

Parks and Recreation Director  .40 .40 .40 
Recreation Coordinator  2.00 2.00 2.00 
Recreation Specialist  1.00 1.00 1.00 

Total Positions 3.40 3.40 3.40 

Commentary: 
The Recreation Department still maintains an office staff of 3.4  full  time and  three part  time 
employees.  Our relationship with numerous service organizations, churches and the Navy allow 
us to utilize volunteers for many of our programs and special events.  There will be an increase 
in  Professional  Contract  Services  (4310)  for  Contract  Instructors  due  to  the  return  of  three 
seasons of adult softball, the increase of indoor soccer teams and higher numbers in our Summer 
Day Camp.  Machinery and Equipment (4825) has a one‐time request for a portable stage for the 
Recreation Center.  The Recreation Center now hosts Breakfast with Santa, the Volunteer Dinner, 
Retirement Dinners and major events sponsored by corporations, service clubs and nonprofits.  
All of these events require a stage.  The stage can produce revenue by being added to the rental 
fee  for  the  facility.   Printing and Publications  (4330) will have an  increase of $2,000  to cover 
expenses  for  the Recreation Guide  that  is mailed  to every household with a 93245  zip code.  
Meetings  and  Dues  (4320) will  decrease  by  $6,000  as  the  department will  not  be  sending 
representatives to the California Parks and Recreation Convention.  Part time salaries (4030) will 
decrease by $10,000 due to the fact that we now have two full time Recreation Coordinators.  

Budget Committee Recommendation(s): 
Recommended as requested. 

Council Approved: 
As recommended.



57 

CITY OF LEMOORE UNIT  NUMBER: 4242 
BUDGET  UNIT  FINANCING  USES DETAIL 

FISCAL  YEAR  2015-16 
UNIT  TITLE: 
FUNCTION: 

Recreation 
GENERAL FUND

ACCOUNT  DESCRIPTION 
ACCOUNT
NUMBER 

ACTUAL
2013-14 

ADOPTED
2014-15 

ADJUSTED
2014-15 

ACTUAL 
2/28/2015 

ESTIMATED
2014-15 

REQUESTED
2015-16 

RECOMMENDED 

2015-16 
APPROVED 

2015-16 

EXPENDITURE CLASSIFICATION 
SALARIES & EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

REGULAR  SALARIES 4010 177,211 160,090 161,809 99,218 152,185 164,910 164,910 164,910 

OVERTIME 4020 1,547 0 0 916 1,051 0 0 0
PART TIME SALARIES 4030 56,783 74,000 74,000 34,456 72,000 64,080 64,080 64,080 
FICA/MEDICARE 4110 19,418 18,091 18,091 10,358 15,803 17,591 17,591 17,591
STATE UNEMPLOYMENT INS 4120 5,079 1,848 1,848 3,719 5,575 2,316 2,316 2,316 
RETIREMENT 4130 33,387 26,058 26,058 15,198 21,882 20,136 20,136 20,136
HEALTH  INSURANCE 4140 14,648 25,168 25,168 9,721 15,053 25,042 25,042 25,042 
LIFE  INSURANCE 4150 274 318 318 192 296 318 318 318 
STATE DISABILITY INSURANCE 4190 1,802 1,625 1,625 972 1,452 1,576 1,576 1,576 
CAFETERIA PLAN 4195 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
DEFERRED COMPENSATION 4200 8,004 1,520 1,520 3,572 6,268 1,550 1,550 1,550 

TOTAL  SALARIES  &  BENEFITS 318,153 308,718 310,437 178,322 291,565 297,520 297,520 297,520 

MAINTENANCE/OPERATIONS
OPERATING SUPPLIES 4220 71,728 70,210 70,210 37,495 70,210 73,710 73,710 73,710 
REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES 4230 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
RENTAL/CITY OWNED VEHICLE 4300 571 350 350 212 232 600 600 600 
PROFESSIONAL/CONTRACT SERV 4310 149,125 151,723 151,723 80,098 125,098 157,500 157,500 157,500 
MEETINGS/DUES 4320 3,401 8,520 8,520 640 7,025 2,280 2,280 2,280
PRINTING/PUBLICATIONS 4330 327 1,000 1,000 1,309 1,309 3,300 3,300 3,300
UTILITIES 4340 3,864 4,284 4,284 1,972 3,822 3,804 3,804 3,804
REPAIR/MAINTENANCE SERVICES 4350 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
TRAINING 4360 177 1,500 1,500 0 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500
RENTAL/LEASES 4380 8,235 7,340 7,340 4,841 7,341 7,340 7,340 7,340

TOTAL MAINTENANCE/OPERATIONS 237,427 244,927 244,927 126,567 216,537 250,034 250,034 250,034 
MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT 4825 0 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 8,000 8,000 8,000 

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 0 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 8,000 8,000 8,000 

ASSET REPLACEMENT 
MACH/EQUIP ASSET REPLACEMENT 4825AR 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
VEHICLE ASSET REPLACEMENT 4840AR 0 0 0 0 0 0  0 0 

TOTAL ASSET REPLACEMENT 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

GROSS EXPENDITURES 555,581 563,645 565,364 314,889 518,102 555,554 555,554 555,554 



58 

GOLF COURSE 
Fund 45 ‐ Department 4245 

The Lemoore Golf Course is operated as an Enterprise Fund, with fees and charges expected to 
cover the direct and indirect costs of course ownership, operation and maintenance.  The City is 
entering into a management contract with Tom Ringer Golf to operate the Course. 

The management company is responsible and has the authority under their contract (subject to 
City Council approval of their annual budget and golf fees) to maintain the Course, operate the 
Club House and Pro Shop and promote golf play. 

NOTE: 
Effective June 15, 2015, Ringer Golf will be taking over day to day operations of the Golf Course.  
Detailed projections will be presented at a later date. 

The below information is provided by Tom Ringer Golf. 

Goals & Objectives: Our overall objective  is to continue to work efficiently with the resources 
available and to grow revenue. Revenue streams have already shown a pattern of upward growth 
and should continue as we work diligently  in making  improvements  in course conditions and 
playability.  

Golf Operation: The golf operation budget should be similar to prior year’s expense levels. Pro 
Shop staffing  is for about 80% of the time a one‐person operation. Overlap of hours  is usually 
necessary for lunch breaks and weekend play. Although not optimal for great customer service a 
one  person  program  is  in  most  cases  adequate.  As  revenue  growth  continues,  serious 
consideration will be given  to additional golf shop man hours  to  insure customer service was 
adequately available.  

The 2015/16 budget has monies allotted  for marketing. This money will primarily be used  for 
television ads on the Golf Channel. Our primary goal in Golf Channel ads is to bring in additional 
golfers and tournament groups from the Visalia, Tulare & Fresno areas. I am confident there will 
be a positive ROI on these ads.  Only 40 additional golfers per month are needed to break even 
on this marketing program.  I expect these ads will bring two to three hundred more golfers at 
an average income of $30 per round per golfer. 

Golf Course Maintenance: Golf Course maintenance will also be maintained at an expense level 
similar to prior years. Our production and efficiency in recent months has improved greatly due 
to our golf course superintendent Jed Noonkester. Jed has taken on a “can do” approach to all of 
our challenges and passed on his positive energy and training skills to his staff. At this time we 
have a small but solid group of maintenance employees. 

Not mentioning the status of equipment needs would be a disservice to all  interested parties. 
Judging  by  the  age  and  use  hours  of  the  current  inventory  of  our maintenance  equipment, 
replacement of major machinery has clearly been deferred in recent years. The good news for 
now is that we have an excellent mechanic who is keeping existing equipment functional and 



59 

GOLF COURSE, Continued 

keeping good records on all repairs. As we grow revenue and profits  in the months and years 
ahead I believe equipment needs should be put at the top of our priority list. 

Restaurant: 2014/15 was an unusual year with the restaurant being leased out for a considerable 
part of the fiscal year. This is one area of the golf course operation where I am confident to say 
there will be  significant  gains  in  revenue  for  the upcoming  fiscal  year. Plans  to  improve  the 
restaurant  include additional  televisions,  table placemats, beer on  tap and  improved  seating 
environment on the patio area should promote significant sales increases.  

Budget Committee Recommendation(s): 
Recommend as requested. 

Council Approved: 
As recommended. 



60 

CITY OF LEMOORE UNIT  NUMBER: 4245
BUDGET UNIT FINANCING  USES  DETAIL 

FISCAL  YEAR  2015-16 
UNIT  TITLE: 
FUNCTION: 

G o l f  C o u r s e  
Fund 45 

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION 
ACCOUNT
NUMBER

ACTUAL
2013-14

ADOPTED
2014-15 

ADJUSTED
2014-15

ACTUAL
2/28/2015 

ESTIMATED
2014-15

REQUESTED
2015-16

RECOMMENDED 

2015-16
APPROVED 

2015-16

EXPENDITURE  CLASSIFICATION 

SALARIES  &  EMPLOYEE  BENEFITS 
    OVERTIME 4020 0 0 0 3,885 4,614 0 0 0 
    PART TIME SALARIES 4030 0 0 0 136,727 204,904 0 0 0 
    FICA/MEDICARE 4110 0 0 0 10,698 15,974 0 0 0 
    STATE UNEMPLOYMENT  INS 4120 0 0 0 7,446 9,579 0 0 0 
    RETIREMENT 4130 0 0 0 870 3,437 0 0 0 
   CAFETERIA PLAN 4195 0 0 0 337 337 0 0 0 
TOTAL  SALARIES  &  BENEFITS 0 0 0 159,963 238,845 0 0 0

COST OF SALES

    CITY COST OF REVENUE-KITCHEN 4000K 0 0 0 34,529 39,992 94,974 94,974 94,974

    CITY COST OF REVENUE-PRO SHOP 4000P 0 0 0 44,612 72,206 117,229 117,229 111,229

TOTAL COST OF SALES 0 0 0 79,141 112,198 212,203 212,203 212,203

MAINTENANCE/OPERATIONS
    OPERATING SUPPLIES 4220 0 0 0 78,427 119,677 101,000 101,000 101,000 
    REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES 4230 0 0 0 10,145 17,838 19,000 19,000 19,000 
    MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE 4291 0 0 0 12,017 17,956 18,000 18,000 18,000 
    STAFFING/TOM RINGER GOLF 4309 0 0 0 0 0 345,000 345,000 345,000 
    PROFESSIONAL/CONTRACT SERV 4310 0 0 0 92,531 144,839 129,000 129,000 129,000 
    MEETINGS/DUES 4320 0 0 0 0 0 3,500 3,500 3,500 
    UTILITIES 4340 0 0 0 50,386 91,895 92,580 92,580 92,580 
    REPAIR/MALINTENANCE SERVICES 4350 0 0 0 34,371 46,077 47,227 47,227 47,227 
    RENTAL/LEASES 4380 0 0 0 34,428 57,025 57,025 57,025 57,025 
TOTAL MAINTENANCE/OPERATIONS 0 0 0 312,305 495,307 812,332 812,332 812,332

    PRIMARY BANK LOAN PAYMENT 200,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
    INTEREST EXPENSE 0 0 0 13,207 30,002 22,629 22,629 22,629 
    GENERAL FUND LOAN PRINCIPAL 0 0 0 43,595 174,789 176,235 176,235 176,235 
    LRA SUCCESSOR LOAN PRINCIPAL 0 0 0 11,130 53,673 106,348 106,348 106,348
TOTAL  OTHER PAYABLES 200,000 0 0 67,932 258,464 305,212 305,212 305,212

ASSET REPLACEMENT
    MACH/EQUIP ASSET REPLACEMENT 4825AR 0 0 0 7,921 21,739 3,700 3,700 3,700 
    VEHICLE ASSET REPLACEMENT 4840AR 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
    CIP ASSET REPLACEMENT 4850 0 0 0 0 36,000 0 0 0 
TOTAL  ASSET REPLACEMENT 0 0 0 7,921 57,739 3,700 3,700 3,700

GROSS  EXPENDITURES 200,000 0 0 627,262 1,162,553 1,333,447 1,333,447 1,333,447 



61 

WATER DIVISION 
Fund 50 ‐ Department 4250 

The Water Division  is  charged with delivering high quality water  in  adequate quantities  and 
pressures as needed  for domestic, commercial,  industrial and  fire suppression purposes.   The 
Division operates and maintains the potable water system, which consists of water production, 
water  arsenic  blending,  tank  storage,  and  re‐boosting  the  distribution  system  to meet  the 
required demands.  The water system consists of four production wells at our North Well Field 
(Wells 2, 4, 5, 6) five miles north of town along the Kings River.  The City currently has six wells 
which are located in the community service area (Wells 7, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14).  Also, the City has 
one well (Well 9) which is used seasonally for Olam Tomato Processors, Inc. (Well 8) has failed 
and is no longer usable. Well 9 is used as standby emergency use only, for a total of 11 city wells.  
The City has five above ground water storage tanks (2 – 1 million gallons each at 40 G Street) (1 
– 900,000 gallons at Well 11) (1 – 1.5 million gallons @ Well 7) and (1 – 450,000 gallons @ Well
12). The City has six Sodium Hypochlorite treatment facilities used for chlorination of the City 
water to resolve some of the hydrogen sulfide  issues with the  local ground water.   The Water 
Department operates and maintains the seasonal  industrial water system (Well 9) serving the 
Olam Tomato Processors, Inc. plant south of 198 freeway in the City of Lemoore Industrial Park. 

GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 

 Review and implement the Urban Water Management Plan 

 Continue implementing the Water Capital Improvement Projects 

 Continue to monitor and implement the requirements dictated by California 
Department of Public Health Services and the Federal EPA regulators 

 Review and confer with CDPH and Engineers on meeting the new Byproducts Rule 
and apply for funding 

 Continue to assist the Fire Department in meeting the ISO Class 3 Fire Rating 

 Continue Water Departments Annual Safety Training Program to meet all 
requirements 

 Continue Water System Efficiency Monitoring Program 

 Continue our water meter change out program 

ACTIVITY STATISTICS 

2010 2011 2012  2013  2014

Water Production (acre ft/yr)  7,045 7,020 7,583  7,914      7583
Services Installed/Replaced  298 544 626  1,388          628 
Hydrant Meters Set‐up  8 7 19  12          19 
Emergency Response Calls  169 215 149  159        153
Water Samples Taken  765 882 862  895        862
Meters Read Monthly (March)  6,452 6,452 6,700  6,525      6705
Operating/Maintenance Cost per 1,000 gallon  $1.03 $1.20 $1.00  $0.96     $1.00
Underground Service Alert Calls  262 377 410  517        415
Delinquent Notices Passed Out 6,416



62 

WATER DIVISION, Continued 

Service Orders (Turn On / Off) 2,361
Fire Hydrants Repaired / Replaced 18
Water Tanks‐ Drained, Cleaned, Inspected, 
Disinfected, Refilled and Put Back on Line 

5

Fire Hydrants Flushed and Inspected 255
Water System Main Line and Fire Hydrant 
Valves Exercised and Inspected 

566

Water Complaints Received, Investigated, 
and Resolved 

110

F/T Position Allocation  9.6 9.65 9.65  9.65  9.65

Position Allocation:  14/15 
Actual

15/16 
Requested

15/16 
Approved 

Public Works Superintendent  1.00 1.00 1.00 
Administrative Analyst  .35 .35 .35 
Senior Utility Operator  1.00 1.00 1.00 
Utility Operator I/II  6.00 6.00 6.00 
Maintenance Worker I/II  1.00 1.00 1.00 
Office Assistant I/II  .30 .30 .30 

Total Positions 9.65 9.65 9.65 

Commentary: 
In Operating Supplies (4220), an increase of $44,510 is requested due to the cost of additional 
water meters and registers needed to convert the manual read residential meters to touch read 
meters as part of our water meter replacement program.   These meters could put us close to 
completing the Touch Read Replacement Program at a cost of $15,500. The targeted areas are 
between Bush Street and Highway 198 and 19th Avenue and Vine Street, and the Carlton Air and 
Elk Meadows Subdivisions.  1‐ 4 inch water meter is also scheduled to be installed at the Bush 
and  Fox  Street  Park, which  has  never  been metered.    This will  be  completed  by  the Water 
Department at an estimated cost of $7,500. Proposed is to stock 8 new fire hydrants at a cost of 
$16,500. An increase of $5,000 is anticipated for the cost of sodium hypochlorite. 

In Repair/Maintenance Supplies (4230), there is a slight increase of $15,000 due to brass meter 
stock needed for the meter replacement program and the fire hydrant repair material parts. 

A decrease in Professional Contract Services (4310) is projected due to a cut in projected testing 
requirements. 

An  increase  in Meetings and Dues (4320)  is needed due to  increased meeting attendance and 
higher annual fees with California Rural Water Association.  

An increase in Printing/Publications (4330) is needed due to cost of Consumer Confidence Report 
and TTHM quarterly notifications to the public.  



63 

WATER DIVISION, Continued 

An increase in Utilities (4340) is needed due to projected power costs $135,000. 

An increase in Repair & Maintenance Services (4350) is needed due to higher well maintenance 
costs $7,000.   

Rental/City Owned Vehicles/Equipment (4300) as projected by Fleet Maintenance is $99,000.  

A 1500 sq. foot ‐ Laboratory / Training Room Building is needed at 40 G Street site $98,000.  This 
will be in Machinery/Equipment Asset Replacement (4825AR). 

Vehicles Cap outlay (4840) has a ½ Ton Pickup requested and it is $29,500.  

A Service Truck (68,000) is requested in Vehicle Asset Replacement (4840AR) to replace #320. 

Budget Committee Recommendation(s): 
Decrease Solar Loan – Sewer Set Aside  (4394) by $450,000 as Committee  is recommending a 
postponement of the 15‐16 FY repayment associated with the Solar Project. 

Decrease Machinery/Equipment (4840) by $29,500 as ½ ton pickup not recommended. 

Council Approved: 
As recommended. 



64 

CITY OF LEMOORE UNIT NUMBER: 4250
BUDGET UNIT FINANCING  USES  DETAIL 

FISCAL YEAR 2015-16
UNIT  TITLE: 
FUNCTION:

Water Division
Fund 50

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION 
ACCOUNT
NUMBER

ACTUAL
2013-14

ADOPTED
2014-15

ADJUSTED
2014-15

ACTUAL 
2/28/2015 

ESTIMATED
2014-15

REQUESTED
2015-16

RECOMMENDED 

2015-16
APPROVED 

2015-16 

EXPENDITURE  CLASSIFICATION 

SALARIES  &  EMPLOYEE  BENEFITS 
    REGULAR  SALARIES 4010 408,440 428,824 435,920 287,542 430,766 437,127 437,127 437,127 
    OVERTIME 4020 9,689 9,594 9,594 6,785 9,594 7,000 7,000 7,000 
    PART TIME SALARIES 4030 60,326 75,262 75,262 29,004 59,004 75,000 75,000 75,000 
    FICA/MEDICARE 4110 34,796 39,358 39,358 23,914 39,357 39,774 39,774 39,774 
    STATE UNEMPLOYMENT  INS 4120 7,331 4,473 4,473 4,850 4,850 4,622 4,622 4,622 
    RETIREMENT 4130 67,336 73,775 73,775 49,233 73,775 64,769 64,769 64,769 
    HEALTH   INSURANCE 4140 60,682 70,719 70,719 40,817 70,574 91,567 91,567 91,567 
    LIFE  INSURANCE 4150 851 965 965 587 965 904 904 904 
    UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 4170 675 800 800 800 800 800 800 800 
    STATE DISABILITY INSURANCE 4190 4,112 4,384 4,384 2,870 4,384 4,219 4,219 4,219 
   CAFETERIA PLAN 4195 3,337 0 0 2,712 4,112 0 0 0 
    DEFERRED COMPENSATION 4200 8,475 3,593 3,593 5,269 7,457 3,556 3,556 3,556 
TOTAL  SALARIES  &  BENEFITS 666,051 711,747 718,843 454,383 705,638 729,338 729,338 729,338

MAINTENANCE/OPERATIONS
    OPERATING SUPPLIES 4220 425,725 407,565 407,565 225,493 332,328 450,195 450,195 450,195 
    REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES 4230 33,022 35,000 53,650 42,216 53,616 50,000 50,000 50,000 
    RENTAL/CITY OWNED VEHICLE 4300 104,999 99,000 99,000 29,527 85,240 99,000 99,000 99,000 
    PROFESSIONAL/CONTRACT SERV 4310 131,235 187,937 199,432 59,483 171,483 176,556 176,556 176,556 
    LAGUNA RECHARGE PAYMENT 4313 0 10,250 10,250 0 10,250 10,240 10,240 10,240 
    MEETINGS/DUES 4320 3,136 3,000 3,000 1,476 2,976 4,000 4,000 4,000 
    PRINTING/PUBLICATIONS 4330 4,494 3,000 3,000 2,398 4,198 7,500 7,500 7,500 
    UTILITIES 4340 956,789 615,000 615,000 483,470 934,945 750,000 750,000 750,000 
    REPAIR/MAINTENANCE SERVICES 4350 86,852 38,000 148,000 82,181 91,846 20,000 20,000 20,000 
    TRAINING 4360 1,331 2,500 2,500 1,315 2,415 2,500 2,500 2,500 
    RENTAL/LEASES 4380 2,201 2,000 2,000 1,469 2,269 2,500 2,500 2,500 
    BAD DEBT EXPENSE 4381 5,671 12,250 12,250 2,589 4,189 12,250 12,250 12,250 
TOTAL MAINTENANCE/OPERATIONS 1,755,455 1,415,502 1,555,647 931,617 1,695,755 1,584,741 1,584,741 1,584,741
    SOLAR LOAN INTEREST 4392 175,773 171,566 171,566 129,609 171,566 161,502 161,502 161,502 
    SOLAR LOAN PRINCIPAL 4393 0 402,062 402,062 300,613 402,062 412,126 412,126 412,126 
    SOLAR LOAN - SEWER SET ASIDE 4394 0 450,000 450,000 0 450,000 450,000 0 0 
TOTAL  OTHER PAYABLES 175,773 1,023,628 1,023,628 430,222 1,023,628 1,023,628 573,628 573,628
    BUILDINGS 4820 0 0 0 0 0 98,000 98,000 98,000 
    MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT 4825 7,200,296 5,000 5,000 859,151 859,151 0 0 0 
    VEHICLES 4840 33,988 0 0 0 0 29,500 0 0 
TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 7,234,284 5,000 5,000 859,151 859,151 127,500 98,000 98,000

ASSET REPLACEMENT
    MACH/EQUIP ASSET REPLACEMENT 4825AR 0 35,300 35,300 0 35,300 25,000 25,000 25,000 
    VEHICLE ASSET REPLACEMENT 4840AR 76,270 35,000 35,000 30,088 30,088 68,000 68,000 68,000 
    CIP ASSET REPLACEMENT 4850 178,893 0 0 101,210 101,210 0 0 0 
TOTAL  ASSET REPLACEMENT 255,163 70,300 70,300 131,298 166,598 93,000 93,000 93,000

GROSS  EXPENDITURES 10,086,726 3,226,177 3,373,418 2,806,671 4,450,770 3,558,207 3,078,707 3,078,707 



65 

UTILITY OFFICE 
Fund 50 ‐ Department 4251 

The Utility Office, under  the  supervision of  the Finance Director,  is  responsible  for preparing 
monthly billing  for  refuse,  sewer and water utilities, processing orders  for utility  service and 
receiving and posting receipts.  Through the cost allocation calculations, the inter‐fund transfers 
of the Enterprise Fund utilities contribute a pro‐rata share of the Utility Office costs. 

ACTIVITY STATISTICS 

2010 2011 2012  2013  2014

Utility Accounts Maintained  6,370 6,382 6,516  6,550  6,662
Utility Bills Processed (Incl. delinquent)  76,408 76,645 77,440  78,602  79,950
Water Turn‐ons/Turn‐offs Processed  2,116 2,358 2,361  2,260  2,256
48 Hour Notices Processed  7,058 6,886 6,416  6,524  6,519

F/T Position Allocation  3 3 3  3.75  3.75

Position Allocation:  14/15 
Actual

15/16 
Requested

15/16 
Approved 

Finance Director  .50 .50 .50 
Accountants (2)  1.00 1.00 1.00 
Account Clerk I/II  2.25 2.25 2.25 

Total Positions 3.75 3.75 3.75 

Commentary: 
The Utility Office  budget  is  consistent with  the  approved  2014‐2015  budget.    There  are  no 
material changes  in the requested budget for 2015‐2016 for the day to day operations of the 
department.  The budget includes a request to upgrade the Pentamation Software that is used 
to process the utility billing for the City.  The cost of the Utility Program upgrade is $67,617.  This 
upgrade has been recommended so that the server and software are reliable and up to date. 

Budget Committee Recommendation(s): 
Recommended as requested. 

Council Approved: 
As recommended. 



66 

CITY OF LEMOORE UNIT NUMBER: 4251 
BUDGET UNIT FINANCING USES DETAIL 

FISCAL YEAR 2015-16 
UNIT TITLE: 
FUNCTION: 

Utility Office 
Fund 50 

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION 
ACCOUNT
NUMBER 

ACTUAL
2013-14 

ADOPTED
2014-15 

ADJUSTED
2014-15 

ACTUAL 
2/28/2015 

ESTIMATED
2014-15 

REQUESTED
2015-16 

RECOMMENDED 

2015-16 
APPROVED 

2015-16 

EXPENDITURE CLASSIFICATION 

REGULAR SALARIES 4010 153,332 184,962 184,962 111,496 164,874 180,136 180,136 180,136 
OVERTIME 4020 0 867 867 0 867 1,000 1,000 1,000
PART TIME SALARIES 4030 46,351 47,440 47,440 19,913 31,265 55,775 55,775 55,775 
FICA/MEDICARE 4110 15,320 17,845 17,845 10,333 15,006 18,124 18,124 18,124
STATE UNEMPLOYMENT INS 4120 2,692 2,835 2,835 1,840 3,049 2,496 2,496 2,496 
RETIREMENT 4130 27,541 32,308 32,308 17,168 24,214 19,889 19,889 19,889
HEALTH  INSURANCE 4140 10,425 18,709 18,709 7,105 12,201 29,608 29,608 29,608 
LIFE INSURANCE 4150 262 454 454 200 298 352 352 352 
STATE DISABILITY INSURANCE 4190 1,511 1,858 1,858 1,091 1,572 1,721 1,721 1,725 
CAFETERIA PLAN 4195 1,838 3,500 3,500 1,163 1,690 0 0 0 
DEFERRED COMPENSATION 4200 6,453 3,981 3,981 6,777 9,776 4,090 4,090 4,090 

TOTAL SALARIES & BENEFITS 265,725 314,759 314,759 177,086 264,812 313,191 313,191 313,191 

MAINTENANCE/OPERATIONS 
OPERATING SUPPLIES 4220 3,655 8,575 8,575 6,126 8,126 4,375 4,375 4,375 
REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES 4230 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
RENTAL/CITY OWNED VEHICLE 4300 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
PROFESSIONAL/CONTRACT SERV 4310 95,811 102,655 102,655 59,506 105,268 105,950 105,950 105,950 
MEETINGS/DUES 4320 116 400 400 98 298 400 400 400
PRINTING/PUBLICATIONS 4330 1,609 2,375 2,375 1,109 1,709 2,585 2,585 2,585
UTILITIES 4340 2,035 2,340 2,340 1,003 1,900 2,340 2,340 2,340
REPAIR/MAINTENANCE SERVICES 4350 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
TRAINING 4360 11 1,665 1,665 0 500 1,665 1,665 1,665
RENTAL/LEASES 4380 1,992 2,320 2,320 1,194 2,214 2,320 2,320 2,320

TOTAL MAINTENANCE/OPERATIONS 105,229 120,330 120,330 69,036 120,015 119,635 119,635 119,635 

MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT 4825 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

ASSET REPLACEMENT 

MACH/EQUIP ASSET REPLACEMENT 4825AR 0 0 0 0 0   67,617 67,617 67,617 
VEHICLE ASSET REPLACEMENT 4840AR 0 0 0 0 0    0 0 0 

TOTAL ASSET REPLACEMENT 0 0 0 0 0 67,617 67,617 67,617

GROSS EXPENDITURES 370,954 435,089 435,089 246,122 384,827 500,443 500,443 500,443 

SALARIES & EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 



67 

REFUSE DIVISION 
Fund 56 ‐ Department 4256 

The Refuse Division is responsible for the collection and transportation of solid waste refuse and 
recycling  from  residential  and  commercial  premises within  the  City  to  the  Kings Waste  and 
Recycling Authority  facility.   Refuse  services  include  residential collection of green waste, co‐
mingled recycling, refuse, and commercial bin service from one to five times per week, depending 
upon the need.    In addition, the Refuse Division offers commercial co‐mingled recycling.   The 
Refuse  Division  is  also  responsible  for  sweeping  residential  streets  and  removing  graffiti 
throughout the City. 

GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 

 Maintain and provide high level of Refuse service as efficiently as possible 
 Migrate to C.N.G. Refuse Trucks 
 Evaluate Refuse Routes 
 Outreach to customers to increase recycling totals 
 Expand front loader use 
 Complete dumpster conversions. 

ACTIVITY STATISTICS 

2010 2011 2012 2013  2014

Number/Refuse Customers  5,876 5,930 6,773 6,818  6,922
Tons/Refuse Picked Up  15,282 15,022 14,531 14,727  14,842
Tons City‐wide Cleanup  N/A N/A N/A N/A  120
Dumpsters Converted to Front Loader  126 92 160 100  150
     And/or Repaired/Painted
Resident Dumpster Rentals/Empties  141 152 275 293  406
Tons of Greenwaste  3,764 3,699 3,378 3,322  3,147
Tons of Recyclables  1,628 1,295  1,301
Tons of E‐Waste  52 51  46
Tons of Scrap Metal  0 31 20  77
Requests for Extra Load/Empty Pickups  14 10 20 5  6
Replace/Repair Damaged Cans  353 274  448
Replace Missing Cans  52 40  51
Deliver Cans/New Service  101 65  116
Extra Dumpster Empties  74 35  46
New Residential/Bring in Extra Can  43 59  93
Deliver Cans/Extra Can Request  145 141  44
Blue Can Lid Repairs  436  1197
Clean up Around Recycling Area (hours)  400  156
Collection/Disposal Cost per Ton  $124 $132 $133 $133  $135
Residential Accounts:
     Single Family Refuse Customers  5,476 5,549 6,375 6,420  6,536

F/T Position Allocation  7.3 6.55 6.55 6.55  8.55



68 

REFUSE DIVISION, Continued 

Position Allocation:  14/15 
Actual

15/16 
Requested

15/16 
Approved 

Superintendent  .92 .92 .92 
Administrative Analyst  .30 .30 .30 
Refuse Maintenance Coordinator  1.00 1.00 
Senior Maintenance Worker  1.00
Maintenance Worker I/II  6.00 7.00 7.00 
Office Assistant I/II  .33 .33 .33 

Total Positions 8.55 9.55 9.55 

Commentary: 
There  is an  increase  in  the Refuse Budget due  to  the  request  for an additional Maintenance 
Worker  I  position  and  a  reclassification  for  a  Senior  Maintenance  Worker  to  a  Refuse 
Maintenance Coordinator. There is also an increase in 4840 AR to replace a 1996 pickup truck.  

Budget Committee Recommendation(s): 
Decrease Salaries & Employee Benefits by $1,357 to adjust for three months of reclassification. 

Council Approved: 
As recommended. 



69 

CITY OF LEMOORE UNIT  NUMBER: 4256 
BUDGET  UNIT  FINANCING  USES DETAIL 

FISCAL  YEAR  2015-16 
UNIT  TITLE: 
FUNCTION: 

Refuse 
Fund 56

ACCOUNT  DESCRIPTION 
ACCOUNT
NUMBER 

ACTUAL
2013-14 

ADOPTED
2014-15 

ADJUSTED
2014-15 

ACTUAL 
2/28/2015 

ESTIMATED
2014-15 

REQUESTED
2015-16 

RECOMMENDED 

2015-16 
APPROVED 

2015-16 

EXPENDITURE CLASSIFICATION 

SALARIES & EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

REGULAR  SALARIES 4010 299,508 362,025 366,287 230,419 349,739 402,024 400,937 400,937 
OVERTIME 4020 12,394 11,010 11,010 11,038 12,338 12,500 12,500 12,500
PART TIME SALARIES 4030 96,757 50,837 50,837 44,201 61,901 46,000 46,000 46,000 
FICA/MEDICARE 4110 31,194 32,464 32,464 22,355 33,635 35,284 35,200 35,200
STATE UNEMPLOYMENT INS 4120 5,870 4,431 4,431 5,050 6,850 5,013 5,013 5,013 
RETIREMENT 4130 57,585 61,968 61,968 39,618 60,618 58,630 58,453 58,453
HEALTH  INSURANCE 4140 30,362 60,763 60,763 19,612 31,337 77,368 77,368 77,368 
LIFE  INSURANCE 4150 593 866 866 486 746 894 894 894 
UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 4170 500 500 500 400 400 700 700 700 
STATE DISABILITY INSURANCE 4190 3,090 3,730 3,730 2,363 3,563 3,938 3,928 3,928 
CAFETERIA PLAN 4195 605 0 0 1,296 2,340 0 0 0 
DEFERRED COMPENSATION 4200 13,473 3,248 3,248 13,819 21,659 3,220 3,220 3,220 

TOTAL  SALARIES  &  BENEFITS 551,932 591,842 596,104 390,657 585,126 645,570 644,213 644,213 

MAINTENANCE/OPERATIONS 

OPERATING SUPPLIES 4220 30,762 50,250 57,750 54,584 55,384 69,100 69,100 69,100 
REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES 4230 3,828 6,200 6,200 3,374 5,374 7,500 7,500 7,500 
RENTAL/CITY OWNED VEHICLE 4300 334,349 377,500 377,500 119,985 346,860 375,000 375,000 375,000 
PROFESSIONAL/CONTRACT SERV 4310 884,774 960,000 960,000 565,910 805,088 981,500 981,500 981,500 
MEETINGS/DUES 4320 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
PRINTING/PUBLICATIONS 4330 763 1,500 1,500 1,407 1,407 2,500 2,500 2,500
UTILITIES 4340 1,277 1,500 1,500 604 831 5,000 5,000 5,000
REPAIR/MAINTENANCE SERVICES 4350 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
TRAINING 4360 69,596 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
RENTAL/LEASES 4380 631 500 500 381 516 500 500 500
BAD DEBT EXPENSE 4381 2,251 12,000 12,000 3,013 4,018 12,000 12,000 12,000 

TOTAL MAINTENANCE/OPERATIONS 1,328,239 1,409,450 1,416,950 749,258 1,219,478 1,453,100 1,453,100 1,453,100 

MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT 4825 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

ASSET REPLACEMENT 

MACH/EQUIP ASSET REPLACEMENT 4825AR 0 0 0 0 0 $0 0 0 
VEHICLE ASSET REPLACEMENT 4840AR 0 0 160,000 0 299,472 $28,500 28,500 28,500 

TOTAL ASSET REPLACEMENT 0 0 160,000 0 299,472 28,500 28,500 28,500

GROSS EXPENDITURES 1,880,171 2,001,292 2,173,054 1,139,915 2,104,076 2,127,170 2,125,813 2,125,813 



70 

SEWER AND STORM DRAIN 
Fund 60 ‐ Department 4260 

The Sewer and Storm Drain Division is charged with maintaining all sewer and storm drain lines, 
lift  stations,  catch  basins  and  ponding  basins,  leaf  pick  up  and  operating  the Waste Water 
Treatment Plant in accordance with the City's discharge permit from the Regional Water Quality 
Control Board. 

GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 

 Work with  industrial users  to  implement new waste discharge permit  and  reduce 
loadings to WWTP. 

 Continue  line  maintenance  program  to  meet  requirements  under  the  National 
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System. 

 Continue sludge reduction and TSS removal at WWTP. 
 Work on aerator performance to reduce electrical cost and improve treatment. 
 Continue discussions on building a new WWTP to prepare for future Waste Discharge 

Requirement Permit. 

ACTIVITY STATISTICS 

2010 2011 2012 2013  2014

Treatment Plant Lab Tests Performed  4,135 4,865 5,082 4,693  4,371
Ft./Sanitary Sewer Mains Cleaned  146,498 171,486 195,154 152,284  153,058
Ft./Storm Drain Mains Cleaned  22,884 26,122 14,860 35,740  37,555
Maint. Checks/Sewer Lift Stations  6,424 5,517 7,145 6,475  6,889
Maint. Checks/Storm Drain Lift Stations  1,518 1,368 1,340 1,347  1,302
Effluent to Westlake Farms (c.f.)*  203.7 204.4 202.6 212.7  203.2
Sanitary & Storm Lift Stations Cleaned  75 108 147 132  121
Storm Drain Catch Basins Cleaned  111 97 107 145  201
Operation/Maint. Cost per 1,000 Gallons  .98 1.10 1.00 1.07  1.29

* Millions

F/T Position Allocation  9.6 9.65 9.65 10.65  11.65

Position Allocation:  14/15 
Actual

15/16 
Requested

15/16 
Approved 

Superintendent  1.00 1.00 1.00 
Administrative Analyst  .35 .35 .35 
Collection System Coordinator  1.00 1.00 1.00 
Senior Utility Operator  1.00 1.00 1.00 
Utility Operator I/II  2.00 2.00 2.00 
Maintenance Worker I/II  5.00 6.00 5.00 
Office Assistant I/II  .30 .30 .30 

Total Positions 10.65 11.65 10.65 



71 

 

SEWER AND STORM DRAIN, Continued 
 
Commentary: 
In Operating Supplies (4220) an  increase  is requested due to miscellaneous  items needed and 
one time purchases. 
 
In Repair/Maintenance Supplies (4230) an increase is requested due to needed equipment and 
repairs.  
 
In Rental/City Owned Vehicles (4300) there is a decrease due to the purchase of the new Leaf 
Machine cutting costs.  
 
In Professional/Contract Services (4310) an increase is requested due to an increase in SWRCB 
Fees, Wastewater Testing and Engineering Services involving Leprino Foods.  
 
In Utilities  (4340)  a  decrease  is  expected  due  to  the  completion  of  the  Solar  Project  at  the 
Wastewater Plant.  
 
In Repair/Maintenance Supplies (4350) an increase is requested due to needed electrical panels 
at the Wastewater Plant.  
 
Budget Committee Recommendation(s): 
Decrease Salaries & Employee Benefits by $48,885 as new Maintenance Worker position is not 
recommended. 
 
Council Approved: 
As recommended. 
 
 
 
  



72 

 

 

CITY OF LEMOORE UNIT NUMBER: 4260 
BUDGET UNIT FINANCING USES DETAIL UNIT TITLE: Sewer 

FISCAL YEAR 2015-16 FUNCTION: Fund 60 
 

 
ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION 

ACCOUNT 
NUMBER

ACTUAL 
2013-14

ADOPTED 
2014-15

ADJUSTED 
2014-15

ACTUAL 
2/28/2015 

ESTIMATED 
2014-15

REQUESTED 
2015-16

RECOMMENDED 

2015-16 
APPROVED 

2015-16 

    EXPENDITURE CLASSIFICATION 
 

SALARIES & EMPLOYEE BENEFITS  

REGULAR SALARIES 4010 435,008 484,635 490,835 318,700 490,835 526,832 496,673 526,973
OVERTIME 4020 9,179 9,626 9,626 10,249 15,449 16,500 16,500 16,500
PART TIME SALARIES 4030 30,973 39,780 39,780 25,441 38,491 43,215 43,215 33,215
FICA/MEDICARE 4110 35,049 40,923 40,923 26,167 39,507 44,947 42,640 44,193
STATE UNEMPLOYMENT INS 4120 5,027 5,313 5,313 5,184 6,784 5,924 5,490 5,924
RETIREMENT 4130 76,350 86,244 86,244 54,889 81,889 71,301 69,420 71,310
HEALTH  INSURANCE 4140 49,312 72,895 72,895 43,617 71,617 111,194 97,571 111,194
LIFE INSURANCE 4150 880 1,058 1,058 640 964 1,091 997 1,091
UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 4170 875 900 900 800 800 1,000 900 1,000
STATE DISABILITY INSURANCE 4190 4,418 4,942 4,942 3,212 4,712 5,162 4,875 5,163
CAFETERIA PLAN 4195 86 0 0 729 1,159 0 0 0
DEFERRED COMPENSATION 4200 15,208 3,462 3,462 8,432 11,932 3,423 3,423 3,423

TOTAL SALARIES & BENEFITS  662,364 749,778 755,978 498,060 764,139 830,590 781,705 819,986 

MAINTENANCE/OPERATIONS       

OPERATING SUPPLIES 4220 150,481 150,050 150,050 129,313 162,548 162,700 162,700 162,700
REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES 4230 13,575 16,700 21,500 15,965 20,765 22,200 22,200 22,200
RENTAL/CITY OWNED VEHICLE 4300 111,378 118,000 118,000 34,016 69,016 100,000 100,000 100,000
PROFESSIONAL/CONTRACT SERV 4310 144,952 163,097 203,097 141,717 204,540 218,000 230,097 230,097
MEETINGS/DUES 4320 1,734 2,100 2,100 505 2,100 2,100 2,100 2,100
PRINTING/PUBLICATIONS 4330 0 300 300 0 300 300 300 300
UTILITIES 4340 341,290 243,750 243,750 147,262 226,612 240,000 240,000 240,000
REPAIR/MAINTENANCE SERVICES 4350 17,043 22,600 22,600 5,280 22,600 24,200 24,200 24,200
TRAINING 4360 2,706 4,500 4,500 1,888 4,188 4,500 4,500 4,500
PROPERTY TAXES 4370 0 500 500 0 500 500 500 500
RENTAL/LEASES 4380 1,513 1,500 1,500 789 1,139 1,000 1,000 1,000
BAD DEBT EXPENSE 4381 3,255 8,288 8,288 1,785 10,073 8,288 8,288 8,288

TOTAL MAINTENANCE/OPERATIONS 787,927 731,385 776,185 478,520 724,381 783,788 795,885 795,885

SOLAR LOAN - SEWER SET ASIDE 4394 0 323,594 323,594 0 323,594 0 0 0 
TOTAL OTHER PAYABLES 0 323,594 323,594 0 323,594 0 0 0

MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT 4825 1,123,987 7,300 7,300 7,257 7,257 0 0 0
VEHICLES 4840 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY  1,123,987 7,300 7,300 7,257 7,257 0 0 0 

ASSET REPLACEMENT       

MACH/EQUIP ASSET REPLACEMENT 4825AR 24,212 127,300 127,300 0 122,500 $25,000 25,000 25,000 

VEHICLE ASSET REPLACEMENT 4840AR 208,962 30,000 30,000 0 26,782 $7,000 7,000 7,000

CIP ASSET REPLACEMENT 4850 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL ASSET REPLACEMENT  233,174 157,300 157,300 0 149,282 32,000 32,000 32,000 

GROSS EXPENDITURES  2,807,451 1,969,357 2,020,357 983,837 1,968,653 1,646,378 1,609,590 1,647,871
 



73 

 

FLEET MAINTENANCE 
Fund 40 ‐ Department 4265 

 
The Fleet Maintenance Division provides maintenance and repairs of all City vehicles and related 
equipment.  The Fleet Maintenance activity is funded by inter‐fund charges, which are stated as 
"Rental of City Owned Equipment" in operating budgets.  Since Fleet Maintenance is an internal 
service fund activity, this budget is "non‐appropriated".   
 

GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 
 

 Continue monitoring all fleet repair services, preventative maintenance and fuel 
purchases in Dossier 

 Continue evaluating cost effectiveness of vehicle maintenance 

 Continue researching innovative methods and new green technology  

 Evaluate fleet for replacement of vehicles 
 

ACTIVITY STATISTICS 
 

  2010 2011 2012 2013  2014
   

Vehicles Serviced  917 817 813 737  764
Equipment Service  501 320 227 673  682
B.I.T. Inspections Performed  40 40 40 40  42
Fire Vehicles  8 9 9 10  10
Public Works Vehicles  38 48 46 48  55
Maint. Rec & Fleet Vehicles  16 16 14 15  18
Police Units / Motorcycles / RV  39 41 40 44  50
Miles Traveled  559,877 628,777 622,790 634,825  538,269*
Fuel Usage (Gallons)  83,525 92,523 90,352 91,874  77,936
Average Miles/Gallon  6.7 6.9 6.9 6.9  unknown
*CNG mileage not shown   
F/T Position Allocation  2.85 2.85 2.85 2.85  2.85

 

Position Allocation:  14/15 
Actual

15/16 
Requested

15/16 
Approved 

  Superintendent  .30 .30 .30 
  Senior Equipment Mechanic  2.00 2.00 2.00 
  Office Assistant I/II  .55 .55 .55 

  Total Positions 2.85 2.85 2.85 
 
Commentary: 
The Fleets Operations and Maintenance Budget continues to seek ways to lower its cost through 
timely  preventative  maintenance,  smart  buying,  and  implementing  improved  methods.    A 
decrease in Operating Supplies (4220) has mostly been from CNG usage which has increased with 
the addition of the new refuse trucks, two Honda and two Ford units which has allowed cost 
savings in the petroleum fuel cost.    All other operation cost have remained stationery even with 
the  rise  in  parts  and  supply  costs.      An  increase  in  Professional  Contract  Services  (4310)  is 
necessary for software costs, IT computer needs and State / Valley Air Board Fees. 



74 

 

FLEET MAINTENANCE, Continued    
 
Capital Outlay for Equipment (4825) are again part of our goals to provide quicker turn around 
on  the units and cost savings  from  in‐house work.   A heavy Equipment Parts Washer  for  the 
Refuse  trucks and  larger Sewer/Water department equipment.   Upgrades  to  the ODBII Parts 
Module allows for diagnosing newer equipment and a new Porta Cool fan for the Outside CNG 
workstation. 
 
Budget Committee Recommendation(s): 
Recommended as requested. 
 
Council Approved: 
As recommended. 
 
 
 



75 

 

 

CITY OF LEMOORE UNIT NUMBER: 4265 
BUDGET UNIT FINANCING USES DETAIL 

FISCAL YEAR 2015-16 
UNIT TITLE: 
FUNCTION: 

Fleet 
Fund 40

 

 
ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION 

ACCOUNT 
NUMBER 

ACTUAL
2013-14 

ADOPTED
2014-15 

ADJUSTED
2014-15 

ACTUAL 
2/28/2015 

ESTIMATED
2014-15 

REQUESTED
2015-16 

RECOMMENDED 

2015-16 
APPROVED 

2015-16 
 

EXPENDITURE CLASSIFICATION 
 

 
REGULAR SALARIES 4010 148,442 151,752 153,865 104,517 156,168 156,316 156,316 156,316 
OVERTIME 4020 1,673 2,000 2,000 662 1,262 2,000 2,000 2,000 
PART TIME SALARIES 4030 13,972 18,000 18,000 10,243 15,364 22,000 22,000 22,000 
FICA/MEDICARE 4110 11,592 13,154 13,154 8,123 12,623 13,809 13,809 13,809 
STATE UNEMPLOYMENT INS 4120 2,024 1,617 1,617 1,400 1,616 2,105 2,105 2,105 
RETIREMENT 4130 26,905 30,070 30,070 20,433 30,509 23,452 23,452 23,452 
HEALTH  INSURANCE 4140 35,715 29,870 29,870 20,555 32,077 36,194 36,194 36,194 
LIFE INSURANCE 4150 260 319 319 173 260 267 267 267 
UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 4170 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 
STATE DISABILITY INSURANCE 4190 1,497 1,538 1,538 1,026 1,539 1,504 1,504 1,504 

CAFETERIA PLAN 4195 625 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
DEFERRED COMPENSATION 4200 1,505 804 804 545 819 820 820 820 

TOTAL SALARIES & BENEFITS   244,410 249,324 251,437 167,877 252,437 258,667 258,667 258,667 
MAINTENANCE/OPERATIONS 

OPERATING SUPPLIES 4220 372,074 379,300 379,300 186,708 312,097 288,200 288,200 288,200 
REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES 4230 194,659 180,000 180,000 116,131 179,631 180,000 180,000 180,000 
RENTAL/CITY OWNED VEHICLE 4300 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
PROFESSIONAL/CONTRACT SERV 4310 4,264 4,000 4,000 4,194 4,930 8,800 8,800 8,800 
MEETINGS/DUES 4320 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
PRINTING/PUBLICATIONS 4330 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
UTILITIES 4340 1,233 1,275 1,275 707 1,123 1,318 1,318 1,318 
REPAIR/MAINTENANCE SERVICES 4350 60,388 48,000 48,000 29,477 46,996 50,000 50,000 50,000 
TRAINING 4360 617 1,000 1,000 0 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 
RENTAL/LEASES 4380 0 0 0 0 0 230 230 230 

TOTAL MAINTENANCE/OPERATIONS   633,236 613,575 613,575 337,217 545,777 529,548 529,548 529,548 

MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT 4825 4,638 63,500 63,500 48,423 48,423 23,000 23,000 23,000 

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY   4,638 63,500 63,500 48,423 48,423 23,000 23,000 23,000 
ASSET REPLACEMENT 

MACH/EQUIP ASSET REPLACEMENT 4825AR 306 0 0 0 0   0 0 0 
VEHICLE ASSET REPLACEMENT 4840AR 0 0 0 0 0   0 0 0 

TOTAL ASSET REPLACEMENT   306 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

GROSS EXPENDITURES 
 

882,589 926,399 928,512 553,517 846,637 811,215 811,215 811,215 

 
 

SALARIES & EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 



76 

 

DOWNTOWN PBIA 
Fund 85 ‐ Department 4270 

 
The activities of the Downtown Merchants Advisory Committee are funded from a surcharge on 
business licenses collected within the Downtown Business District.  The boundaries of the District 
are from the centerlines of “B” Street north to the railroad tracks and Lemoore Avenue west to 
Hill  Street.    Funds  collected  from  this  source  are  maintained  in  the  Parking  and  Business 
Improvement Area  fund  (PBIA) and can be spent  for parking, development and promotion of 
business, and public improvements within the Area.  Any unspent funds automatically carryover 
to the next fiscal year.     
 
A  Downtown  Merchants  Advisory  Committee  is  appointed  annually  by  the  Mayor,  with 
concurrence  of  the  City  Council,  to  guide  in  the  promotion  of  the  Downtown  Area  and  to 
recommend  uses  of  the  surcharge  funds.    Under  State  law,  the  City  Council  approves  all 
expenditures recommended by the Committee.  The Committee typically budgets for items such 
as events and materials for promoting Downtown, seasonal banners, benches, bicycle racks, and 
miscellaneous supplies. 
 

ACTIVITY STATISTICS 
 
 

  2010 2011 2012  2013  2014
Downtown Merchants Advisory Committee     
     
Meeting Agendas Prepared  7 9 9  9  3
Business Licenses Issued in Downtown Area  158 158 149  150  135
 
Commentary: 
PBIA began Fiscal Year 2014‐2015 with a Fund Balance of $8,912.  Revenue collected from the 
business license surcharge, which is one‐half of the license collected in Downtown, is estimated 
at $9,500 and expenditures for the Fiscal Year are estimated at $6,026, leaving an estimated Fund 
Balance of approximately $12,386.  Revenues for Fiscal Year 2015‐2016 are expected to remain 
relatively the same in Downtown as last Fiscal Year.  Expenditures requested for Fiscal Year 2015‐
2016  total $19,624 and  include  items  such as  special Downtown events, publicity, marketing 
materials, seasonal banners, benches, bicycle racks and miscellaneous supplies.  The estimated 
Ending Fund Balance for Fiscal Year 2015‐2016 is estimated at $2,262. 
 
Budget Committee Recommendation(s): 
Recommended as requested. 
 
Council Approved: 
As recommended. 
 
   
   



77 

 

 

CITY OF LEMOORE UNIT NUMBER: 4270 
BUDGET UNIT FINANCING USES DETAIL 

FISCAL YEAR 2015-16 
UNIT TITLE: 
FUNCTION: 

PBIA 
FUND 085

 
 

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION 
ACCOUNT
NUMBER 

ACTUAL
2013-14 

ADOPTED
2014-15 

ADJUSTED
2014-15 

ACTUAL 
2/28/2015 

ESTIMATED
2014-15 

REQUESTED
2015-16 

RECOMMENDED 

2015-16 
APPROVED 

2015-16 
 
 

EXPENDITURE CLASSIFICATION 

 

MAINTENANCE/OPERATIONS          

 
OPERATING SUPPLIES 

 
4220 

 
1,198 

 
5,000 

 
5,000 

 
43 

 
68 

 
7,624 

 
7,624 

 
7,624 

REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES 4230 0 500 500 0 0 500 500 500 
RENTAL/CITY OWNED VEHICLE 4300 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
PROFESSIONAL/CONTRACT SERV 4310 7,525 5,500 5,500 4,260 5,958 6,000 6,000 6,000 
MEETINGS/DUES 4320 0 1,500 1,500 0 0 1,500 1,500 1,500 
PRINTING/PUBLICATIONS 4330 0 4,000 4,000 0 0 4,000 4,000 4,000 
UTILITIES 4340 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
REPAIR/MAINTENANCE SERVICES 4350 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
TRAINING 4360 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
RENTAL/LEASES 4380 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL MAINTENANCE/OPERATIONS   8,723 16,500 16,500 4,303 6,026 19,624 19,624 19,624 

MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT 4825 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL OTHER PAYABLES   0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

ASSET REPLACEMENT  
 

MACH/EQUIP ASSET REPLACEMENT 
 

4825AR
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0 
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0 
VEHICLE ASSET REPLACEMENT 4840AR 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL ASSET REPLACEMENT   0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

GROSS EXPENDITURES   8,723 16,500 16,500 4,303 6,026 19,624 19,624 19,624 
 

 
 



78 

 

LIGHTING & LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE DISTRICT 
Fund 078 ‐ Department 4800 

 
The  Lighting and  Landscape Maintenance District  function provides  for  the maintenance and 
repair of landscaping easements and street medians within the District’s boundaries.  Included 
in the District are Windsor Court, Cambridge Park, Silva Estates, Capistrano, Wildflower, Country 
Club Villas, Self‐Help, Avalon, Silverado, LaDante Rose, Summerwind, College Park and Covington 
Place subdivisions.  Running Springs (Zone 4) has been eliminated.   
 
This activity is funded through assessments paid by property owners within the District.  Budgets 
and reports are prepared based on increased subdivision areas and revenues received annually.  
If any changes are to be made to the assessments charged to property owners in any of the zones, 
the property owners must vote for the assessment.  
 
In February, 2010, the administration of the LLMD zones was transferred to the Public Works 
Superintendent in charge of Refuse.  Only 3% of a Superintendent’s and 2% of an Office Assistant 
II’s time are assigned to this activity.  
 

GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 
 

 Work within guidelines of Proposition 218 

 Continue to improve on ways of conserving watering 

 Continue to monitor all levels of maintenance done by contractors 
 
Position Allocation:  14/15 

Actual

15/16 
Requested

15/16 
Approved 

  Superintendent  .03 .03 .03 
  Office Assistant I/II  .02 .02 .02 

  Total Positions .05 .05 .05 
 
Commentary: 
The City of Lemoore staff is preparing to go out and bid for new LLMD contractors for the 2016 
season.  The current contract expires February 2016. 
 
Budget Committee Recommendation(s): 
Recommended as requested. 
 
Council Approved: 
As recommended. 
 
 
   



79 

 

Lighting and Landscape Maintenance District (LLMD) 
FY 2015‐16 
Fund 078 – Department 4800 
 

 
 
 

Acct. 

District 

 
Direct Cost Only 

4801  4803  4805  4806  4807  4808  4809  4810  4811  4812  4813   

Description  Westfield  Silva Estates Wildflower Capistrano Silverado Country Club Villa     La Dante Rose Avalon Self Help Summerwind Covington Totals 

4010  Salary & Benefits  965 499 50 215 90 338  229 258 61 944 56  3,705 

4230  Repair/Maint.  Supplies  1,000 200 20 45 20 200  50  50 0 1000 50  2,635 

4310  Professional Contract Services  43,200 9,996 3,625 2,856 8,568 8,568 2,100 18,498 1,428 41,988 4,200 145,027 

4330  Printing & Publications  240 64 12 11 14 191  44  121 0 200 0  897 

4340  Utilities  18,938 2,300 320 329 1,174 1,500 600 2,900 350 2,200 630 31,241 

Expenditure Totals  64,343 13,059 4,027 3,456 9,866 10,797 3,023 21,827 1,839 46,332 4,936 183,505 

   

 
Revenue 

 

  Avg. Annual Revenue  93,210 19,341 1,807 1,988 4,146 21,368 5,660 18,990 1,920 80,185 4,950 253,565 

Total Revenue  93,210 19,341 1,807 1,988 4,146 21,368 5,660 18,990 1,920 80,185 4,950 253,565 

   
Square Footage  546,665 61,640 13,850 8,960 32,200 64,830 28,550 95,201 75,700 162,248 25,400

 
1,115,244 

    49.02% 5.53% 1.24% 0.80% 2.89% 5.81% 2.56% 8.54% 6.79% 14.55% 2.28% 100.01% 

  No. of Units  565 292 29  126 53 198 134 151 36 553  33 2170 

    26.04% 13.46% 1.34% 5.81% 2.44% 9.12% 6.18% 6.96% 1.66% 25.48% 1.52% 100.00% 

 
 



80 

 

PUBLIC FACILITIES MAINTENANCE DISTRICT 
Fund 078 ‐ Department 4800 

 
The  City  has maintenance  zones  in  the  new  Public  Facilities Maintenance  District  (PFMD).  
Although  PFMD  is  similar  to  the  Lighting  and  Landscape Maintenance District  (LLMD),  their 
function encompasses much more maintenance and care for streets and parks.  The care provides 
for  the  street  lights,  medians,  sidewalks  and  trees  that  are  not  the  homeowner’s  direct 
responsibility, block walls, tot lots, picnic equipment, all irrigation systems, utility costs, day to 
day maintenance and repair, and an ongoing reserve account  for  future tree trimming, street 
paving, care & replacement of playground equipment and all appurtenant facility’s needs.   All 
services and materials for the ordinary and usual maintenance operation and servicing within the 
District’s boundaries are covered.  The City accepts operational maintenance of the PFMD after 
one year of maintenance by the developer. 
 
This activity is funded through assessments paid by property owners within the District.  Budgets 
and reports are prepared based on increased subdivision areas and revenues received annually.  
If any changes are to be made to the assessments charged to property owners in any of the zones, 
the property owners must vote for the assessment.  Only 5% of a Superintendent’s and 5% of the 
Office Assistant’s time is assigned to the activity. 
 
 

GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 
 

 Work within the guidelines of Proposition 218 

 Continue to improve on ways of conserving watering 

 Continue to monitor all levels of maintenance done by contractors 

 Design new PFMD neighborhoods to the new California standards adopted 
January 1st of 2010 with low maintenance plants, trees, watering systems and 
eliminate grass areas in street islands 

 
Position Allocation:  14/15 

Actual

15/16 
Requested

15/16 
Approved 

  Superintendent  .05 .50 .50 
  Office Assistant I/II  .05 .50 .50 

  Total Positions .10 .10 .10 
 
Commentary: 
The City of Lemoore staff is preparing to go out and bid for new PFMD contractors for the 2016 
season.  The current contract expires February 2016. 
 
Budget Committee Recommendation(s): 
Recommended as requested. 
 
Council Approved: 
As recommended. 
 



81 

 

Public Facilities Maintenance District (PFMD) No. 1 
FY 2015‐16 
Fund 078 – Department 4815 

    2014‐2015 2014‐2015 2014‐2015 2014‐2015 2014‐2015 2014‐2015  2015‐16 2015‐16 2015‐16 2015‐16 2015‐16 2015‐16 

    Zone #1  Zone #2  Zone #3  Zone #4  Zone #5  Zone #6  Zone #1  Zone #2  Zone #3  Zone #4  Zone #5  Zone #6 

    The Landing  Devante  Silva 10  Parkview  East Village  Sagecrest  The Landing  Devante  Silva 10  Parkview  East Village  Sagecrest 

 
Revenues  $59,994 $165,712 $53,212  $19,407  $66,895  $44,005  $59,994 $165,712 $53,212  $19,407  $66,895  $44,005 

Object    Expenses Expenses Expenses Expenses Expenses Expenses  Expenses Expenses Expenses Expenses Expenses Expenses 

No.  Description  4815A  4815B  4815C  4815D  4815E  4815F  4815A  4815B  4815C  4815D  4815E  4815F 

4010  Regular Salaries  745  2,282  655  184  913  193  745  2,282  655  184  913  193 

4030  Part‐time Salaries  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 

4110  Fica Taxes  57  174  50  14  70  15  57  174  50  14  70  15 

4120  Unemployment  Taxes  6  19  6  2  8  2  6  20  6  2  8  2 

4140  Health Insurance  99  304  87  25  122  26  101  309  89  25  124  26 

4150  Life Insurance  8  24  7  2  10  2  1  4  1  0  2  0 

4190  State Disability Insurance  7  23  7  2  9  2  7  22  6  2  9  2 

4200  Deferred  Compensation  20  61  18  5  25  5  21  63  18  5  25  5 

4130  Retirement  142  435  125  35  174  37  91  280  80  23  112  24 

4195  Cafeteria Plan  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 

4220  Operating Supplies  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 

4230  Repair/Maintenance   Supplies  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 

4300  Rental City‐Owned Vehicles  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 

4310  Professional Contract Services  4,300  21,420  12,800  4,580  14,855  ‐  4,865  21,420  12,800  4,580  15,950  4,000 

4330  Printing and publications  1,120  1,726  1,330  633  1,000  600  1,120  1,726  1,330  633  1,000  600 

4340  Utilities  4,516  15,355  7,628  1,573  5,000  1,500  4,516  15,355  7,628  1,573  5,000  1,500 

4350  Repair/Main  Services  4,000  7,500  500  300  3,000  300  4,000  7,500  500  300  3,000  300 

4360  Training  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 

4384  Depreciation  Expense  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 

4825  Machinery and Equipment  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 

9000  Operating Transfers Out  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐    ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐    ‐ 

  O & M Budget  15,020 49,323 23,213 7,355 25,186 2,682 15,531 49,155 23,163 7,341 26,212 6,666 

9019  Deferred  Maintenance/Reserve  44,974 116,389 29,999 12,052 41,709 41,323 44,463 116,557 30,049 12,066 40,683 37,339 

14‐15 Deferred Maint/Reserve  189,354 745,011 200,652 56,584 116,082 62,653  234,328 861,400 230,651 68,636 157,791 103,976 

  TOTAL EST. DEFERRED SET ASIDE  234,328 861,400 230,651 68,636 157,791 103,976 278,791 977,957 260,700 80,703 198,473 141,315 



82 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank. 
 



“In God We Trust” 

 
Mayor 

Lois Wynne  Office of the 
City Manager 

 
119 Fox Street 

Lemoore, CA  93245 
Phone (559) 924-6700 

Fax (559) 924-9003 
 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Jeff Chedester 

Council Members 
Ray Madrigal 
Eddie Neal 

William Siegel 

                            City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM NO. 4-2 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Ron Hoggard, Interim City Manager  

Date: June 10, 2015 Meeting Date: June 16, 2015 

Subject: Recommendation and Approval for Acting City Manager 

 
Discussion: 
The appointment of the new Lemoore City Manager is under review by the City Council 
and may happen soon. After my term as Interim City Manager ends, June 30, 2015, there 
will be a short two or three week period of time where one of our current staff will need to 
be appointed as Acting City Manager. The current Police Chief, Darrell Smith, is available 
to fill in for this two or three weeks if that is the desire of the City Council.  
 
 
Budget Impact: 
The appointment of an Acting City Manager for two or three weeks will not impact the 
City budget. 
 
Recommendation: 
That the City Council, by motion, appoint Darrell Smith, Acting City Manager for a period 
of two to three weeks beginning July 1, 2015. 



“In God We Trust” 

 
Mayor 

Lois Wynne  Office of the
City Manager 

 
119 Fox Street 

Lemoore, CA  93245 
Phone (559) 924-6700 

Fax (559) 924-9003 
 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Jeff Chedester 

Council Members 
Ray Madrigal 

Eddie Neal 
William Siegel 

                            City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA

 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM NO. 4-3 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Brooke Austin   

Date: June 10, 2015 Meeting Date: June 16, 2015 

Subject: 
Paid Sick Leave Policy Pursuant to the Healthy Workplace  
Healthy Family Act of 2014 for Unrepresented Part-Time Employees  

 
Discussion: 
 
Effective July 1, 2015, employers must provide paid sick leave for all employees, 
subject to the requirements of Assembly Bill No. 1522, the Healthy Workplace Healthy 
Family Act of 2014 (“Act”).  Sick leave benefits for regular City employees already meet 
the minimum requirements of the Act, but the City’s part-time employees do not 
currently receive paid sick leave.  Under the provisions of the Act, the City is required to 
establish the accrual method, and the minimum usage increment for paid sick leave.   
 
The Act provides the following: 
 

1.  Accrual begins on July 1, 2015 for qualifying employees hired before or after 
July 1, 2015. 

2. Employees qualify by working for the City on or after July 1, 2015, at least 30 
days within a year; a 90 day employment period must be satisfied before the 
employee can utilize sick leave. 

3. Employers have two choices for paid sick leave accrual: 
a. 1 hour for every 30 hours worked; or 
b. 24 hours banked upon qualifications identified in #2. 

4. Employers may set a maximum accrual limit or cap of 48 hours. 
5. Employers may set a maximum usage per year limit or cap of 24 hours. 
6. Employers may set a standard usage increment of sick leave at one hour per 

occurrence. 
7. The Policy must be enacted by Council effective July 1, 2015. 

 
Staff is proposing a policy for implementing this benefit in which part-time employees 
will be credited with 24 hours of sick leave after working 90 days with the City.  Any 
unused sick leave will carry over each year, up to a leave bank limit of 48 hours.  The 
maximum usage per year is limited to 24 hours.  The minimum usage is set at one hour 
for more flexibility in getting the employee back to work sooner if the usage is for an 
appointment.  An employee who leaves City employment for a period of greater than 12 
months, shall be considered a new employee upon rehire, for the purposes of sick leave 



“In God We Trust” 

accrual and usage.  If the time gap is less than 12 months, the unused sick leave bank 
will be restored for the employee’s use.  
 
Staff is recommending the accrual method of 24 hours banked upon qualification.  
There are limited personnel resources available for tracking and monitoring all of our 
part-time employees to ensure each one receives one hour for every 30 hours worked.  
While not all of these individuals may qualify for sick leave, staff in multiple departments 
would have to track part-time employees each pay period to comply with the Act. 
 
If Council is in agreement to staff’s recommendations, a Resolution and Administrative 
Policy will be brought back to the July 7th meeting for adoption.  The policy will outline 
the method by which the City will implement the Act.   
 
Budget Impact: 
 
The budget impact is expected to be minimal as the work will be divided between other 
full and part-time employees when an employee is absent; however, any additional 
costs would be limited to covering services performed by part-time staff during sick 
leave absences. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That the City Council discuss and advise staff to bring back for adoption at the next 
meeting the Resolution and Administrative Policy establishing Paid Sick Leave for 
unrepresented part-time employees pursuant to the Healthy Workplace Healthy Family 
Act of 2014. 
 
 



“In God We Trust” 

 
Mayor 

Lois Wynne  Public Works/ 
Planning 

Department 
 

711 W. Cinnamon Drive 
Lemoore, CA  93245 

Phone (559) 924-6744 
Fax (559) 924-6708 

 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Jeff Chedester 

Council Members 
Ray Madrigal 
Eddie Neal 

William Siegel 

                            City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM NO. 4-4 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Judy Holwell, Project Manager   

Date: June 10, 2015 Meeting Date: June 16, 2015 

Subject: City Planner – Quad Knopf Contract Planning Services for 2015-2016 

 
Discussion 
 
As a way to reduce the City’s budget, in May 2013, Council eliminated the Planning 
Department and outsourced the technical planning services to Quad Knopf.  The contract, 
which was approved June 4, 2013, was for an amount not to exceed $100,000.  Only 
$44,451 was expended the first year.  Subsequently, Council approved a contract with 
Quad Knopf to perform technical planning services for the 2014-2015 fiscal year for an 
amount not to exceed $55,500.  As of May 31, 2015, the total amount expended for such 
services was $38,065.  The contract expires June 30, 2015 and it is expected that the 
expenditures will come in under budget.  At this time, a new contract has been prepared 
for your review.  
 
Steve Brandt, Principal Entitlement Specialist with Quad Knopf and current City Planner, 
submitted the attached Contract Planning Services proposal for fiscal year 2015-2016.  
The Scope of Services listed are consistent with the planning services Quad Knopf has 
provided over the past two years, which include assisting City staff with planning 
functions, interpreting Lemoore’s Zoning Code, laws and policies, preparing staff reports 
for technical planning projects, and serving as the City Planner for Planning Commission 
meetings, and attending City Council meetings, as needed.  It is estimated that 10-15 
hours per week will be required by Quad Knopf in order to adequately perform the duties 
and responsibilities listed.  The cost of providing the services is set at a maximum amount 
of $55,000 for the fiscal year. 
 
Council is asked to consider approving the attached Contract Planning Services with 
Quad Knopf for an amount up to $55,000.  The Contract would be on a month-to-month 
basis and can be terminated with or without cause by providing a 30-day written notice.  
The terms of the Contract and rates are effective through June 30, 2016.  A monthly 
report of charges will be submitted to the City, so that the total cost of services can be 
tracked. This Contract is in addition to the City’s contract with Quad Knopf for Engineering 
Services. 
 



“In God We Trust” 

If approved, Mr. Brandt will remain our main point of contact at Quad Knopf for the 
technical planning functions.  He will work directly with City staff on planning functions, 
primarily Frank Rivera and Judy Holwell.   
 
Budget Impact 
 
The amount for Contract Planning Services is not to exceed $55,000. 
 
Recommendation 
 
It is recommended that Council approve the Contract Planning Services with Quad 
Knopf for an amount not to exceed $55,000.  
 



City of Lemoore 
    Contract Planning Services 

Quad Knopf  Revised June 8, 2015 Page 1                             

 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
It is Quad Knopf's understanding that the City desires to retain Quad Knopf to act as Contract 
City Planners for the City of Lemoore.  This would be on a month-to-month basis from July 1, 
2015, to June 30, 2016.  The contract could be terminated only after a 30-day written notice. 

 
The main task involves filling the role of City Planner and Planning Staff for the processing of 
discretionary planning permits and running the Planning Commission. 

 
Tasks include: 
 

 Assisting Lemoore staff who will be handling the planning counter with guidance, 
advice, training, and direction on planning and zoning issues and questions. 

 Interpreting Lemoore’s planning and zoning laws, policies, and ordinances. 

 Preparing staff reports for discretionary planning projects that need Planning 
Commission and/or City Council approval. 

 Serving as City Planner for Planning Commission meetings. 

 These duties and responsibilities include an estimate of approximately 10-15 hours 
per week and would be dependent on the amount of development activity.  
  

 

COMMUNICATION PLAN 
 
Steve Brandt will be the main contact for the scope of work identified above.  Mr. Brandt will 
report to the City Manager for issues related to definition of scope of work, fees and billing.  Mr. 
Brandt will report to Frank Rivera (Public Works/Planning Director) for day-to-day issues as they 
occur.  Invoices will be sent to Mr. Rivera’s attention. There will also be a strong working 
relationship with Judy Holwell (Project Manager) on planning and development projects and 
permits coming into the city for review. 
 
We believe that by utilizing a team approach Quad Knopf can provide the best service at the 
most efficient price.  The team approach will allow us to assign work based on individual 
strengths and experience. All Quad Knopf team coordination will be handled by Steve Brandt, 
resulting in no extra effort on the part of the City.  Ginger White or Jerome Keene will serve as 
Mr. Brandt’s back-up when needed. 



City of Lemoore 
  Contract Planning Services

Quad Knopf  Revised June 8, 2015 Page 2  
                                                                                                                                                

 
 
FEE SCHEDULE 
Quad Knopf will complete work associated with this proposal on a time and materials basis, with 
a maximum set by the City not to be exceeded on an annual basis, unless otherwise approved 
in writing by the City Manager.  The maximum amount set for July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016 for 
Services described above will be $55,000.   
 
The work will be performed by associate and senior level planners. Planning Commission 
meetings (and Council meetings, when needed) will be attended by a senior or principal level 
planner.  Steve Brandt will be the primary individual assigned to interact with City staff and 
decision makers and to direct work to Quad Knopf staff and will be billed at an 18.5% discount 
from his typical hourly rate.  Other planners identified below may also provide planning 
assistance as needed, and will be billed at Quad Knopf’s hourly rates with Lemoore’s 10% City 
discount applied to the total amount.  The effective hourly rates are estimated as follows: 
 
Title Planner Discount Rate with 

  Discount Factored In 
Principal Entitlements Specialist- AICP Steve Brandt 18.5% $128/hour 
Senior Planner Ginger White 10% $128/hour 
Senior Planner Jaymie Brauer 10% $128/hour 
Senior Planner Jerome Keene 10% $128/hour 
Senior Environmental Scientist Kenneth A. Glass 10% $128/hour 
Associate Planner Annalisa Perea 10% $87/hour 
 
Additional Quad Knopf staff may be required to prepare materials either for the individuals 
identified above or directly for City staff from time to time.  Time spent by these individuals will 
also be billed to the City in accordance with Lemoore’s 10% City discount. 
 
We estimate that these rates with a $55,000 maximum amount would provide for a rough 
average of 10 to 15 hours of staff time on Lemoore planning work per week. 
 
Direct charges as needed, such as parcel post, printing and reproduction, will be billed at cost 
plus fifteen percent (15%).  Transportation expenses will be billed at $0.63/mile.   Mileage 
would not be charged to attend Planning Commission, Council meetings, or meetings with staff. 
 
Rates are effective through June 30, 2016. If the planning contract assignment extends beyond 
that date, a new rate schedule may be negotiated.  We will provide monthly reporting of 
charges so the City can monitor the amounts expended, so as to avoid going over the budgeted 
maximum amounts.   



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
Lois Wynne 

Mayor Pro Tem 

  Public Works 
Planning Services 

 
711 W. Cinnamon Drive  

Lemoore, CA  93245 
Phone (559) 924-6740 
Fax  (559) 924-6708 

Jeff Chedester 
Council Members 

Ray Madrigal 
Eddie Neal 

William Siegel 
 

                         City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 
 

Planning Services Contract 
 
 
Contract Amount: Up to $55,000 
  
This Planning Services Contract (Contract) is made and entered into by and between 
Quad Knopf and the City of Lemoore as detailed in the attached: 
 
 

Contract Planning Services 
Dated June 8, 2015 

 
Scope of Services Included 
Communication Plan Included 
Fee Schedule Included 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have accepted, made, and executed this 
Planning Services Contract upon the terms, conditions, and provisions as stated in the 
Contract Planning Services dated June 8, 2015 for Fiscal Year 2015-2016.   
 
 
Approved by the City Council of the City of Lemoore this ___ day of ________, 2015. 
 
 
Quad Knopf City of Lemoore  
P.O. Box 3699 119 Fox Street 
Visalia, CA  93278 Lemoore, CA  93245 
 
 
By:_________________________ By:______________________________ 
Steve Brandt, AICP, LEED AP Ron Hoggard, Interim City Manager 
Principal Entitlement Specialist  
 
 
 
 



“In God We Trust” 

 
Mayor 

Lois Wynne  Public Works/ 
Planning Department 

 
711 W. Cinnamon Drive 

Lemoore, CA  93245 
Phone (559) 924-6744 

Fax (559) 924-6708 
 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Jeff Chedester 

Council Members 
Ray Madrigal 
Eddie Neal 

William Siegel 

                            City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM NO. 4-5 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: 
Frank Rivera, Interim Public Works/Planning 
Director 

 

Date: June 11, 2015 Meeting Date: June 16, 2015 

Subject: 
Approval – Agreement for City Engineering Services – Quad Knopf, 
Inc. 

 
Discussion: 
Quad Knopf has provided engineering services to the City of Lemoore for the last 
seventeen years.  During this period the City and Quad Knopf have been working under 
the original contract agreement signed in 1998.  Annually, Quad Knopf has provided the 
City with their fee schedule which includes a 10% discount.  Although the fees have not 
changed for the upcoming year it was the consensus of both parties to update the City’s 
engineering agreement. 
 
The attached agreement provides for successive one year terms until written notice to the 
contrary is given by the City or by Quad Knopf, Inc. 
 
Budget Impact: 
Fees are paid by the various departments as they pertain to them. 
 
Recommendation: 
That the City Council, by motion, approve the attached Agreement for City Engineering 
Services between the City of Lemoore and Quad Knopf, Inc. and authorize the City 
Manager to sign. 
 
 

































“In God We Trust” 

 
Mayor 

Lois Wynne   
657 Fox Street 

Lemoore, CA  93245 
Phone (559) 924-9574 

Fax (559) 924-3116 
 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Willard Rodarmel 

Council Members 
Ray Madrigal 
Eddie Neal 

William Siegel 

                            City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM NO. 4-6 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Jenell Van Bindsbergen, City Attorney  

Date: June 12, 2015 Meeting Date: June 16, 2015 

Subject: 
Amendments to 7-7C-2 of the Lemoore Municipal Code Relating to 
allowing water connection from outside the City limits 

 
Discussion: 
 
At the May 27, 2015 regular meeting of the City Council, staff was instructed to research viable 
options for extending water service and/or supply to parcels outside the City limits, including but 
not limited to, 32 residents of Country Club Estates which is located outside the City limits.  
Some of the property owners are experiencing water shortages and other problems with their 
wells, in part, due to the ongoing drought. 
 
The proposed ordinance would authorize water service and/or supply to parcels of land outside 
the City limits with certain requirements to both public and private facilities. Specifically, the 
ordinance would authorize the City Manager to negotiate the terms and conditions of an 
agreement to allow such water service and/or supply to parcels outside the City limits, which 
agreement would then be submitted to the City Council for consideration. The agreement would 
only become effective upon final approval and ratification by the City Council. 
 
Any parcel outside the City limits receiving water service and/or supply would be required to 
conform with all current City ordinances and standards, including the payment of any and all 
applicable fees and other charges, all current laws, and must receive the appropriate approvals of 
other agencies as required by law. Further, the property owner must agree not to object to or 
otherwise oppose the City’s annexation of the property owner’s property at a future date, should 
such an annexation occur. 
 
Budget Impact: 
 
The fiscal impact is unknown, but would ultimately affect the income received from the 
applicable fees, new water users and potentially impact the water rates for the City. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That the City Council approve the introduction (first reading) of Ordinance No. ________ 
amending Municipal Code Section 7-7C-2 to allow outside city limit water connection. 
 
 



“In God We Trust” 

 



“In God We Trust” 

 
Mayor 

Lois Wynne  Office of the 
City Manager 

 
119 Fox Street 

Lemoore, CA  93245 
Phone (559) 924-6700 

Fax (559) 924-9003 
 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Jeff Chedester 

Council Members 
Ray Madrigal 
Eddie Neal 

William Siegel 

                            City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM 4-7 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Ron Hoggard, Interim City Manager  

Date: June 4, 2015 Meeting Date: June 16, 2015 

Subject: 
Reconsideration of Opterra Energy Services Change Order – Solar 
Project 

 
Discussion:  
The Opterra Energy Services Change Order – Solar Project was on the April 7, 2015 
agenda as a Study Session item and then brought back to the Regular Session as a 
Consent Calendar item.  The item was approved on the Consent Calendar as 
presented. 
 
On April 21, 2015, Council Member Siegel requested the item be brought back before 
Council in order to amend the motion.  Council approved the motion to amend the 
previously made motion on the Opterra Energy Services Change Order. 
 
On May 19, 2015, Council Member Siegel requested additional information and asked 
that the item be brought back. The packet information from the 19th can be viewed from 
the packet of that date.  
 
The item is now back before you for discussion at the study session and for 
consideration at the regular meeting.  Daniel Waldo and Jonathan Brown from Opterra 
will be in attendance to answers any questions that you may have. 
 
The City Attorney will lead the discussion from staff at the meeting and may provide 
additional information as needed. 
 
Budget Impact 
The cost of the change order is $135,000.  The cost will be split with $68,512.50 being 
paid by building impact fees (additional cost for the CMC parking lot) and $66,487.50 
being split among the Well #4 benefitting accounts ($40,557.10 Water, $19,946.10 
Sewer and $5,983.83 General Fund). 
 
Recommendation: 
Study Session - At the study session this item is provided for discussion only, with no 
action to be taken. 
 



“In God We Trust” 

Regular Session - That the City Council review, discuss, provide direction to Staff and/ 
or by motion approve or amend the change order. 



{S0095243} 

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-09 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE LEMOORE CITY COUNCIL APPROVING 
CHANGES IN WAGES AND BENEFITS FOR THE NON-REPRESENTED 

EMPLOYEES OF THE CITY 
 

 
WHEREAS, the Public Employee Retirement Benefit (“PERS”) requires contributions 
by both the employee and the employer.  These contributions are set by contract and or 
state law.  
 
WHEREAS, the non-represented employees of the City of Lemoore have proposed that 
non-represented employees will pay the entire employee portion of PERS now, if in 
return the non-represented employees receive a similar pay increase.   
 
WHEREAS, the employee portion of PERS is currently set at: 7% of base salary for 
classic non-safety employees, 6.25% of base salary for new PEPRA non-safety 
employees, 9% of base salary for classic safety employees and 11.5% of base salary for 
new PEPRA safety employees.  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Lemoore, through its City Manager, proposes that non-
represented non-safety positions receive a 7% increase in salary effective July 1, 2015 
and that also effective July 1, 2015 non-represented non-safety employees will be 
required to pay the entire employee portion of PERS and that non-represented safety 
positions receive a 9% increase in salary effective July 1, 2015 and that also effective 
July 1, 2015 non-represented safety employees will be required to pay the entire 
employee portion of PERS. 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council now desires to formally approve this proposal for those 
non-represented positions in “Exhibit A” attached to the resolution; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Lemoore 
that non-represented non-safety positions receive a 7% increase in salary effective July 1, 
2015 and that also effective July 1, 2015 non-represented non-safety employees will be 
required to pay the entire employee portion of PERS and that non-represented safety 
positions receive a 9% increase in salary effective July 1, 2015 and that also effective 
July 1, 2015 non-represented safety employees will be required to pay the entire 
employee portion of PERS for the non-represented positions identified in  “Exhibit A”. 
 
Passed and adopted at a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Lemoore held 
on June 2, 2015 by the following vote: 
 
AYES: 
 
NOES: 



{S0095243} 

 
ABSTAIN: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
_________________________ 
Lois Wynne, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________ 
Janie Venegas, City Clerk 



{S0095243} 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 
 
 

NON-SAFETY 
 

Accountant 
Administrative Analyst – Administrative 
Administrative Analyst – Public Works 

City Clerk/Administrative Secretary 
City Manager 

Finance Director 
Housing Specialist/Executive Secretary 

Office Manager 
Parks and Recreation Director 

Planning/Public Works Director 
Police Records Supervisor 

Project Manager 
Superintendent – Building Inspection 

Superintendent – Maintenance & Fleet 
Superintendent – Refuse 
Superintendent – Sewer 
Superintendent – Water 

 
 
SAFETY 
 

Police Commander 
 
 



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
Lois Wynne  Office of the 

City Manager 
 

119 Fox Street 
Lemoore, CA  93245 

Phone (559) 924-6700 
Fax (559) 924-9003 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Jeff Chedester 

Council Members 
Ray Madrigal 
Eddie Neal 

William Siegel 

              City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

              
To: Lemoore City Council 

From: Ron Hoggard, Interim City Manager  

Date: June 12, 2015 Meeting Date:  June 16, 2015 

Subject:       Activity Update 
 
 
Reports 

 

 Building Report May 2015 

 Lemoore Volunteer Fire Department Report May 2015 

 Planning Applications January – May 2015 

 Refuse Report May 2015 

 Water Production Report May 2015 

 Trip Report – Johns 



MAY 2015 CITY OF LEMOORE

BUILDING INSPECTION PERMITS REPORT

Fiscal Year 2014-15

PERMITS ISSUED           VALUATION

 

Description Current Month Current Year to Date Current Month Year to Date

Res. Single Family - New 3 55 408,970.26$        8,915,903.54$        

Res. Condo./PUD - New 0 0 -$                     -$                        

 

Res. Multi-Family - New 0 0 -$                     -$                        

 

Apartment - New 1 1 1,138,979.20$     1,138,979.20$        

Commercial / Industrial - New 1 2 225,700.00$        400,700.00$           

 

Alterations - Residential 45 490 450,343.00$        5,581,959.32$        

Alterations - Commercial / Industrial 3 31 10,945.00$          1,992,565.00$        

 

Swimming Pool 10 30 305,900.00$        921,100.00$           

    

Bldg. Moved or Demolished  2 -$                     -$                        

   

TOTALS 63 611 2,540,837.46$     18,951,207.06$      

DWELLING UNITS

Location of

 Multi-Family

Description Current Month Current Year to Date Units Last Year to Date

 

Single Family 3 52 12

 

Condo/PUD 0 0 0

Multi-Family 0  16 0  

Apartments 0 0 88 UNITS

  

TOTALS 3 68 12

 

 

 

 

295 E HNFD-ARM RD, 16 UNITS

 

 



CITY OF LEMOORE

NEW PERMITS ISSUED REPORT

MAY 2015

Permit # A.P.N. Owner Information Address Work Description Valuation Bldg Plumb Elect Mech Seismic

1411-018 021-360-011ROCHA, RICK & RITA  

1999 FAMILY TRUST

755 N LEMOORE AVE REMAINING FEES ON 

NEW COMMERCIAL 

BUILDING (EXCLUDING 

FOUNDATION)

225,700.00 1,337.00 63.00 48.15 35.00 63.20

1411-020 021-310-005TANGLEWOOD 

LEMOORE

265 E HANFORD-

ARMONA RD

REBUILD 16 UNIT FIRE 

DAMAGED 

APARTMENT AND 

OFFICE STRUCTURE

1,138,979.20 5,337.25 964.00 467.20 74.00 148.07

1503-016 023-310-006SANTILLAN, FELIX C & 

ANGELINA N  H/W

188 HAZELWOOD PL SOLAR, ROOF MOUNT, 

21 SOLAR PANELS

11,800.00 125.00 0.00 15.00 0.00 1.53

1504-012 023-360-085PHELPS, BRIAN 1570 BIG SUR DR SWIMMING POOL 41,100.00 235.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5.34

1504-041 021-830-004WATHEN CASTANOS 

LEMOORE 872  LP

895 LEGEND DR SWIMMING POOLS 28,000.00 235.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.64

1504-046 021-800-069PALISOC, JOHN L II & 

DESIREE C  H/W

1021 COLUMBUS 

WAY

SWIMMING POOL 37,500.00 235.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.88

1504-054 021-790-061SOLORIO, JAIME & 

MARY F  H/W

1108 JUBILEE CIR NEW PATIO 3,000.00 125.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.50

1504-055 023-090-018GILFRY, MASON C & 

CAROL H  H/W

677 S LEMOORE AVE INSTALLATION OF 

LEACH LINE SYSTEM 

TO EXISTING SEPTIC 

TANK

0.00 0.00 60.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1505-001 021-810-013FALLON, WILLIAM & 

CHRISTINE  H/W

717 PATRIOT PL SWIMMING POOL 36,400.00 235.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.73

1505-002 023-250-061SILVA, KATHLEEN 1050 REDWOOD LN TEAR OFF, RESHEET, 

INSTALL COMP

7,000.00 105.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.91

1505-003 023-140-008POWERS, JOHN & JANA 317 VINE AVE SWIMMING POOL 25,000.00 235.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.25

1505-004 023-450-011MUSKRAT, MARYLOU M 466 N 19 1/2 AVE TEAR OFF, RESHEET, 30 

YR

8,100.00 105.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.05

1505-005 023-360-028OLIVEIRA, CHAD P 50% 1608 MORRO LN SWIMMING POOL 15,000.00 235.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.95

1505-006 023-490-020LEE FAMILY TRUST 19650 PARK LN TEAR OFF, RESHEET 

PROBLEM AREAS, 30 

YR

2,253.00 105.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.50

1505-008 024-420-003SHEPHERD LAND LP 1233 GOLF AVE TEMP POWER POLE, 

LOT 1031

0.00 0.00 0.00 30.00 0.00 0.00

1505-009 023-360-083PATTERSON, DALE L & 

LAURA A  H/W

1606 BIG SUR DR SWIMMING POOL 17,000.00 235.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.21



CITY OF LEMOORE

NEW PERMITS ISSUED REPORT

MAY 2015

1505-010 024-370-025CARINO, BENJAMIN & 

ZENAIDA  H/W

207 DEL MONTE PL SOLAR, ROOF MOUNT 

SYSTEM, 34 SOLAR 

PANELS, WITH NEW 

MAIN SERVICE PANEL

19,500.00 125.00 0.00 33.50 0.00 2.54

1505-011 023-540-071KING, KRAIG A & AIDA R  

H/W

1232 CHIMNEY WAY SOLAR, ROOF MOUNT, 

21 SOLAR PANELS

12,000.00 125.00 0.00 15.00 0.00 1.56

1505-012 021-700-017BIHAG, JHOEL R 846 MANZANITA AVE SOLAR, ROOF MOUNT 

SYSTEM, 26 SOLAR 

PANELS, WITH NEW 225 

MAIN SERVICE PANEL

15,000.00 125.00 0.00 33.50 0.00 1.95

1505-013 021-810-003FLOREZ, FLAVIO  JR & 

GRACIELA M  H/W

727 AMERICAN AVE SWIMMING POOL 39,500.00 470.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5.14

1505-014 021-190-053NELSON, WALLACE E & 

BETTY J  LIVING TR

564 E SPRUCE AVE REMOVE BATHTUB 

AND INSTALLING 

SHOWER

0.00 0.00 27.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1505-015 021-680-051GOTTERSON, ROBERT A 

& TONI A  H/W

1102 PINE CT SOLAR, ROOF MOUNT, 

25 SOLAR PANELS

25,000.00 125.00 0.00 15.00 0.00 3.25

1505-016 021-120-029CONTRERAS, WAFA & 

DAVID A  W/H

729 DAPHNE LN SOLAR, ROOF MOUNT, 

23 SOLAR PANELS

13,200.00 125.00 0.00 33.50 0.00 1.72

1505-018 021-080-060MONICAL, BRIAN L & 

TERRI L  H/W

1210 MISSION DR SOLAR, ROOF MOUNT 

SYSTEM, 39 SOLAR 

PANELS

22,400.00 125.00 0.00 15.00 0.00 2.91

1505-019 023-410-062MADRIGAL, RAYMOND 

C & TAMMI S  H/W

365 ACACIA DR SOLAR,  ROOF MOUNT, 

43 SOLAR PANELS, AND 

SERVICE PANEL 

UPGRADE TO 225 AMP

43,300.00 125.00 0.00 33.50 0.00 5.63

1505-020 020-094-003FORTE, JAMES & 

BEVERLY  LIVING 

TRUST

321 C ST HVAC REPLACEMENT, 

5 TON, 14 SEER SPLIT 

SYSTEM

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 64.00 0.00

1505-021 023-140-056MUNROE, DONALD & 

MARTHA  H/W

423 ALDER DR REPLACE WATER LINE 

FROM METER TO 

HOUSE

0.00 0.00 27.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1505-022 021-820-014ROSE, CARL E & LUZ M  

H/W

887 LEGACY DR SOLAR, ROOF MOUNT 

SYSTEM, 24 SOLAR 

PANELS

13,000.00 125.00 0.00 15.00 0.00 1.69

1505-023 021-720-007SANTIAGO, ELIZABETH 882 APPLE AVE SERVICE PANEL 

UPGRADE TO 200 AMP

0.00 0.00 0.00 33.50 0.00 0.00



CITY OF LEMOORE

NEW PERMITS ISSUED REPORT

MAY 2015

1505-024 014-020-017BAJWA, BHUPINDER & 

GLORIA  H/W

577 TAMMY LN TEAR OFF, RESHEET, 30 

YR COMP

6,300.00 105.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.82

1505-025 023-180-026RIVERS, BERTIE M 630 TAMMY LN TEAR OFF, RESHEET, 

SILVER BIRCH

8,000.00 105.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.04

1505-026 023-370-038DEMILIO, DANIEL C & 

GINAMARIE  H/W

652 VISTA CT HVAC CHANGEOUT, 4 

TON, 17 SEER

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 64.00 0.00

1505-027 021-770-053GRIFFITH, KATIE J 50% 763 QUINCE AVE SOLAR, ROOF MOUNT, 

40 SOLAR PANELS, 

WITH SERVICE PANEL 

UPGRADE

31,050.00 125.00 0.00 33.50 0.00 4.04

1505-028 020-042-022LEMOORE CINEMAS  A 

PTP

400 FOLLETT ST TEAR OFF EXISTING 

ROOF, INSTALL 3-PLY 

MODIFIED ROOF WITH 

WHITE GRANULE 

SURFACE.

5,945.00 105.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.66

1505-029 021-480-019O'CONNOR, SEAN P & 

MELISSA A  H/W

839 ETON AVE WATER HEATER 

CHANGEOUT

0.00 0.00 27.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1505-030 021-280-041BEALER, JANICE 313 E DEODAR LN SOLAR, ROOF MOUNT, 

28 SOLAR PANELS, 

NEW 125 AMP SERVICE 

PANEL

16,100.00 125.00 0.00 33.50 0.00 2.09

1505-031 021-360-009DELAP, CAROLE D 855 N LEMOORE AVE, 

STE 180

SIGN FOR CRICKET, 

CHANNEL LETTERS, 

ILLUMINATED

5,000.00 100.50 0.00 30.00 0.00 1.40

1505-032 024-360-033BENGTSON, JOHN W & 

JANET R  H/W

990 PAR AVE SOLAR, ROOF MOUNT 

ON TILE, 16 SOLAR 

PANELS

16,000.00 125.00 0.00 15.00 0.00 2.08

1505-033 024-360-025CONTRERAS, WAFA & 

DAVID A  W/H

1070 PAR AVE SOLAR, ROOF MOUNT, 

23 SOLAR PANELS

13,200.00 125.00 0.00 15.00 0.00 1.72

1505-035 020-142-019SANTIAGO, ELIZABETH 882 APPLE AVE SOLAR, ROOF MOUNT, 

20 SOLAR PANELS

20,000.00 125.00 0.00 15.00 0.00 2.60

1505-036 023-200-057OWENS  FAMILY TRUST 751 CEDAR LN SOLAR, ROOF MOUNT, 

25 SOLAR PANELS

25,000.00 125.00 0.00 15.00 0.00 3.25

1505-037 014-531-018CONKEY, JAMES D & 

TRACY J  H/W

942 ORANGEWOOD 

CT

SOLAR, ROOF MOUNT, 

30 SOLAR PANELS, 

NEW SERVICE PANEL 

UPGRADE

17,300.00 125.00 0.00 33.50 0.00 2.25



CITY OF LEMOORE

NEW PERMITS ISSUED REPORT

MAY 2015

1505-038 021-200-042MIRANDA, JULIO 687 TAMARACK LN SOLAR, ROOF MOUNT, 

35 SOLAR PANELS, 

NEW SERVICE PANEL 

UPGRADE

20,000.00 125.00 0.00 33.50 0.00 2.60

1505-040 021-750-058TORRES, MARIO A & 

MARIA J  H/W

1575 LIME CT SOLAR, ROOF MOUNT, 

18 SOLAR PANELS

10,400.00 125.00 0.00 15.00 0.00 1.35

1505-044 021-390-035ROSSITER, RICHARD & 

LEE A  FAMILY TRUST

173 W SPRING LN A/C CHANGEOUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 64.00 0.00

1505-045 023-050-028BENAVIDEZ, CECILIA C 731 MADRID CT SWIMMING POOL, 500 

SQ FT

26,900.00 235.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.50

1505-046 020-203-051OXFORD, KATHLEEN A 1520 W BUSH ST HVAC CHANGEOUT, 3 

TON, 13 SEER

0.00 0.00 0.00 64.00 0.00

1505-048 023-180-033MORENA, CESAR M & 

NORMITA A  H/W

799 ANDY CT SOLAR, ROOF 

MOUNT,23 SOLAR 

PANELS,  SERVICE 

PANEL UPGRADE

23,000.00 125.00 0.00 33.50 0.00 2.99

1505-051 023-140-069HERNANDEZ, JOSE G 426 ALDER DR WATER LINE 

REPLACEMENT IN 

FRONT YARD ABOUT 

50'

0.00 0.00 27.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1505-053 020-203-025WEBER  SURVIVOR'S 

TRUST

47 ACACIA DR TEAR OFF, RESHEET 8,940.00 105.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.16

1505-054 021-690-049JACOBO, FRANCISCO C 1405 TULIP ST SOLAR, ROOF MOUNT, 

33 SOLAR PANELS, 

NEW MAIN SERVICE 

PANEL CHANGEOUT TO 

200 AMP

19,000.00 125.00 0.00 33.50 0.00 2.47

1505-058 020-183-010FRALEY, BRIAN & 

REBECCA K  H/W

130 TOOMEY ST TEAR OFF, RESHEET 9,000.00 105.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.17

1505-059 020-111-052SALAS, RAMON V & 

VELIA  H/W JT

372 E D ST WATER HEATER 

CHANGEOUT

0.00 0.00 27.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1505-060 021-190-019RUSH, NICHOLAS l & 

CHRISTINA l  H/W

1474 ASHLAND DR HVAC REPLACEMENT, 

13 SEER, 3 TON

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 64.00 0.00

1505-061 024-042-002WCH LEMOORE GOLF, 

LLC

1223 GOLF AVE SFR, 1,572 SQ FT, 2-CAR, 

SINGLE STORY, NO 

OPTIONS, ELEV. A

118,661.18 990.00 235.00 70.02 30.00 15.43

1505-062 024-042-040WCH LEMOORE GOLF, 

LLC

1220 CADDIE LOOP SFR, SINGLE STORY, 2 

CAR GARAGE, 1,711 SQ, 

ELEV.

129,050.36 1,045.00 111.00 74.33 30.00 16.78



CITY OF LEMOORE

NEW PERMITS ISSUED REPORT

MAY 2015

1505-063 024-042-006WCH LEMOORE GOLF, 

LLC

1263 GOLF AVE SFR, 2,173 SQ FT, 2 CAR, 

2-STORY, NO OPTIONS, 

ELEV. C

161,258.72 1,205.00 315.00 91.06 30.00 20.96

1505-064 021-800-035BENGTSON, DONALD L 796 ARLINGTON AVE FOUNDATION PERMIT 

FOR POOL ENCLOSURE

500.00 22.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.50

1505-066 023-390-015SCOGGINS, ROBERT C 542 PUFFIN LN HVAC CHANGEOUT 

AND COIL

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 64.00 0.00

1505-067 020-133-013BUCKNER, DEBRA & 

BILLY  W/H

202 E BUSH ST TEAR OFF, RESHEET, 40 

YR COMP

3,500.00 105.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.50

1505-068 021-820-020CONDUFF, PAUL D & 

CYNTHIA M  H/W

880 LEGACY DR SWIMMING POOL 39,500.00 235.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5.14

1505-069 021-390-023GONZALEZ-RUBIO, 

JOAQUIN & ESTELA  G  

H/W

106 W HANFORD-

ARMONA RD

SOLAR, ROOF MOUNT, 

11 SOLAR PANELS

6,300.00 125.00 0.00 15.00 0.00 0.82

1505-072 021-800-012FRANKS, KEVIN W & 

MARIN P  H/W

1099 FALLENLEAF DR PERGULA IN REAR OF 

HOUSE

1,200.00 125.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.50

63 Permits 2,540,837.46 16,441.75 1,883.00 1,344.26 583.00 366.97



MAY 2015 - CALENDAR YEAR LVFD MONTHLY CALLS

NAME
WEEK 

1
WEEK 

2
WEEK 

3 
WEEK 

4
WEEK 

5
MEETINGS / 

DRILLS
FIRES / 

GEN

EMT / 
PUBLIC  
ASSIST

TRAIN. 
/ MISC.

MONTLY 
TOTAL

FIRES / 
YTD

EMT / 
YTD

MISC. / 
YTD

MEETINGS / 
DRILLS YTD

YEAR TO 
DATE TOTAL YTD %

TOTAL DISPATCHED 1 1 1 1 0 4 23 131 0 158 111 591 7 20 729 100%
50 1 1 1 1 0 4 7 37 0 48 48 188 1 17 254 35%
85 1 1 1 1 0 4 12 36 0 52 45 160 2 16 223 31%
49 1 0 0 1 0 2 11 40 0 53 52 180 1 10 243 33%
76 0 0 1 0 0 1 8 20 0 29 35 99 1 14 149 20%
82 1 0 0 1 0 2 5 11 0 18 17 61 0 14 92 13%
88 1 1 0 1 0 3 14 54 0 71 56 236 1 19 312 43%
27 1 1 1 1 0 4 6 23 0 33 31 112 0 18 161 22%
8 1 1 1 1 0 4 12 45 0 61 54 224 2 20 300 41%
2 1 1 1 1 0 4 11 55 0 70 55 237 2 21 315 43%
78 1 0 1 1 0 3 15 41 0 59 56 211 1 19 287 39%
48 1 1 1 1 0 4 20 79 0 103 76 283 2 20 381 52%
52 1 1 1 1 0 4 12 40 0 56 51 178 0 20 249 34%
11 0 1 0 1 0 2 14 68 0 84 56 266 6 17 345 47%
56 0 1 1 0 0 2 10 12 0 24 32 75 1 17 125 17%
17 0 1 0 0 0 1 4 18 0 23 32 148 1 13 194 27%
36 1 0 1 1 0 3 17 71 0 91 84 330 3 16 433 59%
35 1 0 1 1 0 3 5 25 0 33 27 92 0 15 134 18%
77 1 0 1 1 0 3 12 41 0 56 43 178 0 17 238 33%
79 0 1 0 0 0 1 4 7 0 12 27 86 0 13 126 17%
81 0 1 0 0 0 1 5 28 0 34 36 142 1 11 190 26%
73 1 1 1 1 0 4 7 28 0 39 38 155 1 20 214 29%
19 0 1 1 1 0 3 13 34 0 50 54 163 1 20 238 33%
23 0 0 4 8 0 2 14 2%
89 1 1 1 1 0 4 12 36 0 52 56 180 1 20 257 35%
87 1 1 1 1 0 4 17 64 0 85 73 292 2 20 387 53%
68 1 1 1 1 0 4 15 44 0 63 65 193 3 19 280 38%
83 1 1 1 1 0 4 12 35 0 51 63 224 2 19 308 42%
72 0 1 0 0 0 1 14 30 0 45 59 163 2 14 238 33%
62 0 1 0 1 0 2 11 34 0 47 57 188 6 13 264 36%
24 0 1 1 1 0 3 13 51 0 67 44 201 2 17 264 36%
38 0 1 1 1 0 3 2 11 0 16 19 55 0 16 90 12%
29 0 1 0 1 0 2 15 12 0 29 28 50 0 13 91 12%
65 1 1 1 0 0 3 10 28 0 41 29 126 1 14 170 23%
59 1 1 0 0 0 2 15 14 0 31 27 52 0 10 89 12%
86 1 1 0 1 0 3 2 23 0 28 11 42 0 9 62 9%
90 1 1 1 1 0 4 19 80 0 103 58 240 3 15 316 43%

22 27 22 26 0 97 362 1195 0 1654 1540 5578 46 553

$8,270.00 ACCOUNT # 4222-4310



City of Lemoore 
Planning Applications 
January - May, 2015

Date 
Submitted File No. Project Description Business/Applicant No. Address/Location APN No.

Date 
Approved   
or 
(Denied)

No. of 
Business 
Days to 
Process

05/20/15 2015-11 Home Occupation (Minor) -            
Home Office                 

Gregory Jones 229 W. Hazelwood Drive 021-400-041 05/21/15 1

05/14/15 2015-02 Conditional Use Permit -                
Indoor Fitness/Amusement 
Facility                                        

Virgil Beard 1500 Enterprise Drive 024-051-035 06/08/15 17

05/13/15 2015-10 Home Occupation (Minor) -            
Home Office

Darlene Austin 872 Apple Avenue 021-720-006 05/14/15 1

05/04/15 2015-08 Sign Approval -                               
Wall Sign

Cricket Mobile 855 N. Lemoore Avenue 021-360-009 05/07/15 3

05/01/15 2015-01 Lot Line Adjustment                        
*Applicant to Submit Requested 
Revisions

Rick Rocha 725 N. Lemoore Avenue 021-360-012 In Process *

04/29/15 2015-09 Home Occupation (Minor) -            
Home Office

Jeff Grayson 1575 Chimney Way 023-550-023 04/30/15 1

04/22/15 2015-01 Tentative Subdivision Map -         
39 Lots - Aniston Place North         

WCH Homes                  Tract 
910 

NE "D" Street and 
Smith Avenue

023-020-085 06/08/15 33

04/22/15 2015-01 Planned Unit Development -           
Amendment to Side Yard Setback 
Requirements                                 

WCH Homes                  Tract 
910 

NE "D" Street and 
Smith Avenue

023-020-085 06/08/15 33

04/20/15 2015-07 Sign Approval -                               
Wall Sign 

All American Pool Co. 313 W. "D" Street 020-091-008 04/24/15 4

04/15/15 2015-08 Home Occupation (Minor) -            
Home Office

Maria Chavoya             
DeGuadron

1095 Laurel Lane 020-234-003 04/16/15 1

04/01/15 2015-02 Temporary Use Permit -                 
Kiosk                     

Budget Mobile 1115 W. Bush Street 023-230-011 04/03/15 2

03/26/15 2015-06 Sign Approval -                               
Wall Sign

Discount Outlet and 
More

130 E. Hanford Armona 
Road, Ste A

021-300-004 03/30/15 2

     * Reason for delay listed in Project Description.
        PC ‐ Planning Commission
        CC ‐ City Council



City of Lemoore 
Planning Applications 
January - May, 2015

03/24/15 2015-07 Home Occupation (Minor) -            
Home Office           

Christine Alvarez 654 Oleander Avenue 023-020-052 03/27/15 3

03/23/15 2015-05 Sign Approval -                               
Wall Sign

Lolita's 317 S. Lemoore Avenue 023-130-020 03/26/15 3

03/19/15 2015-04 Sign Approval -                               
Monument Sign

The Grove 341 S. 19 1/2 Avenue 023-460-013 03/26/15 5

03/17/15 2015-06 Home Occupation (Minor) -            
Home Office 

Sandra Medeiros 616 E. Spring Lane 021-220-047 03/18/15 1

03/12/15 2015-01 Conditional Use Permit -                
Vehicle Sales                                  

Sam Lakhani 1575 Enterprise Drive 024-051-027 04/13/15 22

03/05/15 2015-05 Home Occupation (Minor) -            
Home Office

Ronnie Nimmo II 199 Lake Drive 024-340-044 03/09/15 2

03/05/15 2015-04 Site Plan Review (Minor) -              
New Parking Area

Church of the Nazarine 726 E. "D" Street 023-020-005 03/17/15 8

03/02/15 2015-07 Home Occupation (Major) -            
Home Business                               

Gina Marie Delilio 652 Vista Court 023-370-038 04/13/15 30

02/25/15 2015-01 Zone Change  -                               
Medium Density Residential to 
Light Industrial                                
*PC Recommended CC Approval 
6/8/15 - Requires CC hold Public 
Hearing 

Roger-Don and JoAnne 
Robbins

898 W. Iona Avenue 023-170-011 6/8/15* 73

02/25/15 2015-01 General Plan Amendment  -           
Medium Density Residential to 
Light Industrial                                
* PC Recommended CC Approval 
6/8/15 - Requires CC hold Public 
Hearing 

Roger-Don and JoAnne 
Robbins

898 W. Iona Avenue 023-170-011 6/8/15* 73

02/24/15 2015-03 Site Plan Review (Minor) -              
Employee Parking and Storage 
Facility

Bennett & Bennett 
Irrigation

955 S. Commerce Way 024-051-029 03/12/15 12

     * Reason for delay listed in Project Description.
        PC ‐ Planning Commission
        CC ‐ City Council



City of Lemoore 
Planning Applications 
January - May, 2015

02/23/15 2015-04 Home Occupation (Minor) -           
Home Office

Amanda Gardner 1013 Prosperity Drive 021-790-014 02/24/15 1

02/19/15 2015-03 Sign Approval -                               
Updating Signage and Order 
Screens

Starbucks 855 N. Lemoore Avenue 020-360-009 02/20/15 1

02/13/15 2015-02 Site Plan Review (Major) -           
Professional Office Building         
Requires PC Approval 

Dr. Denise Riemer, 
DDS

446 446 "C" Street 
(Previously 442 and 
448 "C" Street)

020-082-018 03/09/15 16

02/05/15 2015-01 Planned Unit Development -           
Amendment to Side Yard Setback 
Requirements                                 

Wathen Castanos Tract 752 - 77 Lots N/A 03/09/15 22

02/02/15 2015-03 Home Occupation (Minor) -            
Home Office

Josephine Wood 570 E. Burlwood Lane 021-210-036 02/04/15 2

02/02/15 2015-02 Sign Approval -                               
One Wall Sign                                 

Mobil/Foeng Yam 286 N. Lemoore Avenue 020-113-001 02/10/15 7

02/02/15 2015-01 Minor Deviation -                             
Side Yard Setbacks

Wathen Castanos 1280 Golf Avenue N/A 02/05/15 3

01/26/15 2015-01 Sign Approval -                               
One Freestanding and Two Wall 
Signs                                               

Bronco Trailer 
Sales/Sam Lakhani

1575 Enterprise Drive 024-051-027 (2/11/15) 12

01/26/15 2015-01 Site Plan Review (Minor) -              
Office and Warehouse                    

Bronco Trailer 
Sales/Sam Lakhani

1575 Enterprise Drive 024-051-027 02/24/15 21

01/26/15 2015-02 Home Occupation (Minor) -      
Home Office

Robert Davilla 342 W. Spring Lane 021-460-030 01/26/15 Same Day

01/08/15 2015-01 Home Occupation (Minor) -     
Home Office

Jonathan Cruz 648 Siena Way 023-610-050 01/08/15 Same Day

     * Reason for delay listed in Project Description.
        PC ‐ Planning Commission
        CC ‐ City Council



 Refuse Report

34%

54%

12%

2015 Residential Refuse Breakdown

GREEN CAN

BLACK CAN

BLUE CAN

31.00

352.74

233.19

98.31

29.39

358.76

287.31

97.87

COMMERCIAL RECYCLING

COMMERCIAL TRASH

GREEN CAN

BLACK CAN

BLUE CAN

Refuse Tonnage May 2014 vs. 2015

May-14 May-15



PEAK DAY GALLONS MONTHLY GALLONAGE MONTHLY CUBIC FEET*

JANUARY 5,199,000 133,568,000 17,856,684

FEBRUARY 5,190,000 122,433,000 16,368,048

MARCH 6,654,000 162,105,000 21,671,791

APRIL 8,238,000 183,007,000 24,466,176

MAY 8,054,000 202,603,000 27,085,963

 

JUNE

 

JULY

AUGUST

SEPTEMBER

OCTOBER

NOVEMBER

DECEMBER

TOTAL: 33,335,000 803,716,000 107,448,663

* Gallons ÷7.48 = Cubic Feet

CITY OF LEMOORE

WATER PRODUCTION

2015



2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

MONTH PEAK DAY GALLONS PEAK DAY GALLONS PEAK DAY GALLONS PEAK DAY GALLONS PEAK DAY GALLONS

JANUARY 4,396,000 5,133,000 5,066,000 6,143,000 5,199,000

FEBRUARY 4,932,000 5,499,000 5,604,000 7,012,000 5,190,000

MARCH 4,708,000 6,249,000 6,609,000 6,590,000 6,654,000

APRIL 7,607,000 6,729,000 8,828,000 8,190,000 8,238,000

MAY 8,173,000 8,877,000 9,666,000 8,874,000 8,054,000

JUNE 9,339,000 11,154,000 10,978,000 9,933,000

JULY 10,656,000 10,512,000 10,547,000 10,862,000

AUGUST 9,710,000 10,465,000 10,176,000 9,697,000

SEPTEMBER 10,137,000 9,712,000 9,688,000 8,776,000

OCTOBER 7,822,000 8,380,000 8,225,000 8,132,000

NOVEMBER 7,414,000 6,459,000 6,910,000 7,522,000

DECEMBER 4,964,000 5,327,000 5,615,000 5,105,000

TOTAL 89,858,000 94,496,000 97,912,000 96,836,000 33,335,000

* Gallons ÷ 7.48 = cubic feet

WATER PRODUCTION

CITY OF LEMOORE



2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

MONTH MONTHLY GALLONAGE MONTHLY GALLONAGE MONTHLY GALLONAGE MONTHLY GALLONAGE MONTHLY GALLONAGE

JANUARY 117,353,000 138,630,000 132,348,000 157,273,000 133,568,000

FEBRUARY 111,965,000 133,667,000 129,994,000 136,619,000 122,433,000

MARCH 126,662,000 158,741,000 170,017,000 167,168,000 162,105,000

APRIL 156,861,000 165,356,000 211,201,000 191,304,000 183,000,700

MAY 228,233,000 242,101,000 262,385,000 242,530,000 202,603,000

JUNE 242,330,000 278,757,000 291,387,000 265,231,000

JULY 281,784,000 294,826,000 296,652,000 280,327,000

AUGUST 278,577,000 293,321,000 282,965,000 257,037,000

SEPTEMBER 255,360,000 258,447,000 254,390,000 227,128,000

OCTOBER 200,195,000 218,003,000 223,710,000 205,834,000

NOVEMBER 154,815,006 157,856,000 172,908,000 159,366,000

DECEMBER 134,505,000 131,258,000 _151,140,000 132,430,000

TOTAL: 2,288,640,006 2,470,963,000 2,579,097,000 2,422,247,000 803,709,700

* Gallons ÷ 7.48 = cubic feet

CITY OF LEMOORE

WATER PRODUCTION




	ETA
	GLTA
	RTA
	Item 2-5-2 14-15 GOLF COURSE BUDGET
	Item 2-5-2 14-15 GOLF COURSE BUDGET
	Sheet1


	Activity Update Memo 6-16-15
	AU-1 Bldh RptMAY-15
	AU-2 Building MonthEndReports-IssuedPermits-MAY-15
	AU-3LVFD Monthly Calls - May 2015 Report
	AU-4 Planning Applications January - May 2015
	AU-5 Refuse Report
	AU-6 Water Production Report
	WTRCF15
	WTRPDG15
	WTRPRO15

	AU- 7 Trip Report - Johns



